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United Utilities
UNITED UTILITIES PLC

{incorporated with limited lability in England)

NORWEB plc — 2366 949

(incorporated with fimitad liability in England)

NORTH WEST WATER FINANCE PLC

(incorporated with limited liability in Engfand)

U.S.$2,000,000,000
Euro Medium Term Note Programme

Notes issued by North West Water Finance PLC
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by

NORTH WEST WATER LIMITED

(incorporated with limited liability in England)
Under this U.S.$2,000,000,000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme {the "Programme”), United Utilities PLC, NORWEB plc
and North West Water Finance PLC (“NWW") (each an “Issuer” and together the “Issuers”) may from time to time issue notes
(the “Notes”) denominated in any currency (including ECU} agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer (as
defined below).
The payment of all amounts payable in respect of Notes Issued by NWW will be unconditionally and irrevocably guarantesd by
North West Water Limited (the “Guarantor”).
The maximum a%%re ate nominal amount of all Notes from time to time outstanding under the Programme will not exceed
U.5.$2,000,000, 0%or its equivalent in other currencies calculated as described in the Programme Agreement described
herein}, subject to increase as described herein.
The Notes may be issued cn a continuing basis t¢ one or more of the Dealers specified under “Summary of the Programme”
and any additional Dealer appointed under the Programme from time to time (each a "Dealer” and together the = ealers”),
which appointment may be for a specific issue or on an ongeing basis. References in this Offering Circular to the "relevarnt
Dealer” shall, in the case of an issue of Notes being (or intended to be) subscribed by more than one Dealer, be to all Dealers
agreeing to purchase such Notes.
Applicaticn has been made to the London Stock Exchan%e Limited {the “London Stock Exchan%e") for Notes issued during
the period of 12 months from the date of this Offering Circular to be admitted to the Officiat List of the London Stock Exchange.
Notice of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes, interest (if any) paP/able in respect of Notes, the issue price of Notes and any
other terms and conditions not contained herein which are applicable to each Tranche 1as defined under “Terms and
Conditions of the Notes™ of Notes will be set out in a pricing supplement (the “Pricing Supplement™) which, with respect to
Notes to be admitted to the Official List of the London Stock Exchange, will be delivered to the London Stock Exchange on or
before the date of issue of the Notes of such Tranche,

The Programme provides that Notes may be listed on such other or further stock exchange(s) as may be agreed between the
relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) and the relevant Dealer. The Issuers may also issue unlisted
Notes. This Offering Circular has not been submitted to the ¢learance procedures of the Commission des Cpérations de
Bourse (the "COBg and has not been registered bY the COB. It is a requirement that, prior to the listing of any Notes on the
Paris Bourse, the B approve this Offering Circular and evidence such approval by issuing a registration number.

Notes to be issued under the Programme by United Utilities PLC with an initial maturity of one year or less will be rated P1 bY
Moody's Investors Service Limite (“MoodKls") and A1 by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of the McGraw Hill
Cornpanies Inc. ("Standard & Poor’s”} and Notes with an initial rmaturity of rmore than one year will be rated A2 by Moody's and
A+ by Standard & Poor’s. Notes to be issued under the Programme by NORWEB plc and NWW with an initial maturity of one
year or less will be rated P1 by Moody's and A1+ by Standard & Poor’s and Notes with an initial maturity of more than one year

wili be rated A1 by Moody’s and — by Standard & Poor's. A credit rating may be subject to revision, suspension or
withdrawal at any time by the rating organisation,
The relevant lssuer, the Guarantor {where the relevant Issuer is N and the Trustee (as defined below) may agree with any

Dealer that Notes may be issued in a form not contemplated by the Terms and Conditions of the Notes herein, in which event
%in the case of Notes admitted to the Official List of the London Stock Exchange only) supplementary listing particulars or
ulrther listing %aﬁiculars, if appropriate, will be made available which will describe the effect of the agreement reached in
relation to suc otes.

Arranger
Deutsche Bank

Dealers
ABN AMROQ Tokyo-Mitsubishi International pic
Credit Suisse First Boston Deutsche Bank
J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd. Warburg Dillon Read

The date of this Offering Circular is 13 October, 1998.




Each of the Issuers and the Guarantor accepts responsibility for the information contained in the Listing
Particulars (as defined below). To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Issuers and the Guarantor
{each having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in the
Listing Particulars is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of
such information.

Copies of this Offering Circular, which comprises the listing particulars approved by the London Stock
Exchange as required by the Financial Services Act 19886 (the “Listing Particulars”™) in relation to Notes listed
on the London Stock Exchange and issued during the period of 12 months from the date of this Offering
Gircular, have been delivered for registration to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales as
required by section 149 of that Act. Copies of each Pricing Supplement {in the case of Notes to be admitted
to the Official List of the London Stock Exchange) will be available from FT Business Research Centre,
operated by FT Electronic Publishing at Fitzroy House, 13-15 Epworth Street, London EC2A 4DL and from
the specified office set out below of each of the Paying Agents (as defined below).

This Offering Circular is to be read in conjunction with all documents which are deemed to be incorporated
herein by reference (see “Documents Incorporated by Reference” below) (provided, however, that such
incorporated documents do not form part of the Listing Particulars). This Offering Circular shall, save as
specified herein, be read and construed on the basis that such documents are so incorporated and form
part of this Offering Circular but not part of the Listing Particulars.

Neither the Dealers nor the Trustee have independently verified the information contained herein.
Accordingly, no representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility
or liability is accepted by the Dealers or the Trustee as to the accuracy or completeness of the information
contained or incorporated in this Offering Circular or any other information provided by the Issuers in
connection with the Programme. Neither the Dealers nor the Trustee accept any liability in relation to the
information contained or incorporated by reference in this Offering Circular or any other information
provided by any Issuer or the Guarantor in connection with the Programme.

No person is or has been authorised by the Issuers or the Guarantor to give any information or to make any
representation not contained in or not consistent with this Offering Circular or any other information
supplied in connection with the Programme or the Notes and, if given or made, such information or
representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuers, the Guarantor, any of the
Dealers or the Trustee.

Neither this Offering Circular nor any other infermation supplied in connection with the Programme or any
Notes () is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (i) should be considered as a
recommendation by the Issuers, the Guarantor, any of the Dealers or the Trustee that any recipient of this
Offering Circular or any other information supplied in connection with the Prograrmme or any Notes should
purchase any Notes. Each investor contemplating purchasing any Notes should make its own independent
investigation of the financial condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the
relevant Issuer and/or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor. Neither this Offering Gircular nor
any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the issue of any Notes constitutes an
offer or invitation by or on behalf of the Issuers, the Guarantor, any of the Dealers or the Trustee to any
person to subscribe for or to purchase any Notes,

Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular nor the offering, sale or defivery of any Notes shall in any
circumstances imply that the information contained herein conceming the Issuers or the Guarantor is
correct at any time subsequent to the date hereof or that any other information supplied in connection with
the Programme is correct as of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing the
same. The Dealers and the Trustee expressly do not undertake to review the financial condition or affairs of
the lssuers and/or the Guarantor during the life of the Programme or to advise any investor in the Notes of
any information coming to their attention. Investors should review, inter alia, the most recently published
audited annual financial statements and, if published later, the most recently published interim financial
statements (if any) of the Issuers and/or the Guarantor when deciding whether or not to purchase any
Notes.

The Notes are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or delivered within the
United States or its possessions or to United States persons, except in certain transactions permitted by
U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder.




This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any Notes in any
jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. The
distribution of this Offering Circular and the offer or sale of Notes may be restricted by law in certain
jurisdictions. The Issuers, the Guarantor, the Dealers and the Trustee do not represent that this Offering
Circular may be lawfully distributed, or that any Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance with any
applicable registration or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption available
thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or offering. In particular, no
action has been taken by the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Dealers or the Trustee (save for the approval of this
document as listing particulars by the London Stock Exchange and delivery of copies of this document to
the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales) which would permit a public offering of any Notes or
distribution of this document in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. Accordingly, no
Notes may be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Offering Circular nor any advertiserent
or other offering material may be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances
that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations and the Dealers have represented
that all offers and sales by them will be made on the same terms. Persons into whose possession this
Offering Circular or any Notes may come must inform themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions
on the distribution of this Offering Circular and the offering and sale of Notes. In particular, there are
restrictions on the distribution of this Offering Circular and the offer and sale of Notes in the United States,
the United Kingdom, Japan and Germany, see "Subscription and Sale”.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuers and the
Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) and the terms of the Notes being offered, including the merits
and risks involved. The Notes have not been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission or any other securities commission or other regulatory authority in the United
States, nor have the foregoing authorities approved this Offering Circular or confirmed the accuracy or
determined the adequacy of the information contained in this Offering Circular, Any representation to the
contrary is unlawful.

None of the Dealers, the Issuers, the Guarantor or the Trustese makes any representation to any investor in
the Notes regarding the legality of its investment under any applicable laws. Any investor in the Notes
should be able to bear the economic risk of an investment in the Notes for an indefinite period of time.

All references in this Offering Circular to “U.S. dollars”, “U.S.$” and “$” refer to the currency of the United
States of America, to “Sterling” and "£” refer to the currency of the United Kingdom, to “Deutsche Marks”
and “DM" refer to the currency of Germany and to "ECU” refer to European Currency Units.

In connection with the issue and distribution of any Tranche of Notes, the Dealer (if any)
disclosed as the stabilising manager in the applicable Pricing Supplement may over-allot or
effect transactions which stabilise or maintain the market price of the Notes of the Series (as
defined below} of which such Tranche forms part at a level which might not otherwise prevail.
Such stabilising, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents published or issued from time to time after the date hereof shall be deemed to be
incorporated in, and to form part of, this Offering Circular (provided, however, that such incorporated
documents do not form a part of the Listing Particulars):

{a) the most recently published audited consolidated and non-consolidated statutory annual financial
statements and, if published later, the most recently published interim consolidated and non-
consolidated financial statements (if any) of each of the Issuers and the Guarantor; and

{b) ali supplements or amendments to this Offering Circular circulated by the Issuers and the Guarantor
from time to time,

save that any statement contained herein or in a document which is deemed to be incorporated by
reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Offering Circular (but
not the Listing Particulars) to the extent that a statement contained in any such subseqguent document
which is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes such earlier statement
(whether expressly, by implication or otherwise). Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be
deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Offering Circutar.

The Issuers and the Guarantor will provide, without charge, to each person to whom a copy of this Offering
Circular has been delivered, upon the request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents
deemed to be incorporated herein by reference unless such decuments have been modified or superseded
as specified above. Requests for such documents should be directed to any of the Issuers or the Guarantor
at their respective offices set out at the end of this Offering Circular. In addition, such documents will be
available free of charge from the office of the London Listing Agent.

The Issuers and the Guarantor have undertaken to the Dealers in the Prbgramme Agreement (as defined in
“Subscription and Sale”) to comply with sections 147 and 149 of the Financial Services Act 1986.

If the terms of the Programme are modified or amended in a manner which would make this Offering
Circular, as supplemented, inaccurate or misleading, a new offering circular will be prepared.




SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

The following summary does not purport to be complete and is taken from, and is qualified in its entirety by,
the remainder of this Offering Circular and, in relation to the terms and conditions of any particular Tranche
of Notes, the applicable Pricing Supplement. Words and expressions defined in “Form of the Notes” and
“Terms and Conditions of the Notes” below shall have the same meanings in this summary.

Issuers: United Utilities PLC
NORWEB plc
North West Water Finance PLC

Guarantor in respect of North West Water Limited
Notes issued by North West
Water Finance PLG:

Description: Euro Medium Term Note Programme
Arrangers: Deutsche Bank AG London

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
(in respect of Deutsche Mark denominated Notes)

Dealers: ABN AMRO Bank N.V.
Tokyo-Mitsubishi International plc
Credit Suisse First Boston (Europe) Limited
Deutsche Bank AG London
J.P. Morgan Securities Lid.
UBS AG, acting through its division Warburg Dillon Read
and any other Dealers appointed in accordance with the Programme
Agreement.

Certain Restrictions: Each issue of Notes dencminated in a currency in respect of which
particular laws, guidslines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which
comply with such laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or
reporting requirements from time to time (see “Subscription and
Sale”) including the following restrictions applicable at the date of this
Offering Circular.

Deutsche Marks

Each issue of Notes denominated in Deutsche Marks will take place
only in compliance with the guidelines applicable for the time being of
the German Central Bank regarding the issue of Deutsche Mark
denominated debt securities. Under current guidelines only credit
institutions domiciled in Germany or German branches of foreign
credit institutions can act as Dealers in relation to such Notes except in
the case of an issue of Deutsche Mark denominated Notes in a
syndicated transaction {which need only be lead managed by a credit
institution domiciled in Germany or a German branch of a foreign
credit institution).

Swiss Francs

lssues of Notes dencminated in Swiss francs or camying a Swiss
franc-related element with a maturity of more than one year (other than
Notes privately placed with a single investor with no publicity) will be
effected in compliance with the relevant regulations of the Swiss
National Bank based on article 7 of the Federal Law on Banks and
Savings Banks of 8 November, 1934 (as amended) and article 15 of
the Federal Law on Stock Exchanges and Securities Trading of
24 March, 1995 in connection with article 2, paragraph 2 of the
Ordinance of the Federal Banking Commission on Stock Exchanges
and Securities Trading of 2 December, 1996. Under the said
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regulations, the relevant Dealer or, in the case of a syndicated issue,
the lead manager (the “Swiss Dealer”), must be a bank domiciled in
Switzerland {which includes branches or subsidiaries of a foreign bank
located in Switzerland) or a securities dealer duly licensed by the Swiss
Federal Banking Commission pursuant to the Federal Law on Stock
Exchanges and Securities Trading of 24 March, 1995. The Swiss
Dealer must report certain details of the relevant transaction to the
Swiss National Bank no later than the Issue Date of the relevant Notes.

Sterling

Issues of Notes denominated in Sterling shall comply with all
applicable laws and regulations {as amended from time to time) of
United Kingdom authorities. See “Banking Act 1987 (Exempt
Transactions) Regulations 1997 under “General Information”.

The Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c.

Citibank, N.A.

Up to U.S.$2,000,000,000 in nominal amount (or its equivalent in
other currencies calculated as described in the Programme
Agreement) outstanding at any time. The Issuers may increase the
amount of the Programme in accordance with the terms of the
Programme Agreement.

Notes may be distributed by way of private or public placement and in
each case on a syndicated or non-syndicated basis.

Subject to any applicable legal or regulatory restrictions, any currency
agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

Payments in respect of Notes denominated and payable or payable in
ECU will, with effect from the start of the third stage of European
economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the
European Community, as amended from time to time (the “Treaty"),
be made in euro at the rate of one euro for one ECU.

The applicable Pricing Supplement may provide that, with effect from
the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union
pursuant to the Treaty, Notes may be redenominated in euro and/or
exchanged for other Series of Notes denominated in euro.

The relevant provisions applicable to any such payments,
redenomination and exchange are contained in Conditions 5 and 6.

Such maturities as may be agreed betweaen the Issuer and the relevant
Dealer, subject to such minimum or maximum maturities as may be
allowed or required from time to time by the relevant central bank {or
equivalent body) or any laws or regulations applicable to the relevant
Issuer or the relevant Specified Currency.

At the date of this Offering Circular, the minimurm maturity of all Notes
is one month. Unless otherwise permitted by the then current laws,
regulations and directives, Notes denominated in Deutsche Marks will
have a minimum maturity of two years.

Notes may be issued on a fully-paid or a partly-paid basis and at an
issue price which is at par or at a discount to, or premium over, par,

The Notes will be issued in bearer form as described in “Form of the
Notes"”.




Fixed Rate Notes:

Floating Rate Notes:

Indexed Notes:

Other provisions in relation
to Floating Rate Notes and
Indexed Interest Notes:

Pual Currency Notes:

Zero Coupon Notes:

Redemption:

Fixed interest will be payable on such date or dates as may be agreed
between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer and on
redemption.

Interest will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of
12 months of 30 days each (or such other basis as may be agreed).

Floating Rate Notes will bear interest at a rate determined:

() on the same basis as the floating rate under a notional interest
rate swap ftransaction in the relevant Specified Gurrency
governed by an agreement incorporating the 1891 ISDA
Definitions (as published by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc., and as amended and updated as
at the lssue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes of the relevant
Series); or

(i} on the basis of a reference rate appearing on the agreed screen
page of a commercial quotation service; or

(i} on such other basis as may be agreed between the relevant
lssuer and the relevant Dealer.

The margin (if any) relating to such floating rate will be agreed between
the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer for each Series of Floating
Rate Notes.

Payments of principal in respect of Indexed Redemption Amount
Notes or of interest in respect of Indexed Interest Notes will be
calculated by reference to such index and/or formula or to changes in
the prices of securities or commodities or to such other factors as the
relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.

Indexed Notes denominated in Deuische Marks will be issued in
compliance with the policy of the German Central Bank regarding the
indexation of Deutsche Mark denominated debt obligations.

Floating Rate Notes and Indexed Interest Notes may also have a
maximum interest rate, a minimum interest rate or both.

Interest on Floating Rate Notes and Indexed Interest Notes in respect
of each Interest Period, as agreed prior to issue by the relevant lssuer
and the relevant Dealer, will be payable on such Interest Payment
Dates, and will be calculated on the basis of such Day Count Fraction,
as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and whether at
maturity or otherwise) in respect of Dual Currency Notes will be made
in such currencies, and based on such rates of exchange, as the
relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.

Zero Coupon Notes will be offered and sold at a discount to their
nominal amount and will not bear interest.

The applicable Pricing Supplernent will indicate either that the Notes
cannot be redeemed prior to their stated maturity (other than in
specified instalments, if applicable, or for taxation reasons or following
an Event of Default} or that such Notes will be redeemable at the
option of the relevant Issuer and/or the Noteholders upen giving the
relevant period of notice specified in the Terms and Conditions {or
such other notice period as is specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement) to the Noteholders or the relevant lssuer, as the case
may be, on a date or dates specified prior to such stated maturity and




Denomination of Notes:
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Status of the Notes:

Guarantee:

at a price or prices and on such other terms as may be agreed
between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

Under applicable laws and regulations at the date of this Offering
Circular, Notes denominated in Deutsche Marks may not be
redeemed (other than for taxation reasons or following an Event of
Default) prior to two years from the relevant lssue Date.

The applicable Pricing Supplement may provide that Notes may be
redeemable in two or more instalments of such amounts and on such
dates as are indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Unless otherwise permitted by then current laws and regulations,
Notes (inciuding Notes denominaied in Sterling) in respect of which
the issue proceeds are to be accepted by the relevant Issuer in the
United Kingdom must have a minimum redemption amount of
£100,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies), unless such Notes
may not be redeemed until the third anniversary of their Issue Date and
are to be listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be agreed
between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer save that the
minimum denomination of each Note will be such as may be allowed
or required from time to time by the relevant central bank (or equivalent
body)} or any laws or regulations applicable to the relevant Specified
Currency.

Unless otherwise permitted by then current laws and regulations,
Notes (including Notes denominated in Sterling) in respect of which
the issue proceeds are to be accepted by the relevant issuer in the
United Kingdom must have a minimum denomination of £100,000 (or
its equivalent in other currencies), unless such Notes may not be
redeemed until the third anniversary of their Issue Date and are to be
listed on the London Stock Exchange.

All payments in respect of the Notes will be made without deduction
for or on account of withholding taxes imposed within the United
Kingdom, subject as provided in Condition 10. In the event that any
such deduction is made, the relevant Issuer or, as the case may be,
the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW)
will, save in certain limited circumstances provided in Condition 10, be
required to pay additional amounts to cover the amounts so deducted.

The termsg of the Notes will contain a negative pledge provision as
further described in Condition 4.

The terms of the Notes will contain a cross default provision as further
described in Condlition 12.

The Notes will be direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and (subject
to the provisions of Condition 4) unsecured obligations of the relevant
Issuer and will rank pari passuy amaong themselves and {subject as
aforesaid and save for certain obligations required to be preferred by
law) equally with all other unsecured obligations (other than
subordinated obligations, if any) of the relevant Issuer, from time to
time outstanding.

Notes issued by NWW will be unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by the Guarantor. The obligations of the Guarantor
under such guarantee will be direct, unconditional, unsubordinated
and (subject to the provisions of Condition 4) unsecured obligations of
the Guarantor and (subject as aforesaid and save for certain




Rating:

Listing:

Governing Law:

Selling Restrictions:

obligations required to be preferred by law) will rank equally with all
other unsecured obligations (other than subordinated obligations, if
any) of the Guarantor.

Notes to be issued under the Programme by United Utilities PLC with
an initial maturity of one year or less will be rated P1 by Moody’s and
A1 by Standard & Poor's and Notes with an initial maturity of more
than one year will be rated A2 by Moody’s and A+ by Standard &
Poor’'s. Notes to be issued under the Programme by NORWEB plc
and NWW with an initial maturity of one year or less will be rated P1 by
Moody’s and A1+ by Standard & Poor’s and Notes with an initial
maturity of more than one year will be rated A1 by Moody's and AA—
by Standard & Poor’s. A credit rating may be subject to revision,
suspension or withdrawal at any time by the rating organisation.

Application has been made to list the Notes on the London Stock
Exchange. The Notes may also be listed on such other or further stock
exchange(s) as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the
relevant Dealer in relation to each Series.

Unlisted Notes may also be issued.

The applicable Pricing Supplement will state whether or not the Notes
are to be listed and, if so, on which stock exchange(s).

The Notes will be governed by, and construed in accordance with,
English law.

There are restrictions on the offer, sale and transfer of the Notes in the
United States, the United Kingdom, Japan and Germany and such
other restrictions as rmay be required in connection with the offering
and sale of a particular Tranche of Notes — see "Subscription and
Sale”,
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FORM OF THE NOTES

The Notes of each Series will be in bearer form, with or without interest coupons (“Coupons”) attached.

Each Tranche of Notes will initially be issued in the form of either a temporary global note (a “Temporary
Global Note”) or a permanent global note (a “Permanent Global Note”) as indicated in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, which, in either case, will be delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche to a
common depositary (the “Common Depositary”) for Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York,
Brussels Office, as operator of the Euroclear System (“Euroclear”) and Cedel Barnk, société anonyme
(“Cedel Bank"). Whilst any Note is represented by a Temporary Global Note, payments of principal, interest
(if any) and any other amount payable in respect of the Notes due prior to the Exchange Date (as defined
below) will be made against presentation of the Temporary Global Note only to the extent that certification
{in & form to be provided) to the effect that the beneficial owners of interests in such Note are not U.S.
persons or persons who have purchased for resale to any U.S. person, as required by U.S. Treasury
regulations, has been received by Euroclear and/or Cedel Bank and Euroclear and/or Gedel Bank, as
applicable, has given a like certification (based on the certifications it has received) to the Principal Paying
Agent.

On and after the date (the “Exchange Date”) which, in respect of each Tranche in respect of which a
Temporary Global Note is issued, is the later of (i) 40 days after the Temporary Global Note is issued and (i)
40 days after the completion of the distribution of the relevant Tranche, as certified by the relevant Dealer (in
the case of a non-syndicated issue) or the relevant Lead Manager (in the case of a syndicated issue) (the
“Restricted Period”), interests in such Temporary Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge) upon a
request as described therein either for (j) interests in a Permanent Global Note of the same Series or (i) for
definitive Notes of the same Series with, where applicable, receipts, Coupons and talons attached (as
indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement and subject, in the case of definitive Notes, to such notice
period as is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) in each case against certification of beneficial
ownership as described above unless such certification has already been given. The holder of a Temporary
Global Note wiill not be entitled to collect any payment of interest, principal or other amount due on or after
the Exchange Date unless upon due certification exchange of the Temporary Global Note for an interest in a
Permanent Global Note or for definitive Notes is improperly withheld or refused.

Payments of principal, interest (if any) or any other amounts on a Permanent Global Note will be made
through Euroclear and/or Cedel Bank against presentation or surrender (as the case may be) of the
Permanent Global Note without any requirement for certification. The applicable Pricing Supplement will
specify that a Permanent Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge), in whole but not in part, for
definitive Notes with, where applicable, receipts, Coupons and talons attached upon either () not less than
60 days’ written notice from Euroclear and/or Cedel Bank {acting on the instructions of any holder of an
interest in such Permanent Global Note) to the Principal Paying Agent as described therein or (i) only upon
the occurrence of an Exchange Event. For these purposes, “Exchange Event” means that (i) an Event of
Default has occurred and is continuing, (i) the lssuer has been notified that both Euroclear and Cedel Bank
have been closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday, statutory
or otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and
no ailternative clearing systemn satisfactory to the Trustee is available or {iii) the relevant Issuer has or will
become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided for or referred to in Condition 10 which would not
be required were the Notes represented by the Permanent Global Note in definitive form. The relevant
lssuer will promptly give notice to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 16 if an Exchange Event
occurs. In the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event, Euroclear and/or Cedel Bank (acting on the
instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent Global Note) or the Trustee may give notice to
the Principal Paying Agent requesting exchange and, in the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event
as described in (jiii} above, the relevant Issuer may also give notice to the Principal Paying Agent requesting
exchange. Any such exchange shall occur not later than 60 days after the date of receipt of the first relevant
notice by the Principal Paying Agent,

The following legend will appear on all Notes which have an original maturity of 365 days or more and on all
receipts and Coupons relating to such Notes:

“ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS
UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN
SECTIONS 185(j) AND 1287(a) OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE.”




The sections referred to provide that United States holders, with certain exceptions, will not be entitled to
deduct any loss on Notes, receipts or Coupons and will not be entitled to capital gains treatment of any
gain on any sale, disposition, redemption or payment of principal in respect of such Notes, receipts or
Coupons.

Notes which are represented by a Global Note will be transferable only in accordance with the rules and
procedures for the time being of Euroclear or Cedel Bank, as the case may be.

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement (as defined under “Terms and Conditions of the Notes”) the Principal
Paying Agent shall arrange that, where a further Tranche of Notes is issued which is intended to form a
single Series with an existing Tranche of Notes, the Notes of such further Tranche shall be assigned a
common code and 1SIN which are different from the common code and ISIN assigned to Notes of any other
Tranche of the same Series until at least the expiry of the Restricted Period applicable to the Notes of such
Tranche.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note held on behalf of Euroclear and/or Cedel
Bank each person {other than Euroclear or Cedel Bank) who is for the time being shown in the records of
Euroclear or of Cede! Bank as the holder of a particutar nominal amount of such Notes (in which regard any
certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or Cedel Bank as to the nominal amount of such Notes
standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of
manifest error) shall be treated by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) and
their agents as the holder of such nominat amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to
the payment of principal or interest on such nominal amount of such Notes, for which purpose the bearer of
the relevant Global Note shall be treated by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is
NWW) and their agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and
subject to the terms of the relevant Global Note and the expressions “Noteholder” and “holder of Notes™
and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

Any reference herein to Eurcclear and/or Cedel Bank shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to
include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system approved by the relevant Issuer, the
Principal Paying Agent and the Trustee.




FORM OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT

Set out below is the form of Pricing Supplement which will be completed for each Tranche of Notes issued
under the Programme.

[Date]

[UNITED UTILITIES PLC]
[NORWEB plc]
[NORTH WEST WATER FINANCE PLC]

[Title of relevant Series of Notes (specifying type of Notes)J

issued pursuant to the U.5.$2,000,000,0600 Euro Medium Term Note Programme

{Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions)

finclude whichever of the following apply or specify items as “not applicable"]

[The Notes constitute [commercial paper/shorter term debt securities/longer term debt
securities]* issued in accordance with regulations made under section 4 of the Banking Act
1987. The issuer of the Notes is not an authorised institution or a European authorised institution (as such
terms are defined in the Banking Act 1987 (Exempt Transactions) Regulations 1997). Repayment of the
principal and payment of any interest or premium in connection with the Notes has [not] been guaranteed
[by North West Water Limited, which is not an authorised institution or a European authorised institution]].**

*

ok

Include “commercial paper” if Notes must be redeemed before thelr first anniversary. Include “shorter term debt securities” if
Notes may not be redeemed before their first anniversary but must be redeemed before their third anniversary. Include “longer
term debt securities” if Notes may not be redeemed before their third anniversary.,

Unless otherwise permitted, text to be included for all Notes (including Notes denominated in Sterling) in respect of which the
issue proceeds are accepted by the Issuer in the United Kingdom.

Type of Notes

1.

2.

Interest/Payrnent Basis:

If Instalment Note, insert Instalment Amount(s)/
Instalment Date(s):

if Partly Paid Notes, insert amount of each
instaiment (expressed as a percentage of the
nominal amount of each Note)/due dates for
any subsequent instalments/consequences of
failure to pay/rate and method of calculating
interest:

If Dual Currency Notes, insert the Rate of
Exchange/calculation agent/fall back
provisions/person at whose option Specified
Currency is to be payable:

Description of the Notes

5.

Notes to be represented on issue by a
Temporary Global Note or a Permanent Global
Note:

Provisions for exchange of Temporary Global
Notes:
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[Fixed Rate/ Floating Rate/ Zero Coupon/ Indexed
Redemption Amount/ Indexed Interest/ Dual
Currency/ Partly-Paid/ Instalment/ Combination/
Other]

[lnsert details]

[Insert details]

[The Rate(s) of Exchange is the exchange rate(s) or
Pasis of calculating the exchange rate(s) to be
used in determining the amounts of principal and/
or interest payable in the Specified Gurrencies]

[Temporary/Permanent] Glabal Note

[Exchangeable for Permanent Global Note]
[Exchangeable into Definitive Notes upon [specify
notice period]] [other)




7.  Provisions for exchange of Permanent Global
Notes:

8. (a) Coupons to be attached to Notes in

definitive form:

Talons for future Coupons to be attached
to Notes in definitive form:

(b)

{c)

Date(s) on which the Talons mature:
Series Number:

Tranche Number:

o)
(&)

If forming part of an existing Series, details
of the Series (including the date, if any, on
which the Notes become fungible):

10. Nominal Amount of Notes to be issued:

{a
(o)

Aggregate nominal amount of Series (if
more than one issue for the Series):

Specified Currency (or Currencies in the
case of Dual Currency Notes):

{©

(d) Specified Denomination(s):

11. Issue Price:

12. lIssue Date:

13. Interest Commencement Date:

14. Automatic/optional  conversion  from  one

Interest/Payment Basis to another:

Provisions relating to interest (if any) payable
Fixed Rate Notes
15. (a) Fixed Rate(s) of Interest:

{b) Fixed interest Date(s):

Broken Amounts:

©

Zero Coupon Notes
16. {a) Accrual Yield:

(0)
{c)

Reference Price:

Other formula or basis for determining
Amortised Face Amount:

Floating Rate Notes or Indexed Interest Notes

17. (a) Specified Period(s) or specified Interest
Payment Date(s):

Minimum Rate of Interest {if any):

)
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Exchangeable into Definitive Notes |if requested by
the holder upon not less than 60 days’ notice/only
upon an Exchange Event]

[Yes/No)

[Yes/No]

[give details]
[
[

jnumber and other details]

t]

[Issue Date/other]

[insert details)

[ ] per cent. per annum

[If interest is payable other than annually, amend
Congdition 5(a)(iv) and Condition B(a)vii), I
applicable)

[specify dates on which payable and amounts]

[insert details]
[insert details]

linsert details}

[NB: specify either a period or periods if Floating
Rate Convention is used or a specific date or dates
if any other Business Day Convention is used]

[l




(©
@

(e

@

Maximum Rate of Interest (if any):

Business Day Convention:

Additional Business Centres:

Day Count Fractions:

Other terms relating to the method of
calculating interest:

Floating Rate Notes

18. (a)
{b)

(c}

(@)

(&)

Margin{s):

Manner in which Rate of Interest is to be
determined:

if ISDA Determination:

() Floating Rate Option:

(i) Designated Maturity:

(i} Reset Date(s):

If Screen Rate Determination:

(i Reference Rate:

(il Interest Determination Date:
{iiy Relevant Screen Page:

If Rate of Interest to be calculated
otherwise than by reference to (c) or (d)
above insert details, including Rate of
Interest/Margin/fall back provisions:

Indexed Interest Notes

19.

Index/Formula:

Provisions regarding payments

20. Definition of “Payment Day” for the purpose of
Conditions if different from that set out in
Condition 8(f):

Provisions regarding Redemption/Maturity
21. Maturity Date:

[}

[Floating Rate/Following Business Day/Modified
Following Business Day/Preceding Business Day/
other convention — insert details)

[]

[Actual/365 or Actual/Actuall/
[Actual/385 (Fixed))/

{Actual/360)/

[30/360 or 380/360 or Bond Basis)/
[BCE/360 or Eurobond Basis)

linsert details)

[plus/minus] [ ] per cent. per annum

(ISDA Determination/ Screen Rate Determination/
other — insert details]

linsert details of the index to which amounts
payable in respect of interest are linked and/or the
formula to be used in determining the rate of
interest, together with details of the calculation
agent and the fallback provisions)

linsert details]




22,

(d)

23.

24,

{a) Redemption at Issuer’'s option:

If Yes, insert Optional Redemption
Date(s)/ Optional Redemption Amount{s):

() Redemption at Noteholder’s option:

If Yes, insert Optional Redemption
Date(s)/ Optional Redemption Amount(s):

{¢) Minimum Redemption Amount/ Higher
Redemption Amount:

Other terms applicable on redemption:

Final Redemption Amount for each Note,
including the method, if any, of calculating the
same:

Early Redemption Amount for each Note
payable on redemption for taxation reasons or
on an Event of Default and/or the method, if
any, of calculating the same:

[No/Yes]
[]

[No/Yes]
[l

[l

[]

linsert amount or details including party
responsible for calculation NB — fall back
provisions must be inserted]

insert amount or details including  party

responsitie for calcufation]

General provisions applicable to this issue of Notes

25,

26.

27.

28.

29.
30.

31.
32.

33,

Redenomination and/or Exchange applicable:

Other terms or special conditions:

Details of additional/ alternative clearing system
approved by the issuer, the Principal Paying
Agent and the Trustee:

Whether TEFRA D or TEFRA C rules applicable
or TEFRA rules not applicable:

Additional selling restrictions:

Method of distribution:

Stabilising Dealer/Manager:
{a) Notes fo be listed:
(o) Stock Exchange(s):
Ratings:

Redenomination [not] applicable
Exchange [not] applicable

[ Redenomination is applicable, any provisions
necessary to deal with floating rate interest
calculation (including alternative reference rates})]

[insert details)

[insert details]

[TEFRA D/TEFRA C/TEFRA not applicable]

[insert details]

[Non-syndicated] [Syndicated - please insert

management group detaifs here]
[insert details/None]
[Yes/Noj

London Stock Exchange [Other — insert details)

[As Offering Circular/other — specify}




34. [Notes in respect of which the issue proceeds
are accepted by the lIssuer in the United
Kingdom and which are fo be listed. The fext
set out below may be deleted if the Issuer is
relying on any of Reguilation 13(4)(c) through to
(9]

The Issuer confirms that it;

(8 has complied with its obligations under the relevant rules (as defined in the Banking Act 1987
(Exempt Transactions) Regulations 1997) in relation to the admission to and continuing listing of
the Programme and of any previous issues made under it and listed on the same exchange as
the Programme;

(b} will have complied with its obligations under the relevant rules in refation to the admission to
listing of such Notes by the time when such Notes are so admitted; and

{c) has not, since the last publication, if any, in compliance with the relevant rules of information
about the Programme, any previous issues made under it and listed on the same exchange as
the Programme, or the Notes, having made all reasonable enquiries, become aware of any
change in circumstances which could reasonably be regarded as significantly and adversely
affecting its ability to meet its obligations as Issuer in respect of the Notes as they fall due.

ISIN: [ ]
Common Code: [ ]

linsert here any other relevant codes, such as CUSIP and CINS codes]

Acceptance on behaif of the Issuer of the terms of the Pricing Supplement
For and on behalf of

[Insert name of relevant Issuer]

35. Listing:

The above Pricing Supplement comprises the details required to list this issue of Notes pursuant to the
listing of United Utilities PLC, NORWER pic and North West Water Finance PLG's U.S.$2,000,000,000
Euro Medium Term Note Programme (as from [insert issue date for the Notes]) for which purpose it is
hereby submitted.

Citibank, N.A.

(as Principal Paying Agent)]

If the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies any modification to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes as
described herein, it is envisaged that, to the extent that such modification relates only to Conditions 1, 5, 7,
8, 9 (except Condition 9(b)), 13, 14, 15, 16 {insofar as such Notes are not listed on any stock exchange) or
18, they will not necessitate the preparation of supplementary Listing Particulars. If the Terms and
Conditions of the Notes of any Series are to be modified in any other respect, supplementary Listing
Particulars will be prepared, if appropriate.




TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The following are the Terms and Conditions of the Notes which will be incorporated by reference inta each
Global Note (as defined below) and each definitive Note, in the latter case only if permitted by the relevant
stock exchange (if any) and agreed by the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer at the time of issue but, if
not so permitted and agreed, such definitive Note will have endorsed thereon or attached thereto such
Terms and Conditions. The applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to any Tranche of Notes may specify
other terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the
following Terms and Conditions, replace or modify the following Terms and Conditions for the purpose of
such Notes. The applicable Pricing Supplement (or the refevant provisions thereof) will be endorsed upon,
or attached to, each Global Note and definitive Note, Reference should be made to “Form of the Notes” for
a description of the content of Pricing Supplements which will include the definitions of certain terrms used
in the following Terms and Conditions and/or will specify which of such terms are to apply in relation to the
refoevant Notes.

This Note is one of a Series (as defined below) of Notes issued by United Utilities PLC, NORWEB plc or
North West Water Finance PLC (“NWW”) (each an “Issuer” and, together, the “|ssuers”} constituted by a
Trust Deed (such Trust Deed as medified and/or supplemented and/or restated from time to time, the
“Trust Deed”) dated 13 October, 1998 made between the lssuers, North West Water Limited (the
“Guarantor”) as guarantor of Notes issued by NWW and The Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c. (the
“Trustee”, which expression shall inciude any successor as trustee).

References herein to the “Notes” shall be references to the Notes of this Series and shall mean:

{  inrelation to any Notes represented by a global Note (a “Global Note™), units of the lowest Specified
Denormination in the Specified Currency;

(it any Global Nots; and
(i) any definitive Notes issued in exchange for a Global Note.

References herein to the “relevant Issuer” shall be to the Issuer of the Notes named as such in ithe
applicable Pricing Supplement (as defined below).

The Notes, the Receipts (as defined below) and the Coupons (as defined below) have the benefit of an
Agency Agreement (such Agency Agreement as amended and/or supplemented and/or restated from time
to time, the “Agency Agreement”) dated 13 October, 1998 and made between the [ssuers, the Guarantor,
Gitibank, N.A. as issuing and principal paying agent and agent bank {the “Principal Paying Agent”, which
expression shall include any successor principal paying agent), the other paying agents named therein
(together with the Principal Paying Agent, the “Paying Agents”, which expression shall include any
additional or successor paying agents) and the Trustee.

Interest bearing definitive Notes (unless otherwise indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement) have
interest coupons (“Coupons”) and, if indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement, talens for further
Coupons (“Talons”) attached on issue. Any reference herein to Coupons or coupons shall, unless the
context otherwise requires, be deemed to include a reference to Talons or talons. Definitive Notes
repayable in instalments have recsipts (“Receipts”) for the payment of the instalments of principal (other
than the final instalment) attached on issue. Global Notes do not have Receipts, Coupons or Talons
attached on issue.

The Pricing Supplement for this Note (or the relevant provisions thereof) is attached to or endorsed on this
Note and supplements these Terms and Conditions and may- specify other terms and conditions which
shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with these Terms and Conditions, replace or
modify these Terms and Conditions for the purposes of this Note. References to the “applicable Pricing
Supplement” are to the Pricing Supplement (or the relevant provisions thereof) attached to or endorsed on
this Note. :

The Trustee acts for the benefit of the holders for the time being of the Notes (the "Noteholders™, which
expression shall, in relation to any Notes represented by a Global Note, be construed as provided belowy),
the holders of the Receipts (the “Receiptholders”) and the holders of the Coupons {the “Couponholders”,
which expression shall, unless the context otherwise requires, include the holders of the Talons), in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.




As used herein, “Tranche” means Notes which are identical in all respects (including as to listing) and
“Series” means a Tranche of Notes together with any further Tranche or Tranches of Notes which are (i)
expressed to be consolidated and form a single series and (i) identical in all respects (including as to listing)
except for their respective Issue Dates, Interest Commencement Dates and/or lssue Prices.

Copies of the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement and the applicable Pricing Supplement are available for
inspection during normal business hours at the registered office for the time being of the Trustee (being at
12 October, 1998 at Princes House, 95 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7LY) and at the specified office of
each of the Paying Agents save that, if this Note is an unlisted Note of any Seties, the applicable Pricing
Supplement will only be available for inspection by a Noteholder holding cne or more unlisted Notes of that
Series and such Noteholder must produce evidence satisfactory to the Trustee or, as the case may be, the
relevant Paying Agent as to its holding of such Notes and identity. The Noteholders, the Receiptholders and
the Couponholders are deemed to have notice of, and are entitled to the benefit of, all the provisions of the
Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement and the applicable Pricing Supplement which are applicable to them,
The statements in these Terms and Conditions include summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed
provisions of the Trust Deed and the Agency Agreement.

Words and expressions defined in the Trust Deed or the Agency Agreement or used in the applicable
Pricing Supplement shall have the same meanings where used in these Terms and Conditions uniess the
context otherwise requires or unless otherwise stated and provided that, in the event of incongistency
between the Trust Deed and the Agency Agreement, the Trust Deed will prevail and, in the event of
inconsistency between the Agency Agreement or the Trust Deed and the applicable Pricing Supplement,
the applicable Pricing Supplement will prevail.

1. Form, Denomination and Title

The Notes are in bearer form and, in the case of definitive Notes, serially numbered, in the Specified
Currency and the Specified Denomination(s). Notes of one Specified Denomination may not be exchanged
for Notes of another Specified Denomination.

This Note is a Fixed Rate Note, a Floating Rate Note, a Zero Coupon Note, an Indexed Interest Note, an
Indexed Redernption Amount Note, an Instalment Note, a Dual Currency Note or a Partly Paid Nate, or a
combination of any of the foregoing, depending upon the Interest/Payment Basis shown in the applicable
Pricing Supplement.

Definitive Notes are issued with Coupons attached, uniess they are Zero Coupon Notes in which case
references to Coupons and Couponholders in these Terms and Conditions are not applicable.

Subject as set out below, title to the Notes, Receipts and Coupons will pass by delivery. The relevant
Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW), any Paying Agent and the Trustee will (except as
otherwise required by law) deem and treat the bearer of any Note, Receipt or Coupon as the absolute
owner thereof (whether or not overdue and notwithstanding any notice of ownership or writing therecn or
notice of any previous loss or theft thereof) for all purposes but, in the case of any Global Note, without
prejudice to the provisions set out in the next succeeding paragraph.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note held on behalf of Morgan Guaranty Trust
Company of New York, Brussels office, as operator of the Euroclear System ("Euroclear”) and/or Cedel
Bank, société anonyme (“Gedel Bank”), each person (other than Euroclear or Cedel Bank) who is for the
time being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Cedel Bank as the holder of a particular nominal amount
of such Notes {in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or Cedel Bank as to
the nominal amount of such Notes standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding
for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor
(where the relevant Issuer is NWW), the FPaying Agents and the Trustee as the holder of such nominal
amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the payment of principal or interest on
such nominal amount of such Notes, for which purpose the bearer of the relevant Global Note shall be
treated by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW), any Paying Agent and the
Trustee as the holder of such noeminal amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to the terms of
the relevant Global Note and the expressions “Noteholder” and “holder of Notes” and related expressions
shall be construed accordingly.

Notes which are represented by a Global Note will be transferable only in accordance with the rules and
procedures for the time being of Euroclear and Cede! Bank, as the case may be. References to Euroclear
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and/or Cedel Bank shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any
additional or alternative clearing system approved by the relevant lssuer, the Principal Paying Agent and the
Trustee.

2. Status of the Notes

The Notes and any relative Receipts and Coupons are direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and (subject
to the provisions of Condition 4) unsecured obligations of the relevant Issuer and rank pari passu among
themselves and {subject as aforesaid and save for certain obligations required to be preferred by law)
equally with afl other unsecured obligations (other than subordinated obligations, if any) of the Issuer, from
time to time outstanding.

3. The Guarantee

The payment of principal, premium (if any) and interest in respect of the Notes and all other moneys payable
by NWW under or pursuant to the Trust Deed has been unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the
Guarantor in the Trust Deed {the “Guarantee”). The obligations of the Guarantor under the Guarantee are
direct, unconditionat, unsubordinated and (subject to the provisions of Condition 4) unsecured obligations
of the Guarantor and (subject as aforesaid and save for certain obligations required to be preferred by law)
rank equally with all other unsecured obligations {other than subordinated obligations, if any) of the
Guarantor, from time to time outstanding.

4. Negative Pledge

So long as any of the Notes remains putstanding (as defined in the Trust Deed) neither the relevant Issuer
nor the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) will create or permit to subsist any mortgage, charge,
pledge, lien or other form of security interest upon the whole or any part of its undertaking, revenues or
assets, present or future, to secure payment of any present or future Relevant Indebtedness {as defined
below) of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any Subsidiary (as
defined in the Trust Deed) of either the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor
or to secure any guarantes or indemnity in respect thereof, without at the sarme time according fo the Notes
or, as the case may be, the Guarantee, to the satisfaction of the Trustee, the same security as is created or
subsisting to secure any such Relevant Indebtedness, guarantee or indemnity, or such other security as the
Trustee shall in its absolute discretion deem not materially less beneficial to the interests of the Noteholders
or as shall be approved by an Extraordinary Resolution (as defined in the Trust Deed) of the Noteholders.

“Relevant Indebtedness” means any present or future indebtedness {whether being principal, premium or
interest) for borrowed money (other than indebtedness for borrowed money with an initial maturity falling 20
years or more after the issue of the Notes and having a maximum principal amount outstanding at any time
not exceeding the greater of £250,000,000 and 20 per cent. of Adjusted Capital and Reserves (as defined
in Condition 12) or indebtedness for borrowed money which has a stated maturity not exceeding one year)
which is in the form of, or represented or evidenced by, bonds, notes, debentures, debenture stock, loan
stock or other securities, whether issued for cash or i whole or in part for a consideration other than cash
and which, with the agreement of the relevant issuer, are quoted, listed, dealt in or traded on a stock
exchange or over the counter or other recognised securities market (whether or not distributed by way of
private placement).

5. ECU Notes
{(a) Application of this Condition

This Condition only applies if the Notes are denominated or payable in ECU.
(o) Value and composition of the ECU

Subject to Condition 8(e), the ECU in which the Notes are denominated or payable ("ECU”) will be
the same as the ECU, as referred to in Article 109g of the Treaty establishing the European
Communities, as amended by the Treaty on European Union {such first-mentioned Treaty as so
amended, the “Treaty”) and as defined in Council Regulation (EC) No 3320/94, that is from time
to time used as the unit of account of the European Communities (the “EC”). Changes to the
ECU may be made by the EC in which event the ECU will change accordingly. References to the
ECU shall be deemed to be references to the ECU as so changed from time to time.
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(c) Provisions applicable from the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union

Notwithstanding the other provisions of these Terms and Conditions, on and after the
Commencement Dale:

() all payments in respect of the Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons will be made solely in
euro, including payments of interest in respect of periods commencing before the
Commencement Date, as though references in the Notes to ECU were to euro;

(i) payments will be made in euro by credit or transfer to a euro account {or any other account
to which euro may be credited or transferred) specified by the payee or, at the option of the
payee, by a euro cheque;

(i) references in these Terms and Conditions to “ECU Settlement Day” shall be read as
references to any day on which the TARGET system (as defined in Condition B) is open;

{iv) if the Notes are Fixed Rate Notes and interest for any period ending on or after the
Commencement Date is required to be calculated for a period of less than one year, it wilt be
calculated on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed divided by 365 (or, if any of the
days elapsed falls in a leap year, the sum of (i) the number of those days falling in a leap year
divided by 366 and (i) the number of those days falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);

(v} if the Notes are Floating Rate Notes the applicable Pricing Supplement will specify any
relevant changes to the provisions relating to interest.

In this paragraph {c), “Commencement Date” means the start of the third stage of Eurcpean
economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty.

6. Redenomination and Exchange
(@) Redenomination

Where redenomination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as being applicable, the
relevant Issuer may, without the consent of the Trustee, the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and
the Couponholders, on giving prior notice to the Trustee, the Principal Paying Agent, Euroclear
and Cedel Bank and at least 30 days’ prior notice to the Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 186, elect that, with effect from the Redenomination Date specified in the notice, the
Notes shall be redenominated in euro.

The election will have effect as follows:

() the Notes and the Receipts shall be deemed to be redenominated in euro in the
denomination of euro 0.01 with a nominal amount for each Note and Receipt equal to the
nominal amount of that Note or Receipt in the Specified Currency, converted into euro at the
Established Rate, provided that, if the relevant Issuer determines, with the consent of the
Trustee and the Principal Paying Agent, that the then market practice in respect of the
redenomination in euro of internationally offered securities is different from the provisions
specified above, such provisions shall be deemed to be amended so as to comply with such
market practice and the relevant Issuer shall promptiy notify the Noteholders in accordance
with Condition 16, the stack exchange (if any) on which the Notes are listed and the Paying
Agents of such deemed amendments;

(i) save to the extent that an Exchange Notice has been given in accordance with paragraph (iv)
below, the amount of interest due in respect of the Notes will be calculated by reference to
the aggregate nominal amount of Notes presented (or, as the case may be, in respect of
which Coupons are presented) for payment by the relevant holder and the amount of such
payment shall be rounded down to the nearest eurc 0.01;

(i) it definitive Notes are required to be issued after the Redenomination Date, they shall be
issued at the expense of the relevant Issuer in the dencminations of euro 1,000, euro
10,000, euro 100,000 and (but only to the extent of any remaining amounts less than euro
1,000 or such smaller denominations as the Trustee and the Principal Paying Agent may
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approve) euro 0.01 and such other denominations as the Trustee and the Principal Paying
Agent shall determine and notify to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 16;

(iv) if definitive Notes have been issued prior to the Redenomination Date, al unmatured
Coupons denominated in the Specified Currency fwhether or not attached to the Notes} will
become void with effect from the date on which the relevant lssuer gives notice (the
“Exchange Notice”) that replacement euro-denominated Notes, Receipts and Coupons are
available for exchange (provided that such securities are so availablg) and no payments will
be made in respect of them. The payment obligations contained in any Notes and Receipts
so issued will also become void on that date although those Notes and Receipts will
continue to constitute valid exchange obligations of the relevant lssuer. New euro-
denominated Notes, Receipts and Coupons will be issued in exchange for Notes, Receipts
and Coupons denominated in the Specified Currency in such manner as the Trustee and the
Principal Paying Agent may specify and as shall be notified to the Noteholders in the
Exchange Notice. No Exchange Notice may be given less than 15 days prior to any date for
payment of principal or interest on the Notes;

() after the Redenomination Date, all payments in respect of the Notes, the Receipts and the
Coupons, other than payments of interest in respect of periods commencing before the
Redenomination Date, will be made solely in euro as though references in the Notes to the
Specified Currency were to euro. Payments will be made in euro by credit or transfer to a
suro account (or any other account to which euro may be credited or transferred) specified
by the payee or, at the option of the payee, by a euro cheque;

(vi) paragraph (B) of the definition of Business Day in Condition 7{p} shall read as follows:

“gither (1) in refation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on
which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in the principal
financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency {if other than London and
any Additional Business Centre and which, if the Specified Currency is New Zealand dollars,
shall be Auckiand) or (2} in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which the TARGET
system is open.”;

(vi) sub-paragraph (i} of the definition of Payment Day in Condition 8(f) shall read as follows: “in
relation to Notes denominated or payable in euro, a day on which the TARGET system is
open.”;

(viiij if the Notes are Fixed Rate Notes and interest for any period ending on or after the
Redenomination Date is required to be calculated for a period of less than one year, it will be
calculated on the basis of the actual number of days elapsed divided by 365 (or, if any of the
days elapsed falls in a leap year, the sum of (i} the number of those days falling in a leap year
divided by 366 and (i} the number of those days falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);

(ix) if the Notes are Floating Rate Notes the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies any relevant
changes to the provisions relating to interest.

Exchange

Where exchange is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as being applicable, the
relevant [ssuer may, without the consent of the Trustee, the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and
the Couponholders, on giving prior notice to the Trustee, the Principal Paying Agent, Euroclear
and Cedel Bank and not less than 30 days' prior notice to the Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 16, elect that, with effect from the Redencmination Date specified in the notice, the
Notes shall be exchangeable for Notes expressed to be denominated in euro in accordance with
such arrangements as the relevant lssuer may decide, with the consent of the Trustee and the
Principal Paying Agent, and as may be specified in the notice, including arrangements under
which Receipts and Coupons unmatured at the date so specified become void.
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Definitions
In this Condition, the following expressions have the following meanings:

“Established Rate” means the rate for the conversion of the Specified Currency (including
compliance with rules relating to roundings in accordance with applicable European Community
regulations) into euro established by the Council of the European Union pursuant to Article 1 0gsl{4)
of the Treaty;

“euro” means the currency to be introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic
and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty;

“Redenomination Date” means the date (being, in the case of interest bearing Notes, a date for
payment of interest) specified as such by the relevant Issuer in the notice given to the Noteholders
pursuant to paragraph (a) or, as the case may be, (b} above and which falls on or after the start of
the third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty or, if the
country of the Specified Currency is not one of the countries then participating in such third stage,
which falls on or after such later date as it does so participate and which falls before the date on
which the Specified Currency ceases to be a sub-division of the euro; and

“TARGET system” means the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express
Transfer (TARGET) System.

7. Interest

(a)

(b}

Interest on Fixed Rate Notes

Each Fixed Rate Note bears interest on its outstanding nominal amount {or, if it is a Partly Paid
Note, the amount paid up) from (and including) the Interest Comrmencement Date at the rate(s)
per annum equal to the Fixed Rate(s) of Interest payable in arrear on the Fixed Interest Date(s} in
each year and on the Maturity Date if that does not fall on a Fixed interest Date.

Payments of interest on any Fixed Interest Date will, if so specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, amount to the Broken Amount(s) so specified.

If interest is required to be calculated for a period of other than a full year, such interest shall be
calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each.

Interest on Floating Rate Notes and Indexed Interest Notes
{ Interest Payment Dates

Each Floating Rate Note and Indexed Interest Note bears interest on its outstanding nominal
amount (or, if it is a Partly Paid Note, the amount paid up) from (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date and such interest will be payable in arrear on either:

{A) the Interest Payment Datefs) in each vyear specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplerment; or

(B) if no express Interest Payment Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, each date (each an “Interest Payment Date”) which falls the number of
months or other pericd specified as the Specified Period in the applicable Pricing
Supplement after the preceding Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first
Interest Payrment Date, after the Interest Commencement Date.

Such interest will be payable in respect of each Interest Period {which expression shall, in
these Terms and Conditions, mean the period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date
(or the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Payment
Date).

If a business day convention is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement and (x} if there
is no numerically corresponding day on the calendar month in which an Interest Payment
Date should occur or (y} if any Interest Payment Date would otherwise {all on a day which is
not a Business Day, then, if the business day convention specified is:
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(1)

{2)

3)

4

in any case where Specified Periods are specified in accordance with Gondition
7(b)(i)(B) above, the Floating Rate Corvention, such Interest Payment Date (i) in the case
of (x) above, shall be the last day that is a Business Day in the relevant month and the
provisions of (B} below shall apply mutatis mutandis or (i) in the case of {y) above, shall
be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day uniess it would thereby fall into
the next calendar month, in which event (A) such Interest Payment Date shall be
brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day and (B) each subsequent
Interest Payment Date shall be the last Business Day in the month which falls the
Specified Period after the preceding applicable Interest Payment Date; or

the Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be
postponed to the next day which is a Business Day; or

the Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be
postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the
next calendar month, in which event such Interest Payment Date shall be brought
forward 1o the immediately preceding Business Day; or

the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be brought
forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.

In this Condition, “Business Day” means a day which is both:

{A)

B)

a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in
London and any Additional Business Centre specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement; and

either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than ECU, a day
on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in the
principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if other than
London and any Additional Business Centre and which, if the Specified Currency is
New Zealand dollars, shall be Auckland) or (2) in relation to any sum payable in ECU, an
ECU Settlement Day {(as defined in the 1998 ISDA Definitions, as amended and
updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes, published by the
International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. (the “|SDA Definitions”) but not
including part (b) of such definition).

Rate of Interest

The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes and Indexed
interest Notes will be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement.

A)

ISDA Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where ISDA Determination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplernent as the
manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each
Interest Period will be the relevant ISDA Rate plus or minus (as indicated in the
applicable Pricing Supplement) the Margin (if any). For the purposes of this sub-
paragraph (A), “ISDA Rate” for an Interest Period means a rate equal to the Floating
Rate that would be determined by the Principal Paying Agent under an interest rate
swap transaction if the Principal Paying Agent were acting as Galculation Agent for that
swap transaction under the terms of an agreement incorporating the ISDA Definitions
and under which:

(1) the Floating Rate Option is as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement;

(2) the Designated Maturity is a period specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement;
and

(3) the relevant Reset Date is either () if the applicable Floating Rate Option is based
an the Lordon inter-bank offered rate (LIBOR) for a currency, the first day of that
interest Period or {i) in any other case, as specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement.




(i)

(iv)

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (A), “Floating Rate”, “Calculation Agent”, “Floating
Rate Option”, “Designated Maturity” and “Reset Date” have the meanings given to those
terms in the ISDA Definitions.

(B) Screen Rate Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where Screen Rate Determination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as
the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of interest for
each Interest Period will, subject as provided below, be either:

(1) the offered quotation: or

(2) the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005
being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations,

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate which appears or
appear, as the case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page as at 11.00 a.m. (London
time) on the Interest Determination Date in question plus or minus (as indicated in the
applicable Pricing Supplement) the Margin (if any), all as determined by the Principal
Paying Agent. If five or more of such offered quotations are available on the Relevant
Screen Page, the highest (or, if there is more than one such highest quotation, one only
of such quotations) and the lowest (or, if there is more than one such lowest quotation,
one only of such quotations) shall be disregarded by the Principal Paying Agent for the
purpose of determining the arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of such
offered quotations.

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for determining the Rate of Interest in the
event that the Relevant Screen Page is not available or if, in the case of (1) above, no
such quotation appears or, in the case of (2) above, fewer than three such offered
quotations appear, in each case as at the time specified in the preceding paragraph.

If the Reference Rate from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes is specified in
the applicable Pricing Supplement as being other than LIBOR, the Rate of Interest in
respect of such Notes will be determined as provided in the applicable Pricing
Supplement.

Minimum and/or maximum Rate of Interest

If the applicable Pricing Supplermnent specifies a Minimum Rate of Interest for any Interest
Period, then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Pericd
determined in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (i} above is less than such
Minimum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be such
Minimum Rate of Interest.

If the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies a Maximum Rate of Interest for any Interest
Period, then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period
determined in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (i) above is greater than such
Maximum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be such
Maximum Rate of Interest.

Determination of Rate of Interest and calculation of Interest Amounts

The Principal Paying Agent, in the case of Floating Rate Notes, and the Galculation Agent, in
the case of indexed Interest Notes, will at or as soon as practicable after each time at which
the Rate of Interest is to be determined, determine the Rate of Interest for the relevant
Interest Pericd. In the case of indexed Interest Notes, the Calculation Agent will notify the
Principal Paying Agent of the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period as soon as
practicable after calculating the same.

The Principal Paying Agent will calculate the amount of interest {the “Interest Amount”)
payable on the Floating Rate Notes or Indexed Interest Notes in respect of each Specified
Denomination for the relevant Interest Period. Each Interest Amount shall be calculated by
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(vi)

applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination, muitiplying such sum by the
applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resuitant figure to the nearest suiy-unit of
the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or
otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention.

“Day Count Fraction” means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest for any
interest Pericd:

iy if “Actual/365” or «pctual/Actual” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the
actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 {or, if any portion of that
Interest Period falls in a leap year, the sum of {A) the actual number of days in that
portion of the Interest Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual
number of days in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a non-leap year divided by
365);

() if “Actual/365 (Fixed)” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual
number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365;

{in if “Actual/360" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number of
days in the Interest Period divided by 360;

av) if “30/360", “360/360” or “Bond Basis” is specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, the number of days in the Interest Pericd divided by 380 (the number
of days to be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months
(unless (a) the last day of the Interest Period is the 31st day of a month but the first day
of the Interest Period is a day other than the 30th or 3ist day of a month, in which case
the month that includes that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-
day month, or (b) the last day of the Interest Period is the last day of the month of
February, in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be
lengthened to a 30-day month)); and

(v) if “30E/360" or “Eurobond Basis" is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the
number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be
calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months, without regard to
the date of the first day or last day of the Interest Period unless, in the case of an
Interest Period ending on the Maturity Date, the Maturity Date is the last day of the
month of February, in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be
lengthened to a 30-day month).

Notification: of Rate of Interest and Interest Amounts

The Principal Paying Agent will cause the Rate of Interest and each Interest Amount for each
Interest Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the relevant Issuer
and any stock exchange on which the relevant Floating Rate Notes or Indexed Interest
Notes are for the time being listed and notice thereof to be published in accordance with
Condition 16 as soon as possible after their determination but in no event later than the
fourth London Business Day (as defined in Condition 8(e)) thereafter. Each Interest Amount
and Interest Payment Date so notified may subsequently be amended (or appropriate
alternative arrangements made by way of adjustment) without prior notice in the event of an
extension or shortening of the Interest Period. Any such amendment will be promptly notified
to each stock exchange on which the relevant Floating Rate MNotes or Indexed Interest Notes
are for the time being listed and to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 186.

Determination or Calculation by Trustee

If for any reason at any relevant time the Principal Paying Agent or, as the case may be, the
Calculation Agent defaults in its obligation to determing the Rate of Interest or the Principal
Paying Agent defaults in its obligation to calculate any Interest Amount in accordance with
sub-paragraph (i)A) or (B) above or as otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, as the case may be, and in each case {iv) above, the Trustee shall determine
the Rate of Interest at such rate as, in its absolute discretion (having such regard as it shall
think fit to the foregoing provisions of this Condition, but subject always to any minimum or
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(c)

(d)

(e}

maxdmum Rate of Interest specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement), it shall deem fair
and reasonable in all the circumstances or, as the case may be, the Trustee shall calculate
the Interest Amount(s) in such manner as it shall deem fair and reascnable in all the
circumstances and each such determination or calculation shall be deemed to have been
made by the Principal Paying Agent or the Calculation Agent, as applicable.

{(vii} Certificates to be final

All certificates, communications, opinions, determinations, calculations, quotations and
decisions given, expressed, made or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this
Condition 7{b), whether by the Principal Paying Agent or, if applicable, the Calculation Agent
or the Trustee, shall (in the absence of wilful default, bad faith or manifest error) be binding
on the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW), the Principal
Paying Agent, the Calculation Agent (if applicable), the other Paying Agents and all
Noteholders, Receiptholders and Couponholders and (in the absence as aforesaid) no
liability to the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant lssuer is NWW), the
Noteholders, the Receiptholders or the Couponholders shall attach to the Principal Paying
Agent or, if applicable, the Calculation Agent or the Trustee in connection with the exercise
or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions pursuant to such provisions.

Interest on Dual Currency Notes

In the case of Dual Currency Notes, if the rate or amount of interest falls to be determined by
reference to an exchange rate, the rate or amount of interest payable shall be determined in the
manner specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Interest on Partly Paid Notes

in the case of Partly Paid Notes (other than Parlly Paid Notes which are Zero Coupon Notes),
interest will accrue as aforesaid on the paid-up neminal ameount of such Notes and otherwise as
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Accrual of interest

Each Note (or, in the case of the redemption of part only of a Note, that part oniy of such Note) will
cease to bear interest (if any) from the date for its redemption unless, upon due presentation
thereof, payment of principal is improperly withheld or refused. In such event, interest will
continue to accrue as provided in the Trust Deed.

Payments

(a)

o)

Method of payment
Subject as provided below:

i payments in a Specified Currency other than ECU will be made by transfer to an account in
the relevant Specified Currency (which, in the case of a payment in Japanese Yen to a non-
resident of Japan, shall be a non-resident account) maintained by the payee with, or by a
cheque in such Specified Currency drawn on, a bank in the principal financial centre of the
country of such Specified Currency (which, if the Specified Currency is New Zealand dollars,
shall be Auckland); and

{iy payments in ECU will be made by credit or transfer to an ECU account specified by the
payee.

Payments will be subject in all cases to any fiscal or other laws and regulations applicable thereto
in the place of payment, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 10.

Presentation of definitive Notes, Receipts and Coupens

Payments of principal in respect of definitive Notes will {subject as provided below) be mads in the
manner provided in paragraph (a) above only against presentation and surrender (or, in the case
of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of definitive Notes, and payments of interest in
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respect of definitive Notes will (subject as provided below) be made as aforesaid only against
presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of
Coupons, in each case at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States
(which expression, as used herein, means the United States of America (including the States and
the District of Columbia, its territories, its possessions and other areas subject to its jurisdiction)).

Payments of instalments of principal (if any) in respect of definitive Notes, other than the final
instalment, will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner provided in paragraph (a)
above against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due,
endorsement) of the relevant Receipt in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Payment of
the final instalment will be made in the manner provided in paragraph (a) above only against
presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the
relevant Note in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Each Receipt must be presented for
payment of the relevant instalment together with the definitive Note to which it appertains.
Receipts presented without the definitive Note to which they appertain do not constitute valid
obligations of the relevant Issuer. Upon the date on which any definitive Note becomes due and
repayable, unmatured Receipts (f any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become
void and no payment shall be made in respect thereof.

Fixed Rate Notes in definitive form (other than Dual Currency Notes or Indexed Notes) should be
presented for payment together with all unmatured Coupons appertaining thereto (which
expression shall for this purpose include Coupons falling to be issued on exchange of matured
Talons), failing which the amount of any missing unmatured Coupon {or, in the case of payment
not being made in full, the same proportion of the amount of such missing unmatured Goupon as
the sum so paid bears to the sum due) will be deducted from the sum due for payment. Each
amount of principal so deducted will be paid in the manner mentioned above against surrender of
the relative missing Coupon at any time before the expiry of 10 years after the Relevant Date (as
defined in Condition 10) in respect of such principal (whether or not such Coupon would
otherwise have become void under Condition 11) or, if later, five years from the date on which
such Coupon would ctherwise have become due, but in no event thereafter.

Upen any Fixed Rate Note in definitive form becoming due and repayable prior to its Maturity
Date, all unmatured Talons (if any) appertaining thereto will become void and no further Coupons
will be issued in respect thereof.

Upcn the date on which any Floating Rate Note, Dual Currency Note or Indexed Interest Note in
definitive form becomes due and repayable, unmatured Coupeons and Talons (if any) relating
thereto (whether or not attached)} shall become void and no payment or, as the case may be,
exchange for further Coupons shall be made in respect thereof.

If the due date for redemption of any definitive Note is not a Fixed Interest Date or an Interest
Payment Date, interest (if any) accrued in respect of such Note from (and including) the preceding
Fixed Interest Date or Interest Payment Date or, as the case may be, the Interest
Commencement Date shall be payable only against surrender of the relevant definitive Note.

Payments in respect of Global Notes

Payments of principal and interest (if any) in respect of Notes represented by any Global Note will
{subject as provided below) be made in the manner specified above in relation to definitive Notes
and otherwise in the manner specified in the relevant Global Note against presentation or
surrender, as the case may be, of such Global Note at the specified office of any Paying Agent
outside the United States. A record of each payment made against presentation or surrender of
any Global Note, distinguishing between any payment of principal and any payment of interest,
will be made on such Globat Note by the Paying Agent to which it was presented and such record
shall be prima facie evidence that the payment in question has been made.

General provisions applicable to payments

The holder of a Globa! Note shall be the only person entitled to receive payments in respect of
Notes represented by such Global Note and the relevant Issuer or, as the case may be, the
Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) will be discharged by payment to, or to the order
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of, the holder of such Global Note in respect of each amount so paid. Each of the persons shown
in the records of Euroclear and Cedel Bank as the beneficial holder of a particular nominal
armount of Notes represented by such Global Note must lock solely to Euroclear and Cedel Bank,
as the case may be, for his share of each payment so made by the relevant Issuer or, as the case
may be, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) to, or to the order of, the holder of
such Global Note,

Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (g) above, if any amount of principal and/or interest
in respect of Notes is payable in U.S. dollars, such U.S. doltar payments of principal and/or
interest in respect of such Notes will be made at the specified office of a Paying Agent in the
United States if:

()  the relevant issuer has appointed Paying Agents with specified offices outside the United
States with the reasonable expectation that such Paying Agents would be able to make
payment in U.S. dollars at such specified offices outside the United States of the full amount
of principal and interest on the Notes in the manner provided above when due;

(i} payment of the full amount of such principal and interest at all such specified offices outside
the United States is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange controls or other similar
restrictions on the full payment or receipt of principal and interest in U.S. dollars; and

{ii} such payment is then permitted under United States law without involving, in the opinion of
the refevant issuer and {(where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor, adverse tax
consequences to the relevant lssuer or {(where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor.

Payment in & Component Currency

If any payment of principal or interest in respect of a Note, Receipt or Coupon is to be made in
ECU and, on the relevant due date, the ECU is used neither as the unit of account of the EC nor
as the currency of the European Union, the Trustee shall, without liability on its part and without
having regard to the interests of individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Coupocnhelders and
after consultation, if practicable, with the relevant issuer, choose a currency which was a
component of the ECU when the ECU was most recently used as the unit of account of the EC
{the “chosen currency”) in which all payments due on that due date with respect to such Notes,
Receipts and Coupons shall be made. Notice of the chosen currency selected by the Trustee
shall, where practicable, be published in accordance with Condition 16. The amount of each
payment in such chosen currency shall be computed on the basis of the equivalent of the ECU in
that currency, determined as set out in this paragraph (e), as of the fourth London Business Day
prior to the date on which such payment is due. For the purposes of this paragraph (g), the
expression “London Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday} on which
banks and foreign exchange markets are open for business in London.

Without prejudice to the preceding paragraph, on the first London Business Day from which the
ECU is used neither as the unit of account of the EG nor as the currency of the European Union,
the Trustee shall, without liability on its part and without having regard to the interests of individual
Noteholders, Receiptholders or Goupornholders and after consultation, if practicable, with the
relevant lssuer, choose a currency which was a component of the ECU when the ECU was most
recently used as the unit of account of the EC (also the “chosen currency”) in which all payments
with respect to Notes, Receipts and Coupons having a due date prior thereto but not yet
presented for payment are to be made. The amount of each payment in such chosen currency
shall be computed on the basis of the equivalent of the ECU in that currency, determined as set
out in this paragraph (g), as of such first London Business Day.

The equivalent of the ECU in the relevant chosen currency as of any date (the "Day of Valuation™)
shall be determined on the following basis by the Principal Paying Agent. The component
currencies of the ECU for this purpose (the “Components”) shall be the currency amounts which
were components of the ECU as of the last date on which the ECU was used as the unit of
account of the EC.

The equivalent of the ECU in the chosen cuirency shall be calculated by first aggregating the U.S.
dollar equivalents of the Components, and then, using the rate used for determining the U.S.
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dollar equivalent of the Component in the chosen currency as set forth below, calculating the
equivalent in the chosen currency of such aggregate amount in U.S. dollars.

The U.S. dollar equivalent of each of the Components shall be determined by the Principal Paying
Agent on the basis of the middle spot delivery quotations prevailing at 11.00 a.m. (London time)
on the Day of Valuation, as obtained by the Principal Paying Agent from one or more leading
banks as selected by the Principal Paying Agent in the country of issue of the Component in
question.

If the official unit of any Component is altered by way of combination or subdivision, the number
of units of that Component shall be divided or multiplied in the same proportion. If two or more
Components are consolidated into a single currency, the amounts of those Components shall be
replaced by an amount in such single currency equal to the sum of the amounts of the
consolidated Components expressed in such single currency. If any Component is divided into
two or more currencies, the amount of that Component shall be replaced by amounts of such
two or more currencies each of which shall be equal to the amount of the former Component
divided by the number of currencies into which that Component was divided.

If no direct quotations are available for a Component as of a Day of Valuation from any of the
banks selected by the Principal Paying Agent for this purpose because foreign exchange markets
are clogsed in the country of issue of that Component or for any other reason, the most recent
direct guotations for that Component obtainable by the Principal Paying Agent shall be used in
computing the U.S. dollar equivalent of the ECU on guch Day of Valuation, provided, however,
that such most recent quatations may be used only if they were prevailing in the country of issue
of each Component not more than two London Business Days bhefore such Day of Valuation. I
the most recent guotations obtained by the Principal Paying Agent are those which were so
prevailing more than two London Business Days before such Day of Valuation, the Principal
Paying Agent shall determine the U.S. dollar equivalent of such Component on the basis of cross
rates derived from the middle spot delivery quotations for such Component and for the U.S. dollar
prevailing at 11.00 a.m. {London time) on such Day of Valuation, as obtained by the Principal
Paying Agent from cne or more leading banks, as selected by the Principal Paying Agent, in a
country other than the country of issue of such Component. If such most recent guotations
obtained by the Principal Paying Agent are those which were so prevailing not more than two
London Business Days before such Day of Valuation, the Principal Paying Agent shall determine
the U.S. dollar equivalent of such Component on the basis of such cross rates if it judges that the
U.S. dollar equivalent so calculated is more representative than the U.S. dollar equivalent
calculated on the basis of such most recent direct quotations. If there is more than one market for
dealing in any Component by reason of foreign exchange regulations or for any other reason, the
market to be referred to in respect of such Component shall be that upon which a non-resident
issuer of securities denominated in such Component would ordinarily purchase such Component
in order to rmake payments in respect of such securities.

All choices and determinations made by the Trustee or the Principal Paying Agent for the
purposes of this paragraph (e) shall be at its sole discretion and shall, in the absence of manifest
error, be conclusive for all purposes and binding on the relevant lssuer, the Guarantor {where the
relevant Issuer is NWwW) and all Noteholders, Receiptholders and Couponhotders.

Whenever a payment is to be made in a chesen currency as provided in this paragraph (), such
chosen currency shall be deemed to be the Specified Currency for the purposes of the other
provisions of this Condition.

From the start of the third stage of the European economic and monetary union, all payments in
respect of Notes denominated or payable in ECU will be payable in euro at the rate of one euro for
one ECU. This paragraph 8(g}) will not result in a payment in 2 Component in such circumstances.

Payment Day

If the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon is not a Payment
Day, the holder thereof shall not be entitled to payment until the next following Payment Day in the
relevant place and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment in respect of such
delay. For these purposes, “Payment Day” means any day which (subject to Condition 11) is:
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() a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in the
relevant place of presentation;

(i) a Business Day (as defined in Condition 7(b)(i); and

(i) in relation to Notes denominated or payable in ECU, a day on which payments in ECU can
be settled by commerciat banks and in foreign exchange markets in the city in which the
relevant account for payment is located.

Interpretation of principal and interest

Terms and Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to include, as
applicable:

() any additionat amounts which may be payabie with respect to principal under Condition 10;
(i) the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes:

(i) the Early Redemption Amount of the Notes:

(iv) the Optional Redemption Amount(s} (if any) of the Notes;

{v) in relation to Notes redeemabie in instalments, the Instalment Amounts;

{vi} in relation to Zero Coupon Notes, the Amortised Face Amount {as defined in Condition 9(e));
and

{vi} any premium and any other amounts which may be payable by the lssuer under or in respect
of the Notes,

Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to interest in respect of the Notes shall be deemed
to include, as applicable, any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to interest
under Condition 10,

9. Redemption and Purchase

(a)

{b)

Redemption at maturity

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and in each case cancelled as specified below, each
Note will be redeemed by the relevant Issuer at its Final Redemption Amount specified in, or
determined in the manner specified in, the applicable Pricing Supplement in the relevant
Specified Currency on the Maturity Date.

Redemption for tax reasons

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the refevant lssuer in whole, but not in part, at any
time (if this Note is neither a Floating Rate Note nor an Indexed Interest Note) or on any Interest
Payment Date (if this Note is either a Floating Rate Note or an Indexed Interest Nots}, on giving
not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the Trustee and the Principal Paying Agent and,
in accordance with Condition 16, the Noteholders {which notice shall be irrevocable), if the
relevant Issuer satisfies the Trustee immediately before the giving of the notice referred to above
that on the occasion of the next payment due under the Notes, the relevant Issuer has or will
become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided or referred to in Condition 10 or the
Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) would be unable for reasons outside #ts control to
procure payment by the relevant Issuer and in making payment itself would be required to pay
such additional amounts, in each case as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws or
regulations of the United Kingdom or any political subdivision of, or any authority in, or of, the
Unitedt Kingdomn having power to tax, or any change in the application or official interpretation of
such laws or regutations, which change or amendment becomes effective on or after the lssue
Date of the first Tranche of the Notes, provided that no such notice of redemption shall be given
earlier than 90 days prior to the earliest date on which the relevant Issuer or, as the case may be,
the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) would be obliged to pay such additional
amounts were a payment in respect of the Notes then due.




(c)

(d)

Prior to the publication of any notice of redemption pursuant to this Condition, the relevant Issuer
shall deliver to the Trustee a certificate signed by two Directors of the relevant Issuer or, as the
case may be, two Directors of the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) stating that the
relevant lssuer is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a staternent of the change or
amendment (as referred to above) which has occurred (irrespective of whether such change or
amendrnent is then effective) describing the facts leading thereto and accompanied by an opinion
in a form satisfactory to the Trustee of independent legal advisers of recognised standing to the
effect that such change or amendment has occurred {irespective of whether such change or
amendment is then effective) and the relevant Issuer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor
(where the relevant Issuer is NWW} has or will become obliged to pay such additional amounts as
a result of such change or amendment. The Trustee shall be entitled to accept such certificate
and opinion as sufficient evidence of the satisfaction of the conditions precedent set out above, in
which event they shall be conclusive and binding on the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the
Couponhoelders.

Notes redeemed pursuant to this Cendition 9(b) will be redeemed at their Early Redemption
Amount referred to in paragraph () below together (if appropriate) with interest accrued to (but
excluding) the date of redemption.

Redemption at the option of the relevant Issuer

If the relevant Issuer is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as having an option to
redecrn, the relevant issuer may, having given:

) not less than 30 nor more than 90 days’ notice to the Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 18; and

i) not less than 15 days before the giving of the notice referred to in (i), notice to the Trustee
and the Principal Paying Agent;

(which notices shall be irrevocable and shall specify the date fixed for redemption), redeem all or
some only of the Notes then outstanding on any Optional Redemption Date and at the Optional
Redemption Amount(s) specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable
Pricing Supplement together, if appropriate, with interest accrued to {but excluding) the relevant
Optional Rederption Date. Any such redemption must be of a nominal amount egual to the
Minimum Redemption Amount or a Higher Redemption Arnount. In the case of a partial
redemption of Notes, the Notes to be redeemed (“Redeemed Notes”) will be selected individually
by lot, in the case of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes, and in accordance with
the rules of Eurcclear and/or Cedel Bank, in the' case of Redeemed Notes represented by a
Global Note, not more than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption (such date of selection
being hereinafter called the “Selection Date™). In the case of Redeemed Notes represented by
definitive Notes, a list of the serial numbers of such Redeemed Notes will be published in
accordance with Condition 16 not less than 15 days prior to the date fixed for redemption. The
aggregate norminal amount of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes shall bear the
same proportion to the aggregate nominal amount of all Redesmed Notes as the aggregate
naminal amount of definitive Notes outstanding bears to the aggregate nominal amount of the
Notes outstanding, in each case on the Selection Date, provided that, if hecessary, appropriate
adjustments shall be made 1o such nominal amounts 1o ensure that each represents an integral
multiple of the Specified Denomination. No exchange of the relevant Global Note will be permitted
during the period from {and including) the Selection Date to (and including) the date fixed for
redemption pursuant to this paragraph (c) and notice to that effect shall be given by the relevant
lssuer to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 16 at least five days prior to the Selection
Date.

Redemption at the option of the Noteholders

If the Noteholders are specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as having an option to
redeern, upon the holder of any Note giving to the relevant Issuer in accordance with Condition
16 not less than 15 nor more than 30 days’ notice the relevant lssuer will, upon the expiry of such
notice, redeem, subject to, and in accordance with, the terms specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, in whole (but not in part), such Note on the Optional Redemption Date and at the
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Optional Redemption Amount together, if appropriate, with interest accrued to (but excluding) the
Optional Redemption Date.

If this Note is in definitive forrn, to exercise the right to require redemption of this Note the holder
of this Note must deliver such Note at the specified office of any Paying Agent at any time during
normal business hours of such Paying Agent falling within the notice period, accompanied by a
duly completed and signed notice of exercise in the form {for the time being current) obtainable
from any specified office of any Paying Agent {(a “Put Notice”) and in which the holder must
specify a bank account {or, if payment is required to be made by cheque, an address) to which
payment is to be made under this Condition.

Early Redemption Amounts

For the purpose of paragraph (b) above and Condition 12, the Notes will be redeemed at the Early
Redemption Amount calculated as follows:

(i inthe case of Notes with a Final Redemption Amount equal 1o the Issue Price, at the Final
Redemption Amount thereof;

(i) in the case of Notes (other than Zero Coupon Notes but including Instalment Notes and
Partly Paid Notes) with a Final Redemption Amount which is or may be less or greater than
the Issue Price or which is payable in a Specified Currency other than that in which the Notes
are denominated, at the amcunt specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the
applicable Pricing Supplemeant or, if no such amount or manner is so specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement, at their nominal amount; or

(i inthe case of Zero Coupon Notes, at an amount {the “Amortised Face Amount™) equal to the
sum of:

(A the Reference Price; and

(B) the product of the Accrual Yield (compounded annually) being applied o the Reference
Price from (and including) the lssue Date to (but excluding) the date fixed for redemption
or (as the case may be) the date upon which such Notes become due and repayable.

Where such calculation is to be made for a period which is not a whole number of years, it
shall be made on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each or
such other calculation basis as may be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Instalments

Instaiment Notes will be redeemed in the Instalment Amounts and on the Instalment Dates. In the
case of early redemption, the Eariy Redemption Amount will be determined pursuant to
paragraph (g) above.

Partly Paid Notes

Partly Paid Notes will be redeemed, whether at maturity, early redemption or otherwise, in
accordance with the provisions of this Condition and the applicable Pricing Supplement.
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(h) Purchases

The relevant lssuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any Subsidiary (as
defined in the Trust Deed) of the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the
Guarantor may at any time purchase Notes (provided that, in the case of definitive Notes, all
unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons appertaining thersto are purchased therewith) at any
price in the open market or otherwise. If purchases are made by tender, tenders must be
available to all Noteholders alike. Such Notes may be held, reissued, resold or, at the option of the
relevant Issuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor, surrendered to any Paying
Agent for canceliation.

i} Cancellation

All Notes which are redesmed will forthwith be cancelled (together with all unmatured Receipts,
Coupons and Talons attached thereto or surrendered therewith at the time of redemption). All
Notes so cancelled and Notes purchased and cancelled pursuant to paragraph (h) above
{together with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons cancelled therewith) shall be
forwarded to the Principal Paying Agent and cannot be reissued or resold.

(i Late payment on Zero Coupon Notes

If the amount payable in respect of any Zero Goupon Note upon redemption of such Zero
Coupon Note pursuant to paragraph (&), (b), (c) or (d} above or upon its becoming due and
repayable as provided in Condition 12 is improperly withheld or refused, the amount due and
repayable in respect of such Zero Coupon Note shall be the amount calculated as provided in
paragraph {e)ii} above as though the references therein to the date fixed for the redemption or
the date upon which such Zere Goupon Note becomes due and repayable were replaced by
references to the date which is the earlier of:

il the date on which all amounts due in respect of such Zero Coupon Note have been paid;
and

{iy five days after the date on which the full amount of the moneys payable in respect of such
Zero Coupon Notes has been received by the Principal Paying Agent or the Trustee and
notice to that effect has been given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 16,

10. Taxation

All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes, Receipts and Coupoens by the relevant lssuer
or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor will be made without withholding
or deduction for or on account of any present or future taxes or duties of whatever nature imposed or levied
by or on behalf of the United Kingdom or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having
power to tax unless such withholding or deduction is required by law. In such event, the relevant Issuer or,
as the case may be, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) will pay such additional amounts as
shall be necessary in order that the net amounts received by the holders of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons
after such withholding or deduction shall equal the respective amounts of principal and interest which
would otherwise have been receivable in respect of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons, as the case may be,
in the absence of such withholding or deduction; except that no such additional amounts shall be payable
with respect to any Note, Receipt or Coupon presented for payment:

{ii by or on behalf of a holder who is liable for such taxes or duties in respect of such Note, Receipt or
Coupon by reason of his having some connection with the United Kingdom other than the mere
holding of such Note, Receipt or Coupon; or

(i} in the United Kingdom; or

fit to, or to a third party on behalf of, a holder who would not be liable to such withholding or deduction if
such holder had made a declaration of non-residence or similar claim for exemption to any authority of
or in the United Kingdom; or

(v) more than 30 days after the Relevant Date (as defined below) except to the extent that the holder
thereof would have been entitled to an additional amount on presenting the same for payment on such
thirtieth day assurning that day to have been a Payment Day.
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As used herein, the “Relevant Date” means the date on which such payment first becomes due, except
that, if the full amount of the moneys payable has not been duly received by the Trustee or the Principal
Paying Agent on or prior to such due date, it means the date on which, the fuli amount of such moneys
having been so received, notice to that effect is duly given to the Notehclders in accordance with
Condition 16.

11. Prescription

The Notes, Receipts and Coupons will become void unless presented for payment within a period of 10
years {in the case of principal) and five years (in the case of interest) after the Relevant Date (as defined in
Condition 10} therefor.

There shall not be included in any Coupon sheet issued on exchange of a Talon any Coupon the claim for
payment in respect of which would be void pursuant to this Condition or Condition 8(b) or any Taton which
woeuld be void pursuant to Condition 8(b).

12. Events of Default

(8) The Trustee at its discretion may, and if so requested in writing by the holders of at least one-quarter in
principal amount of the Notes then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution of the
Noteholders shall, {but, in the case of the happening of any of the events mentioned in paragraphs (i},
(i), (v), (vi) and (vii) below in relation to the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is
NWW) and (i) to {(vii) below (inclusive} in relation to a Material Subsidiary, only if the Trustee shall have
certified in writing that such event is, in its opinion, materially prejudicial to the interests of the
Noteholders) give notice to the refevant Issuer that the Notes are, and they shall accordingly thereupon
become, immediately due and repayable at their Early Redemption Amount, together with accrued
interest as provided in the Trust Deed, if any of the following events shall occur and be continuing:

(i) if default is made by the relevant Issuer or {where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor for a
period of 14 days or more in the payment of any principal or interest due in respect of the Notes
or any of them; or

(i) if default is made by the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor in the
performance or observance of any material obligation, condition or provision binding upon it
under the Notes or the Trust Deed (other than any obligation for the payment of any principal or
interest in respect of the Notes) and, except where such default is, in the opinion of the Trustee,
not capable of remedy when no such continuation and notice as is hereinafter mentioned will be
required, such default continues for 30 days (or such longer period as the Trustee may permit}
after written notice thereof has been given by the Trustee to the relevant Issuer or, as the case
may be, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) requiring the same to be remedied; or

(i) (1) any indebtedness for moneys borrowed (as defined below) of the relevant Issuer, the
Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any Material Subsidiary or (2) any present or
future guarantee for, or indemnity in respect of, any indebtedness for moneys borrowed of any
person given by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any
Material Subsidiary where the relevant indebtedness for moneys borrowed when aggregated with
all other indebtedness for moneys borrowed in respect of which one or more other events
referred to in this paragraph (i) shall have occurred exceeds whichever is the greater of
£30,000,000 (or the equivalent in other currencies as determined by the Trustee) and two per
cent. of the Adjusted Capital and Reserves:

iy is not paid or repaid or honoured when due or within any applicable grace period; or

(i) is declared to be or becomes enforceable, redeemable or repayable prior to the due date for
payment thereof as a result of any actual default by the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where
the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any Material Subsidiary, as the case may be, or as a result of
an event of default (howsoever described) in relation thereto, unless such default or event of
default is waived or remedied (to the satisfaction of the Trustee) within thirty business days,

except, in any such case, where there is a bona fide dispute as to payment; or

{iv) if an order is made or a resolution is passed for the winding up of, or an administration order is
made in relation 1o, the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any
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{b)

v

(vi)

(vii}

(i)

Material Subsidiary (save, in the case of a Material Subsidiary, () with the prior consent of the
Trustee or the prior sanction of an Extraordinary Resolution for the purposes of or in connection
with an amalgamation or reconstruction, or (i) a voluntary solvent winding-up where surplus
assets are available for distribution}); or

if an encurnbrancer takes possession or an administrative or other receiver or an administrator is
appointed of the whole or any substantial part of the undertaking, property and assets of the
relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any Material Subsidiary or if a
distress, execution or other process is levied or enforced upon or sued out against the whole or
any substantial part of the assets of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer
is NWW) or any Material Subsidiary and, in the case of any of the foregoing events, is not
discharged within 60 days or such longer period as the Trustee may allow; or

if the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant lssuer is NWW) or any Material Subsidiary
is unable to pay its debts within the meaning of Section 123(2) of the Insolvency Act 1986; or

if the relevant lssuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or any Material Subsidiary
shall cease to carry on the whole or substantially the whole of its business, save in any case for
the purposes of amalgamation, merger, consolidation, reorganisation, reconstruction or other
similar arrangement (a) not involving or arising out of the insolvency of the relevant Issuer, the
Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or a Material Subsidiary and under which all or
substantially all of its assets are transferred to the relevant Issuer (in the case of the Guarantor
(where the relevant Issuer is NWW) or a Material Subsidiary) or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW)
the Guarantor {in the case of NWW or a Material Subsidiary} or one or more of the relevant
Issuer’s or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor's Subsidiaries or to a transferee or
transferees which is or are, or immediately upon such transfer become(s), a Materiat Subsidiary or
Material Subsidiaries provided that this exception (&) shall not apply where the transferor
company is the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant issuer is NWW) the Guarantor unless assets
comprising the major part by value of the assets owned by the relevant transferor company
immediately prior to such transfer are transferred to a single transferee company and
contemporaneously with such transfer (1) where the transferor company is the relevant Issuer
ty) such transferee company assumes (to the satisfaction of the Trustes) all the obligations of the
transferor company as principal debtor in respect of the Notes and (2) such transferor company or
(where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees (to
the satisfaction of the Trustee) the payment of all amounts payable by such transferee company
as the new principal debtor and (2) where the transferor company is the Guarantor, such
transferee company guarantees (to the satisfaction of the Trustee) the payment of all amounts
payable by NWW as the relevant Issuer in respect of the Notes or (b) under which all or
substantially alt of its assets are transferred to a third party or parties (whether associates ot not)
for full consideration on an arm’s length basis or (¢} the terms of which have previously been
approved by the Trustee in writing or by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Noteholders provided
that neither the relevant Issuer nor the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) nor any
Material Subsidiary shall be deemed to have ceased to carry on the whole or substantially the
whole of its business solely by reascn of any forced divestiture imposed by any government or
regulatory body or in consequence of the loss of the Appointment or the PES Licence; or

in the case of Notes issued by NWW, the Guarantee ceases to be, or is claimed by the Guarantor
not to be, in full force and effect.

For the purposes of this Condition:

“Accounts” means a consolidation of the annual statutory accounts of the relevant Issuer or (where
the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor and (in each case) its Subsidiary Undertakings as prepared,
audited and reported upcn by the Auditors in accordance with the historical cost convention method
as modified, if applicable, by the revaluation of land and buildings and otherwise in accordance with
United Kingdom generally accepted accounting practices and ptinciples;

“Adjusted Capital and Reserves” means at any time a sum equal to the aggregate of:

0

the amount paid up or credited as paid up on the issued share capital of the relevant Issuer or
(where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor; and
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the amounts standing to the credit of the capital and revenue reserves of the relevant Issuer or
(where the relevant lssuer is NWW) the Guarantor and its Subsidiary Undertakings {(including any
share premium account and capital redemption reserve) after adding thereto any balance
standing to the credit of the profit and loss account;

all based on the consolidated balance sheet of the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant lssuer is
NWW) the Guarantor and its Subsidiary Undertakings as contained in the then latest Accounts but
after:

(ii)

(iv)

\

(vi)

{vii)
{viti)

(i}

)

excluding all sums set aside for taxation (whether in respect of deferred taxation or otherwise);

making such adjustments as may be appropriate in respect of any variation in the amount of such
share capital or such reserves subsequent to the relevant balance sheet date and so that for this
purpose share capital allotted shall be deemed to have been issued and if any issue or proposed
issue of shares by the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) for
cash has been underwritten then such shares shall be deemed to have been issued and the
amount (including any premium) of the subscription moneys payable in respect thereof {not being
moneys payable later than six months after the date of allotment) shall to the extent so
underwritten be deemed to have been paid up on the date when the issue of such shares was
underwritten (or, if such underwriting was conditional, on the date when it became unconditional
in all respects);

making such adjustments as may be appropriate in respect of any distributions declared,
recommended or made by the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor {where the relevant lssuer is
NWW] or any of their Subsidiary Undertakings out of profits earned up to and including the date of
such balance sheet to the extent that such distribution is not provided for in such batance sheet;

making such adiustrments as may be appropriate in respect of any variation in the interests of the
relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the refevant [ssuer is NWW) in their respective Subsidiary
Undertakings (including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any acquisition of a
new Subsidiary Undertaking or disposal of an interest which causes an undertaking to cease to
be a Subsidiary Undertaking) since the date of such balance sheet:

if the calculation is required for the purposes of or in connection with a transaction under or in
connection with which any company is to become or cease to be a Subsidiary Undertaking of the
relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW), making all such adjustments
as would be appropriate if such transaction had been carried into effect;

excluding all minerity interests and other third party interests in Subsidiary Undertakings of the
relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW);

deducting any balance to the debit of the profit and loss account;
deducting all amounts (if any) attributable to goodwill or any other intangible assets;

excluding such part of the interests of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor {where the relevant
Issuer is NWW) or any of their respective Subsidiary Undertakings in an associated company (as
defined in the Trust Deed), not being a Subsidiary Undertaking of the relevant Issuer or the
Guarantor (where the relevant lIssuer is NWW), as is attributable to any post-acquisition
undlistributed profits and reserves, but including such interests at original cost or, if lower, book
value;

deducting (if not otherwise excluded) such amount as the Auditors shall consider appropriate in
respect of any deferred taxation liabilities on the net amount by which the fixed assets of the
relevant Issuer or the Guarantor {where the relevant Issuer is NWW) and their respective
Subsidiary Undertakings shall have been written up as a result of any revaluation, and for this
purpose a transfer of any assets by the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer
is NWW) to any of their respective Subsidiary Undertakings, or by any of their respective
Subsidiary Undertakings to the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is
NWW) or another of their respective Subsidiary Undertakings, for a consideration in excess of the
book value thereof shall be deemed to be a writing up of the book value of such asset as a result
of a revaluation;
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(xi} deducting therefrom all amounts attributable (whether by way of share or loan capital or
otherwise) to the interests of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is
NWW) and their respective Subsidiary Undertakings {(other than Excluded Subsidiaries) in
Excluded Subsidiaries; and

(xii} making such other adjustments (if any} as the Auditors may consider appropriate;
and so that no amount shall be includad or excluded more than once in the same calculation;

The Trust Deed provides that, if there is a material change in generally accepted United Kingdom
accounting practices or principles as adopted and applied in the Accounts, the Auditors will, at the request
of the Trustee, after consultation with the Issuer, restate the Accounts in accordance with generally
accepted United Kingdom accounting practices and/or principles applied in respect of the Accounts for the
year ended 31st March, 1998, and the Adjusted Capital and Reserves shall be calculated accordingly.

The certificate of the Auditors as to the armount of the Adjusted Capitat and Reserves at any time shall, in
the absence of manifest error, be conclusive and binding on all parties.

“Appointment” means the Instrument of Appointment dated 24 August, 1989 under Sections 11 and 14 of
the Water Act 1989 (as varied from time to time) appointing Nornth West Water Limited as a water
undertaker and sewerage undertaker;

«auditors” means the auditors for the time being of the relevant Issuer or, in the event of their being unable
or unwilling to carry out any action requested of them pursuant to the Trust Deed, such other firm of
chartered accountants as the Trustee may in writing nominate or approve for the purpose;

“Excluded Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary of the relevant Issuer or {(where the relevant lssuer is NWW)
the Guarantor {i} which is a single purpose company whose principal assets and business are constituted
by the ownership, acquisition, development and/or operation of an asset, (i) none of whose liabilities in
respect of the financing of such ownership, acquisition, development and/or operation of an asset is
subject to any recourse whatsoever to any member of the relevant Group other than an Excluded
Subsidiary, and (i) which has been designated as such by the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant Issuer
is NWW) the Guarantor by written notice to the Trustee; provided that the relevant Issuer or (where the
relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor may give written notice to the Trustee at any time that any Excluded
Subsidiary is no longer an Excluded Subsidiary, whereupon it shall cease 10 be an Excluded Subsidiary;

“Group™ means the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor and their respective
Subsidiaries and “member of the Group” shall be construed accordingly;

“indebtedness for moneys borrowed” means any present or future indebtedness {being principal, premium
or interest) for or in respect of (a) all moneys borrowed, {b) iabilities under or in respect of any acceptance or
acceptance credit and (¢) all notes, bonds, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock or other securities
offered, issued or distributed whether by way of public offer, private placing, acquisition consideration or
otherwise and whether issued for cash or in whole or in part for a consideration other than cash which is not
for the time being owned by the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor or any
of their respective Subsidiary Undertakings and which does not amount to Project Finance Indebtedness;

“Material Subsidiary” means any Subsidiary of the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the
Guarantor (not being an Excluded Subsidiary) () whose gross revenues earned from outside the Group or
whose gross assets (in each case consolidated in respect of a Subsidiary which itself has Subsidiaries, and
in each case attributable to the relevant Issuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor) all as
shown in the latest audited accounts {consolidated or, as the case may be, unconsolidated) of such
Subsidiary represent 20 per cent. or more of the consolidated gross revenues or, as the case may be,
consolidated gross assets {in each case attributable to the shareholders of its ultimate parent) of the
relevant lssuer or {where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor and in each case their respective
Subsidiary Undertakings (other than Excluded Subsidiaries) all as shown in the latest Accounts; or {ii) to
which is transferred all or substantially all of the business, undertaking or assets of a Subsidiary which
immediately prior to such transfer is a Material Subsidiary, whereupon the transferor Subsidiary shall
immediately cease to be a Material Subsidiary and the transferee Subsidiary shall immediately become a
Material Subsidiary under this sub-paragraph (i) but shall cease to be a Material Subsidiary upon
publication of its next audited accounts unless it would then be a Material Subsidiary under (i) above. A
report by the Auditors (whether or not addressed to the Trustee} that in their opinion a Subsidiary is or is not
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or was or was not at any particular time a Material Subsidiary shall, in the absence of manifest error, be
conclusive and binding on all parties;

“PES Licence” means the public electricity supply licence granted by the Secretary of State for Energy to
NORWER plc;

“Project Finance Indebtedness” means any indebtedness for moneys borrowed to finance the ownership,
acquisition, development and/cr operation of an asset (whether or not an asset of a member of the Group):

(@) which is incurred by an Excluded Subsidiary; or

(b} inrespect of which the person or persons to whom any such indebtedness for moneys borrowed is or
may be owed by the relevant borrower (whether or not a member of the Group) has or have no
recourse whatsoever to any member of the Group (other than an Excluded Subsidiary) for the
repayment thereof other than: :

() recourse for amounts limited to the cash flow or net cash flow (other than histcric cash flow or
historic net cash flow) from such asset; and/or

(il recourse for the purpose only of enabling amounts to be claimed in respect of such indebtedness
for moneys borrowed in an enforcement of any encumbrance given by such borrower over such
asset or the income, cash flow or other proceeds deriving therefrom {or given by any shareholder
or the like in the borrower over its shares or the like in the capital of the borrower) to secure such
indebtedness for moneys borrowed, provided that (1) the extent of such recourse to such
borrower is limited solely to the amount of any recoveries made on any such enforcement, and (2)
such person or persons is/are not entitled, by virtue of any right or claim arising out of or in
connection with such indebtedness for moneys borrowed, to commence proceedings for the
winding up or dissolution of the borrower or to appoint or procure the appointment of any
receiver, trustee or similar person or officer in respect of the borrower or any of its assets (save for
the assets the subject of such encumbrance); and/or

{iiy recourse to such borrower generally, or directly or indirectly to a mermber of the Group, under any
form of assurance, undertaking or support, which recourse is limited to a claim for damages
{other than liguidated damages and damages required to be calculated in a specified way) for
breach of an obligation by the person against whom such recourse is available (not being a
payment obligation or an obligation to procure payment by another or an indemnity in respect
thereof or any obligation to comply or to procure compliance by another with any financial ratios
or other tests of financial condition};

"Subsidiary” means a subsidiary within the meaning of Section 736 of the Companies Act 1985; and

“Subsidiary Undertaking” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Secticn 258 of the Companies Act 1985
(but, in relation to each Issuer or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor, shall exclude any
Subsidiary Undertaking whose accounts are not included in the then latest Accounts, or (in the case of a
Subsidiary Undertaking which has first become a Subsidiary Undertaking of a member of the Group since
the date as at which such Accounts were prepared) would not have been so included or consolidated if it
had become so on or before that date).

13. Replacement of Notes, Receipts, Coupons and Talons

Should any Note, Receipt, Coupon or Talon be lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed, it may be
replaced at the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent upon payment by the claimant of such costs
and expenses as may be incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to evidence and indemnity
as the Issuer may reasonably require. Mutilated or defaced Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons must be
surrendered before replacements will be issued.

14. Agents
The names of the initial Paying Agents and their initial specified offices are set out below,

The Issuer is entitled to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying Agent and/or appoint additional or
other Paying Agents and/or approve any change in the specified office through which any Paying Agent
acts, provided that:




{) there will at all times be a Principal Paying Agent;

(il so long as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange, there will at all imes be a Paying Agent with a
specified office in such place as may be required by the rules and regulations of the relevant stock
exchange; and

(i) there wil at all times be a Paying Agent with a specified office in a city approved by the Trustee in
continental Europe.

In acting under the Agency Agreement, the Paying Agents act solely as agents oi‘ the relevant Issuer and
(where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor and, in certain circumstances specified therein, of the
Trustee and do not assume any obligation to, or relationship of trust with, any Noteholders.

15. Exchange of Talons

On and after the Fixed Interest Date or the Interest Payment Date, as appropriate, on which the final
Coupon comprised in any Coupon sheet matures, the Talon (if any) forming part of such Coupon sheet may
be surrendered at the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent or any other Paying Agent in exchange
for a further Coupon sheet including (if such further Coupon sheet does not include Coupons to {and
including) the final date for the payment of interest due in respect of the Note to which it appertains) a
further Talon, subject to the provisions of Condition 11.

16. Notices

All notices regarding the Notes will be deemed to be validly given if published in a leading English language
daily newspaper of general circulation in London. 1t is expected that such publication will be made in the
Financial Times in London. The relevant Issuer shall also ensure that notices are duly published in a manner
which complies with the rules and regulations of any stock exchange on which the Notes are for the time
being listed. Any such notice will be deemed to have been given on the date of the first publication or,
where required to be published in more than one newspaper, on the date of the first publication in all
required newspapers. If publication as provided above is not practicable, notice will be given in such other
manner, and will be deemed to have been given on such date, as the Trustee may approve.

Unti! such time as any definitive Notes are issued, there may, so long as any Global Notes representing the
Notes are held in their entirety on behalf of Euroclear and/or Cedel Bank, be substituted for such
publication in such newspapetr(s) the delivery of the relevant notice to Euroclear and/or Cedel Bank for
communication by them to the holders of the Notes and, in addition, for so long as any Notes are listed on a
stock exchange and the rules of that stock exchange so require, such notice will be published in a daily
newspaper of general circulation in the place or places required by that stock exchange. Any such notice
shall be deemed to have been given to the holders of the Notes on the seventh day after the day on which
the said notice was given to Euroclear and/or Cedel Bank,

Notices to be given by any Noteholder shall be in writing and given by lodging the same, together (in the
case of any Note in definitive form) with the relative Note or Notes, with the Principal Paying Agent. Whilst
any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note, such notice may be given by any holder of a Note to the
Principal Paying Agent through Euroclear and/or Cedel Bank, as the case may be, in such manner as the
Principal Paying Agent and Eurcclear and/or Cedel Bank, as the case may be, may approve for this
purpose.

17. Meetings of Noteholders, Modification and Waiver

The Trust Deed contains provisicns for convening meetings of the Noteholders to consider any matter
affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary Resolution of a modification of the
Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons or any of the provisions of the Trust Deed. Such a mesting may be
convened by the relevant Issuer or the Trustes and shall be convened by the relevant lssuer at the request
of Noteholders holding not less than five per cent. in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being
outstanding. The gquorum at any such meeting for passing an Extraordinary Resohition is one or mare
persons holding or representing a clear majority in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being
outstanding, or at any adjourned meeting one or more persons being or representing Noteholders whatever
the nominal amount of the Notes so held or represented, except that at any meeting the business of which
includes the medification of certain provisions of the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons or the Trust Deed
(including modifying the date of maturity of the Notes or any date for payment of interest thereon, reducing
or cancelling the amount of principal or the rate or amount of interest payable in respect of the Notes or
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altering the currency of payment of the Notes, the Receipts or the Coupons), the quorum shall be one or
more persons holding or representing not less than two-thirds in nominal amount of the Notes for the time
being outstanding, or at any adjourned such mesting one or more persons holding or representing not less
than one-third in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding. An Extraordinary Resolution
passed at any meeting of the Noteholders shall be binding on all the Noteholders, whether or not they are
present at the meeting, and on all Receipthelders and Couponholders.

The Trustee may agree, without the consent of the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders, to:

{)  any modification of any of the provisions of these Terms and Conditions, the Notes, the Receipts,
the Coupons or the Trust Deed which is not in the opinion of the Trustee materially prejudicial to
the interests of the Noteholders; or

(il  any modification of the provisions of any of these Terms and Conditions, the Notes, the Receipts,
the Coupons or the Trust Deed which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to
correct a manifest error or to comply with mandatory provisions of law,

The Trustee may also agree, without the consent of the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponhoiders, to
the waiver or authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of any of these Terms and Ceonditions or any
of the provisions of the Trust Deed or determine, without any such consent as aforesaid, that any Event of
Default or Potential Event of Default (as defined in the Trust Deed) shall not be treated as such, which in any
such case is not, in the opinicn of the Trustee, materially prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders.

In connection with the exercise by it of any of its trusts, powers, authorities or discretions (including, but
without limitation, any modification, waiver, authorisation or determination), the Trustee shall have regard to
the general interests of the Noteholders as a class but shall not have regard to any interests arising from
circumstances particutar to individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders (whatever their
number} and, in particular, but without limitation, shall not have regard to the consequences of such
exercise for individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders {whatever their number) resulting
from their being for any purpose domiciled or resident in, or otherwise connected with, or subject to the
jurisdiiction of, any particular territory and the Trustee shall not be entitled to require, nor shall any
Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder be entitled to claim, from the relevant lssuer, the Guarantor
(where the relevant issuer is NWW) or any other person any indemnification or payment in respect of any tax
consequence of any such exercise upon individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Coupeonholders except,
in the case of the relevant Issuer and (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor, to the extent
provided for in Condition 10 and/or any undertaking given in addition to, or in substitution for, Condition 10
pursuant 1o the Trust Deed.

Any such moedification shall be binding on the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and, the Couponholders
and, unless the Trustee otherwise agrees, any such modification shall be notified to the Noteholders in
accordance with Condition 16 as soon as practicable thereafter.

18. Indemnification of the Trustee and its Contracting with the relevant Issuer and (where the
relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor

The Trust Deed ceontains provisions for the indemnification of the Trustee and for its relief from
responsibility, including provisions relieving it from taking action unless indemnified to its satisfaction.

The Trust Deed also contains provisions pursuant to which the Trustee is entitled, inter alia, (i) to enter into
business transactions with the relevant Issuer and/or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the Guarantor
and/or any of the Guarantor’s other Subsidiaries and to act as trustee for the holders of any other securities
issued or guaranteed by, or relating to, the relevant Issuer and/or (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) the
Guarantor and/or any of the Guarantor’s other Subsidiaries, (i) to exercise and enforce its rights, comply
with its obligations and perform its duties under or in relation to any such transactions or, as the case may
be, any such trusteeship without regard to the interests of, or consequences for, the Noteholders,
Receiptholders or Couponholders, and (jii} to retain and not be liable to account for any profit made or any
other amount or benefit received thereby or in connection therewith.

19. Further Issues

The relevant Issuer is at liberty from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders
or the Couponholders to create and issue further notes having terms and conditions the same as the Notes
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or the same in all respects save for the amount and date of the first payment of interest thereon and so that
the same shall be consolidated and form a single Series with the outstanding Notes. The Trust Deed
contains provisions for convening a single meeting of the Noteholders and the holders of Notes of other
Series in certain circumstances where the Trustee so decides.

20. Substitution
The Trustee may agree, without the consent of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders or the Couponholders,
to the substitution at any time or times:

() of any Subsidiary of United Utilities PLC in place of United Utilities PLC as principal debtor,
subject to the irrevocable and unconditional guarantee of United Utilities PLC; or

(i} of any Subsidiary of NORWEB plc in place of NORWEB plc as principal debtor, subject to the
irrevocable and unconditional guarantee of NORWEB plc; or

(i) of the Guarantor in place of NWW (in which case the Guarantee of the Guarantor shall cease and
determine) or any other Subsidiary of the Guarantor as principal debtor subject, in the case of any
such other Subsidiary of the Guarantor, to the irrevocable and unconditional guarantee of the
Guarantor.,

Any such substitution shall also be subject to the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed, including a provision
to the effect that the Trustee shall have received confirmation in writing from each rating agency which, at
the request of the relevant Issuer, shall have assigned a credit rating to the Notes that such substitution by
itself and the circumstances pertaining to the substitution will not result in a downgrading of the then
current credit rating assigned to the Notes by such rating agency.

21. Governing Law

The Trust Deed (including the Guarantee), the Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons are governed by, and
shall be construed in accordance with, English law.




USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from each issue of Notes will be applied by the retevant Ilssuer for its general corporate
purposes.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUERS AND THE GUARANTOR

United Utilittes PLC (the “Company”) is the holding company of a multi-utifity business in the UK that
provides services for the benefit of approximately seven million persons primarily in Notth West England
and participates in operating contracts to serve approximately 32 million persons outside the UK. The
Company, previously called North West Water Group PLC, was incorporated and registered in England
and Wales on 1 April, 1989 and provides water and wastewater services in North West England through its
wholly owned subsidiary, North West Water Limited {“North West Water”). In November 1995, North West
Water Group PLC acquired all the issued share capital of NORWEB plc, the distributor and supplier of
electricity in North West England, to form a multi-utility group. Shortly after the acquisition of NORWEB plc,
North West Water Group PLC changed its name to United Utilities PLC.

United Utilities is organised into six operating businesses: water and wastewater (North West Water),
clectricity distribution {Norweb Distribution), electricity and gas supply (ENERGH), telecommunications
{Norweb Communications), facilities management and business operations cutsourcing services (Vertex)
and water, wastewater and electricity distribution and supply outside England and Wales (United Ultilities
International).

WATER AND WASTEWATER
The Water Industry in England and Wales

The UK government privatised the provision of water supply and wastewater services in England and Wales
in 1989. At privatisation, pursuant t¢ the Water Act 1989 (the “Water Act”), the functions of each existing
water authority relating to water supply (except in areas where those functions were carried out through
statutory water companies) and the provision of wastewater services were transferred on 1 September,
1989 to regional water and wastewater companies. In the case of North West England the relevant
company was North West Water Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of North West Water Group PLC (as
the Company was then called). At privatisation, certain of the water authorities” other functions, including
pollution control, water resource management, fisheries, flood protection and alleviation and land drainage
were transferred to other government agencies and now all fall within the co-ordination of the Environment
Agency, the government environmental agency in England and Wales.

The Water Industry Act 1991 (the “Water Industry Act”), which consolidated the Water Act, provides that
each company engaged in water supply or wastewater services must be licensed by the Secretary of State
for the Envirecnment or by the Director General of Water Services (“DGWS"), in accordance with a general
authorisation given by the Secretary of State for the Environment.

North West Water
Water services
Water supply

North West Water draws water from 143 reservoirs with storage capacities ranging from less than 30
megalitres to almost 85,000 megalitres. The total storage capacity of these reservoirs is approximately
455,000 megalitres. North West Water enjoys the advantage of having the majority of its direct reserveirs in
the uplands of the Lake District, an area of North West England, where the average annual rainfall is more
than twice the national average for England, and the Pennine hills on the eastern edge of North West
England, whereas the major population centres in North West England are in the lowlands of Merseyside,
Greater Manchester, Lancashire and Cheshire. As a result, a significant proportion of water put into supply
flows freely by gravity rather than being pumped.

Water treatment and distribution

North West Water operates 147 primary water treatment works with maximum throughputs varying from
less than 0.03 megalitres per day to nearly 640 megalitres per day. All water supplied receives treatment
with a view to meeting the appropriate standards determined by the Drinking Water Inspectorate, the
government regulator of drinking water quality in England and Wales. The type of treatment varies from
disinfection only for some borehole and stream sources, to more complex processes using coagulation,
clarification, and activated carbon abscrption and ozonation for socme lowland waters. North West Water
has incorporated a number of new treatment processes including membrane microfiltration. North West
Water monitors water quality through a programme in which samples are analysed regularly for both
microbiological and chemical parameters.
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The average 2,100 megalitres of water distributed per day by North West Water to its customers is
distributed through a network of approximately 40,500 kilometres of agueducts, trunk and distribution
mains and 497 service reservoirs.

Wastewater services
Collection

Under its licence, North West Water is responsible for the collection, treatment and disposal of domestic
sewage, trade effluent and surface water. Surface water, mainly from groundwater infiltration and highway
drainage, forms a major part of the wastewater of which North West Water must dispose. Where
practicable, separate sewers are provided for sewage and surface water. North West Water operates and
maintaing approximately 32,700 kilometres of sewers.

Treatment and disposal

North West Water's wastewater works provide a range of treatments which includes primary, enhanced
primary, secondary activated sludge, secondary biclogical, tertiary activated slsdge and tertiary biological.
Treated liquid final effluent is discharged into rivers, estuaries or via sea outfalls. Of the total sewage sludge
(the solid residue of the treatment process) remaining after the treatment of wastewater, approximately 48
per cent. is disposed of to sea, approximately 33 per cent. on agricultural land and approximately 19 per
cent. in landfill. In accordance with the European Union Urban Waste Water Treatment Directive, the
disposal of sludge into the sea must cease by 1 January, 1999. North West Water has cormmissioned the
construction of a sludge processing centre at Shell Green, Widnes, which will be capable of processing,
mainly by incineration, approximately 86,000 tonnes of dry solids per annum. North West Water belioves
that it is in materfal compliance with all current environmental regulatory requirements and anticipates that it
will be in material compliance with the European Union Urban Waste Water Treatment Directive by
1 January, 1999.

As required by the European Union Bathing Water Directive, the Environment Agency tests 33 bathing
waters in North West England. In the 1997 bathing season, 16 out of the 33 bathing waters passed the
compliance tests. Capital projects have been undertaken to reduce the likelihood of failures being
attributable to North West Watei's operations. These projects have been included within North West
Water's capital improvement programmes discussed below. A new programme of capital improvement is
now underway; this programme is also discussed below.

Capital improvement programmes

At the time of privatisation in 1989, the infrastructure inherited by North West Water from the North West
Water Authority was in need of substantial repair and replacement, some of the aqueducts, water mains
and wastewater collection and treatment facilities, for example, being many decades old. Further
improvements have been required in order to comply with applicable UK and European Union
environmental regulations.

Between April 1990 and March 2000, North West Water has spent (to 31 March, 1998) and is expected to
spend the following:

Water supply

Approximately £1,260 milion is expected to be spent on improvements to its water distribution
system, of which £970 milion has been expended, and approximatsly £670 million is expected to be
spent on improvements to its water supply and treatment facilities, of which £600 million has been
expended. Major investments in the supply, treatment and distribution of clean water since
privatisation have included construction of new and major improvements to existing water treatment
works (£410 million), improvements to water resources and leakage control initiatives (£150 million),
and an average of £100 million per year spent on renewing or refurbishing approximately 700
kilometres of old cast iron pipes each year.

Wastewater

Approximately £1,200 million is expected to be spent on improvements to its wastewater network, of
which £790 milion has been expended, and approximately £1,600 million is expected to be spent on
improvements to its wastewater treatment and disposal facilities of which £1,280 million has been
expended. Major investments in the collection, treatment and disposal of wastewater since
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privatisation have included construction of new and major improvements to existing wastewater
treatment works (£950 million), improvernents in sludge treatment and disposal including construction
of a major new sludge treatment facility (£€0 million to date}, and refurbishment of the sewerage
infrastructure (£215 miflion). North West Water has completed its Sea Change programme which was
commenced in 1994 and designed to reduce significantly the amount of pollution entering the Irish
Sea from North West Water’s wastewater system. As part of this programme, North West Water has
spent around £400 million in improvements to its wastewater treatment works along the coast of North
West England. In addition, the Environment Agency has recently directed that an additional
programme of work (estimated at over £100 million) be undertaken to further reduce storm water
discharges and to upgrade a number of wastewater treatment works to meet new, higher
environmental standards. Discharges from these works had not previously been thought by the
Environment Agency to have any effect on bathing waters. Subject to the approval of the Office of
Water Services (“Ofwat”), this work will be undertaken in the near future with the aim of compileting a
substantial part by the 1999 bathing season.

The implementation of a large part of North West Water's capital investment programme is managed by an
affiiate of Bechtel Group, Inc. (a large US construction company). The arrangement with Bechtel is
designed 1o increase efficiencies in executing the capital expenditure programme as well as to minimise the
Company’s construction risks. The Company is also co-operating with Bechtel on water and wasterwater
projects outside the UK, see “International Operations.”

Water and wastewater regulation
Environmental regulation

The water and wastewater industry in the UK is subject to substantial domestic and European Union
regulation, including the Drinking Water Directive, the Bathing Water Directive and the Urban Waste Water
Treatment Directive. These European Union directives are implernented by applicable UK laws and
regulations, including the Water Act, the Water Industry Act, the Water Resources Act 1991 {as amended)
(the “Water Resources Act”) and the Control of Poliution Act 1974 (as amended).

The Water Industry Act provides for the appointment by the Secretary of State for the Environment of an
industry regulator, the DGWS., The DGWS has overall regulatory authority over North West Water's water
and wastewater operations. The DGWS holds office for renewable petiods of five years and is the head of
Ofwat and its staff of administrators, economists and accountants. The current DGWS was appointed as
the first DGWS in 1989 and was subsequently re-appointed for a five year term which expires on 30 June,
2000.

Broadly, the Water Act (since consolidated by the Water Industry Act) established a new, more extensive
and more stringent quality regime for the water and wastewater indusiry through the creation of the
National Rivers Authority (now part of the Environmert Agency) and the Drinking Water Inspectorate. At the
same time, a new system of economic regulation was established through the DGWS and provision made
for the appointment of licensed providers of water and wastewater services for each area, subject to certain
conditions.

Under the Water Industry Act and the related Water Quality Regulations, North West Water has significant
statutory obligations with regard to the guality of treated water. Compliance with the standards in the Water
Quality Regulations is determined by comparing the results of sample analysis with the prescribed limit for
the relevant parameter.

Whilst the nature of developments in environmental regulation and corntrol cannot be predicted, it is
anticipated that the direction of future changes will be towards further tightening of controls. In view of the
age and history of many sites owned by the Company and its subsidiaries, liabilities may be incurred in
respect of sites which are found to be contaminated, together with increased costs of managing or
cleaning up such sites. Environmental legisiation requires the polluter (or if the polluter cannot be found or
has legally transferred its responsibilities, the owner or occupant) of contaminated land to clean up any
contamination which causes, or is likely to cause, significant harm to the environment or any pollution of
controlled waters, so that environmental compliance is consistent with the intended use of the site. Other
proposals which may impose strict liability for environmental darmnage are alsc under consideration by the
European Union. The Company does not believe that any liability which it may have under environmentat
legislation or published European Union directives will have a materially adverse impact on its results of
operations, financial position and liquidity. The environmental management systems which the Company

46




has in place are designed to ensure compliance with European Union directives, UK legislation and
company policy.

Economic regulation

Providers of water and wastewater services hold licences for specified areas of Engtand and Wales, such
as North West England in the case of North West Water. Pursuant to its licence, each provider is subject to
controls over its prices. Price caps are set by the DGWS for a period of ten years, but are subject to review
at intervals of five years at the option of the DGWS or the provider. Reviews are known as “periodic
reviews.” The DGWS has so far always exercised the option to review at five year intervals and has
announced his intention to modify water companies’ licences to formalise a five-year duration of price
limitations. Regulation in the UK is performance based. As such, the UK regulatory system is intended to
reward water service companies for efficiency and quality of service to customers and allows water service
companies not only to pass through certain capital costs, but also to retain a portion of any savings
attributable to efficiencies which they are able to achieve in the implementation of their capital improvemeant
programmes.

The main instrument of economic regulation is a price limitation formula set cut in each water company’s
licence. This formula limits increases in a basket of principal charges made by water and wastewater
companies for water supply and wastewater services. This formula is “RP] + K = X”, where “RPI” is the
retail price index, where “K” represents an adjustment factor (which may be positive, zero or negative)
which is specific to each company (and which may be a different number in different years) reflecting that
company’s recent improvements in efficiency and quality, and where “X” is the maximum permitted
percentage increase in charges to customers.

Price limitations are determined by the DGWS after consultation with the applicable water company and
other interested parties, taking into account the particular circumstances affecting the water company,
including its need to finance its capital improvements, the need to provide its shareholders with an
adequate return on capital, environmental considerations, the need to protect the interest of customers, in
particular by controlling prices, and other relevant factors. The DGWS uses the formula to limit price
increases to reflect what each company needs to charge its customers in order to finance the provision of
services to its customers,

North West Water’s “K" factor was last reviewed during a periodic review conducted in July 1994 and price
timitations were set effective from 1 April, 1995 to 31 March, 2005. During that periodic review, the DGWS
developed a structure for determining “K” factors based upon a matrix of purpose and cost categortes. The
purpose categories comprise base service provision (the maintenance of existing levels of service),
enhanced service levels, the supply/demand balance and obligatory quality enhancements. The cost
categories were divided between operational expenditures and capital maintenance {including capital
expenditure). The limits on North West Water’s real price changes (i.e. in addition to RPI) resulting from that
periodic review are +2.5 per cent. for each year until 31 March, 2000 and O per cent. for each year
thereafter until 31 March, 2005. However, the DGWS has announced his intention to conduct another
periodic review in 1999, with the result to become effective on 1 April, 2000. The DGWS has proposed a
one-time downward adjustment in the “K” factor (resulting in reduced charges to customers). The DGWS is
sympathetic to the view expressed by consumer bodies that this should be followed by a yet-to-be
determined period of time during which price increases generally would not rise in real terms. The Company
is not able to predict the outcome of the 1999 pericdic review. However, the Company anticipates
continued downward pressure on prices,

The Government issued guidance to the DGWS on 23 September, 1998 regarding quality improvements to
be achieved by the water industry in England and Wales 2000-2005. The programme of measures outlined
in the guidance is costed at between £8-£8.5 billion. The DGWS will take account of this when setting price
limits. The Government has specified that despite the programme costs it still sees scope for substantial
cuts in the average water bill.

In certain circumstances, the DGWS may propose amendmenits to the price control formula or the terms of
the licence. in cases where the provider of water and wastewater services is not wiling to accept
modifications to the price control formula or other licence conditions put forward by the DGWS, the DGWS
would be entitled to refer the matter to the Monopolies and Mergers Commission.




Charges to customers are calculated on the basis of separate charges for water supply and for wastewatar
services. Water and wastewater charges relating to the provision of services 1o domestic premises are
generally based on pre-1990 rateable values of the customer's home together with a fixed or minimum
charge and not on meter readings. Most water supplied to non-domestic customers is metered.

In April 1998, the Departrment of the Environment, Transport and the Regions issued new proposals for
water charging contained in a consuitation document. The four key measures proposed are:

® those who currently pay on an unmeasured basis and use water only for essential domestic purposes
should be able to continue to do so in their present home;

® the threat of disconnection should be removed from domestic customers;
® domestic customers should have the choice of a meter, free of charge, if it suits their needs; and

@ targeted help should be available for customers with special needs.

Regulation review

The UK government is currently reviewing the regulation of utiities (water, gas, electricity and
telecommunications). A Green Paper was published in March 1998 setting out the government's
proposals, which are subject to an on-going consultation process, and which include:

@ imposing a single primary duty on utility regulators to exercise their functions in the manner best
calculated to protect the interests of consumers wherever possible and appropriate through
promoting effective competition;

® a2 suggestion that where utility companies benefit from specific factors outside their control or have
deliberately misled the regulator by providing incomplete or inaccurate information to the regulator
when the price cap was set, those benefits should flow 1o customers; and

® an invitation to the regulators to carry out a joint study of the regulatory issues associated with
rmukti-utilities.

ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION
The electricity industry in Great Britain
The electricity industry in Great Britain consists of:

® generation, the production of eleciricity at power stations;

® transmission, the bulk transfer of electricity by high voltage power lines. In England and Wales,
transmission is the responsibility of the National Grid Company plc and is conducted through the
National Grid {the high voltage electricity transmission network owned and operated throughout
England and Wales by the National Grid Company plc);

@ Jistribution, the transfer of electricity from the National Grid to customer premises by lower voltage
power lines. Distribution is carried out by regional electricity companies pursuant to their public
electricity supply (“PES"} licences and, in the case of the Company, is the responsibility of Norweb
Distribution; and

® supply, the purchase of electricity from the Pool (see below) and its sale to final customers. Supply is
carried out principally by 14 regional electricity companies pursuant to their PES licences and by other
licenced suppliers and in the case of the Company, NORWEB pic is the licensee and electricity supply
is the responsibility of ENERGiI from Norweb.

Pursuant to the Electricity Act 1989 (as amended) {the “Electricity Act”), the businesses of the area boards
(the North Western Electricity Board in the case of North West England) were transferred to twelve regional
electricity companies each serving the same regional area of England and Wales as previously served by its
predecessor area board. As part of the privatisation of the UK electricity industry in 1990, the property,
rights and liabilities of the North Western Electricity Board were vested in NORWEB plc.

Tnroughout England and Wales, electricity generation, together with transmission and distribution systems,
constitute a single integrated network. Almost all electricity generated at power stations in England and
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Wales is delivered through the National Grid. It is then transmitted for delivery 1o the local distribution
networks owned and operated by PES licence holders, such as NORWER plc, and then delivered to the
final customers from these networks.

The Secretary of State for Trade and Industry and the Director General of Electricity Supply ("DGES™) are
the principal regulators of the industry and each is given specific responsibilities under the Electricity Act.
The responsibilities of the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry include licensing and the regulation of
certain matters related to the development of the physical electricity supply system, and the quality of
electricity supply. The responsibilities of the DGES include economic regulation, licensing (pursuant to a
general authority given by the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry) and the general supervision and
enforcement of the licences. Together with the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry, the DGES has the
duty to promote competition and to ensure the protection of the interests of electricity consumers. The
Office of Electricity Regulation assists the DGES in carrying out his duties and functions under the
regulatory regime.

Electricity distribution is currently regutated with electricity supply pursuant to the PES licences. However, in
May 1998, the DGES issued a consultation paper on the separation of distribution and supply activities. The
preliminary conclusions in that paper are that full separation of ownership of distribution and supply
activities is desirable and that, in the interim period pending the necessary legislative changes, a range of
measures should be introduced to ensure that the supply business operates at arm’s length from the
distribution business. The measures proposed include placing the distribution and supply activities in
different subsidiaries, avoiding the sharing of facilities between the businesses, ensuring that staff have
responsibilities only within the scope of one business, requiring separate management teams for the two
businesses and minimising the scope of any corporate headquarters' activities.

A general overview of issues arising from the Green Paper published in March 1998 is discussed above —
see “Regulation review.” Specific recommendations relating to the electricity industry include:

@ aproposal to replace the electricity and gas regulators with a single energy regulator, whose duties will
need to acknowledge the convergence of the gas and electricity markets; and

® aproposed amendment to the Electricity Act to require the PESs’ electricity distribution businesses to
be licensed separately from their supply businesses.

Norweb Distribution

Norweb Distribution maintains a network in North West England of approximately 59,000 kilometres of
power lines and underground cables and approximately 40,000 substations which distribute approximately
23,300 GWh of electricity annually from the National Grid and power stations to approximately 2.2 million
custormner premises in North West England.

NORWEB pic holds a PES licence granting it the right to distribute electricity to all current and future
electricity suppliers in its franchise area (je North West Engiand). The income derived from the distribution
business is dependent in part on changes in the demand for electricity by customers in North West
England. Demand for electricity is affected by such factors as growth and movements in population, social
trends, economic and business growth or decline, changes in the mix of energy sources used by
customers, weather conditions, energy efficiency measures and other factors.

Revenues

Most of the charges for the use of the distribution system are subject to distribution price controls. The
distribution charges ievied by Norweb Distribution and other regional electricity companies consist of use of
system charges which are price regulated and charges for certain services outside the scope of price
control, including charges for connections and for electricity distributed to extra high voltage premises.
Connection charges to premises must be set at a level which enables the PES to recover no more than the
appropriate propoertion of the costs incurred and no more than a reasonable rate of return on the capital
represented by such costs. A substantial majority of Norweb Distribution’s turnover consists of charges for
the use of its distribution system, most of which are charges to the electricity supply business. Each
regional electricity company is required not to discriminate between its own supply business and other
users of its distribution system in the provision or use of its distribution system or in connecting the supplier
to its system.




Most of the operating income of Norweb Distribution, like other electricity distributors in Great Britain, is
controlled by a distribution price control formula which is based on the number of customers and kWh
distributed. The rationale behind the use of this formula, commonly referred to as “RPl+Xd,” is that
companies are motivated, during the relevant period of price control, to maximise efficiencies knowing that
they can retain any element of over performance for their shareholders. The “Xd” factor may be any number
determined by the DGES and is used to reflect expected efficiency gains and investment requirements. The
wxd” factor for Norweb Distribution was set at +1.4 per cent. for the five financial years commenced 1 April,
1990. Since the distribution price reviews in August 1994 and following a re-opening of the review in July
1995, the DGES reset the “Xd" factors (as price reductions) to -14 per cent. for the financial year 1996, -11
per cent. for the financial year 1997 and -3 per cent. for each of the financial years 31 March, 1998 until
2000. To allow for forecasting errors, an annual correction factor is built in to allow any under-recovery or
over-recovery of income to be corrected in following years, the latter with an interest penalty. A further
distribution price controi review is scheduled to take place in 1999 to be effective on 1 April, 2000, which
the Company anticipates will result in continued downward pressure on distribution prices.

Distripution costs vary with the voliage at which customers are connected and the utilisation of the
distribution system at the time units of power are distributed. Changes in the mix of units distributed at
different voltage levels and between peak and off-peak periods are reflected in the calculation of the
maximum average allowed charge per unit distributed by reference 1o a “hasket” of distribution categories,
which takes account of the different costs of distributing electricity at various voltages and at various times
of the day.

In certain circumstances, the DGES may propose amendments to the distribution price control formula or
the terms of the PES licence. In cases where a PES is not willing to accept modifications to the distribution
price control formula or other licence conditions put forward by the DGES, the DGES has the power 1o refer
the matter to the Monopolies and Mergers Commission.

On 24 February, 1998, the DGES published a consultation paper proposing modifications to licences of
those PESs (including NORWEB plc) which have been subject to take-overs. The DGES's proposals
include modifications:

® to require PESs to seek and maintain investment grade credit ratings;

@ to prohibit PESs entering into agreements or commitments incorporating cross-default obligations;
and .

@ to make the declaration and payment of dividends and other distributions by the PES conditional on
the PES's directors certifying that they are satisfied that the PES has complied with the ring-fencing
conditions in its licence.

ENERGY SUPPLY
Electricity supply — the franchise market and the competitive market
An overview of the eleciricity industry is provided above, see “The electricity industry in Great Britain”.

Great Britain currently has two separate, but related, electricity supply markets each with a different
regulatory framework: the “franchise market” and the “competitive market”. The franchise market currently
comprises over 25 million customer premises {mostly households and small businesses) in Great Britain
each having a peak demand of less than 100 kW. To be able to supply electricity to the franchise market, a
supplier must have a PES licence granted by the DGES pursuant to the Electricity Act with respect to a
particular franchise area (or PES authorised area). NORWEB plc's PES licence continues until at least 2025.
Customers in the franchise market are supplied with electricity in accordance with published tariffs. The
holder of a PES licence must (except in certain specified circumnstances), upon request, supply electricity
on tariff terms to any customer within the franchise market in its franchise area. Competition will be
introduced progressively starting in some areas in September 1998, and is expected to reach NORWEB
plc’s franchise area during the six months from December 1998. The target date for full competition is mid-
1999, at which time all electricity customers in England and Wales, including the current customers in the
franchise rmarket, will have the option to choose their clectricity supplier.

The competitive market currently consists of customers with a peak demand of 100 KW or more. The
cormpetitive market currently comprises over 50,000 sites representing larger users of electricity throughout
Great Britain. A competitive market custormer may purchase electricity from any supplier. Competitive
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market customers are charged under the terms of their negotiated supply contracts, wiich may provide for
fixed or variable prices. Variable prices normally reflect expected fluctuations in the price paid by suppliers
for the purchase of electricity from the Pool.

Lntil March 1998, supply charges in the franchise market were regulated by an (RPI-X)+Y revenue control
formula, where “X” was set by the DGES and the "Y” factor enabled certain costs, including electricity
purchase costs, to be passed through to customers. Since April 1998, in order to protect smaller
customers during the transition to compatition, maximum price restraints cover supplies by PESs to all
domestic customers, as well as to non-domestic customers with annual consumption of less than 12,000
kWh. The restraint takes the form of a maximum supply price cap and is set for the two financial years 1999
and 2000, with the possibility of extension or modification beyond that period. The price cap entails
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NORWER plc has agreed to proposals which the DGES has estimated will reduce the prices of electricity
supplied by ENERGI to domestic and small business customers by approximately 6.4 per cent, in real
terms over two years (3.4 per cent. in the financial year 1999 and 3.0 per cent. in the financial year 20003.
Since April 1998, regional suppliers have not been able automatically to pass through their purchase costs
from generators. An estimated amount in respect of these costs is incorporated into the regulated supply
price cap.

Gas supply

ENERGi from Norweb, through Norweb Gas, a company directly or indirectly owned 75 per cent. by
NORWER plc and 25 per cent. by Utilicorp UK Limited, also markets gas to customers in the competitive
gas market. As at 31 August, 1998, it has approximately 6 per cent. of North West England’s competitive
residential gas market and approximately 12 per cent. of the North West’s competitive industrial and
commercial gas market (ie sales to customers consuming over 2,500 therms of gas a year). As at
31 August, 1998, it supplies gas to approximately 180,000 sites throughout mainiand Great Britain, of
which approximately 140,000 are located in North West England.

The domestic market for gas supply has recently undergone radical change. Competition in the domestic
gas market has been phased in and has resulted in lower gas charges o customers. Competition was
extended to areas including North West England from 27 February, 1998. The final tranche of areas
covering the remainder of Great Britain were opened to competition on 23 May, 1998. Centrica plc,
formerly the supply arm of BG plc, is the dominant gas supplier in Great Britain and is expected to remain
so for the foreseeable future, notwithstanding the opening of the domestic market to competition.

The gas supply activities are principally regutated by the Director General of Gas Supply under the Gas Act
1986 and the Gas Act 1995, and by the conditions of Norweb Gas's gas supply licence. Norweb Gas
currently holds a gas supplier's licence to supply to premises gas which has been conveyed through pipes
to those premises. The gas supply business is not subject to price regulation.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS
Norweb Communications

Norweb Communications markets and sells, and contracts with suppliers to supply, voice and data
telecommunications services to the business cornmunity in England.

Norweb Communications’ activities are principally regulated by the Telecommunications Act 1984 and by
the conditions of NORWER plc's public telecommunications operator (“PTO”) licence. The Secretary of
State for Trade and Industry and the Director General of Telecommunications are the principal regulators of
the telecommunications industry in the UK,

PTO licences, including NORWEB plc’s, contain a wide range of conditions designed, in particular, to
ensure that all PTO licence holders provide a basic range of telecommunication services and meet the
requests for interconnection with networks operated by other licences. PTO licences also contain
prohibitions against showing undue preference or discrimination in the provision of telecommunication
services. NORWEB plc’s PTO licence does not include price controls.

In March 1998, the Company announced the formation of NOR.WEB DPL — a company jointly owned by
United Utilities PLC and Nortel [nc. (an international telecommunications manufacturer). This venture will
exploit the Digital PowerLine technology which uses existing electricity cables to transmit data at high
speed. The technology has been developed in collaboration with Nortel and is designed to provide relatively
low cost and fast access to the Internet. Norweb Communications is a lead customer of NGR.WEB DPL.
Subject to feasibility and marketing trials, to be followed by commercial development, Norweb
Communications hopses to market this technology to customers in North West England.

FACILITIES MANAGENMENT
Vertex

Vertex provides a wide range of business services to the Company and its subsidiaries and markets those
services to external customers.

Vertex provides business services which are important to a customer's business, but are not the
customer's core activities. For example, Vertex provides business services to North West Water in
connection with the latter's water and wastewater operations and to Norweb Distribution, ENERGi and
Norweb Communications in connection with their electricity distribution, electricity and gas supply and

52




telecormmunications operations, thus allowing them to| concentrate on their core services. Vertex currently
derives virtually all its revenues from North West Water, Norweb Distribution, ENERGI and Norweb
Communications. Vertex intends to build upon this experience to deliver these services to unrelated third
parties.

In May 1998 Vertex announced its agreement with
service for BetDirect. On 31 July, 1998, a five ye
announced. Under this contract Vertex will provide a
contact management, billing, enabling technology, tek

ittlewoods Promotions Ltd to provide a call centre
contract with Independent Energy UK Ltd was
end-to-end managed service including customer
ephony and printing services,

e
2

The principal business services provided by Vertex arg

® customer services: customer call handling, postal service, correspendence handling, database
management, customer billing services, printing services, debt collection and cash processing;

® operations systems: geographic information systems, work management, customer contact, field
computing, and plant monitoring and control;

® [T services: software and hardware provision and support, setvice desk provision, consultancy and [T
strategy, systems design, data centre management, application management, desktop management,
service management, and network management;

® accounting services: payroll processing, pension administration, invoice payments, monthly
management reporting, ledger control and bank feconciliations;

® procurement services: comparative supplier evaluation, benchmarking, contract evaluation and
negotiation, transaction processing, inventary management, and logistics; and

® training services: technical training, IT training, cultlre change, transition training, business process re-

engineering related training, organisation development, and management training.

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS
United Utilities International

United Utilities International seeks to exploit the Grolp’s core muilti-utility management competencies
outside England and Wales, It operates through four strategic businesses: International Power, Water
Services, International Water and US Water.
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principal role is to exploit water and wastewater opport
to be acquired and operated through affiliated entitis
marketing activity (except in North America) for new w
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and maintenance activities and Bechtel will conduct en
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UNITED UTILITIES PLC

Litigation

The Company is not aware of any material litigation o which it or any of its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) is a party, or of which any of their property is the subject, or any such proceedings known to be
contemplated by any third party or governmental authority. The Group is engaged in litigation in the ordinary
course of its operations, such as contract disputes, disputes over easements/wayleaves and other similar
property matters, bill collections, personal injury claims and workers’ compensation claims. The Group
does not believe that such litigation, either individually or in the aggregate, is material. The Company
maintains insurance and, to the extent that the amounts in dispute may not be covered by such insurance,
maintains provisions in those situations where management deems it appropriate in accordance with UK
GAAP.

A dispute exists in relation to a contract for the construction of a sewage treatment works and associated
sewerage network in Bangkok. On 6 March, 1998, the Bangkok Consortium terminated the contract and
issusd a notice of arbitration against the client. The provision in the most recent accounts reflects
management’s best estimate of the expected fiabilities remaining in respect of this contract based on the
circumstances prevailing at 31 March, 1998 (see note 20 to the accounts).

Board of Directors
The directors of the Company and their functions within the Group are as follows:

Name Function

Derek Green Chief Executive

Bob Ferguson Group Finance Director

John Beckitt Managing Director Energy and Telecommunications
Gordon Waters Managing Director International Division
Sir Christopher Harding Non-Executive Director; Chairman

Sir Peter Middleton Non-Executive Director; Vice Chairman
Dr Rodney Leach Non-Executive Director

John Seed Non-Executive Director

Eric Clark Non-Executive Director

Sir Richard Evans Non-Executive Director

Jane Newell Non-Executive Director

None of the directors of United Utilities PLC performs activities outside the Group which are significant with
respect 10 the Group.

The business address of each of the directors is the Company’s registered office which is Birchwood Point
Business Park, Birchwood Boulevard, Birchwood, Warrington WA3 7WB.




Capitalisation of United Utilities PLC
The following table sets out the consolidated capitalisation of the Group at 31 March, 1998,

£m
Short Term Debt:

Short term debt (INCIUING GVErGraRS) «vivviee e ee e et es e e, 944.7

Current portion of long tarm debt .. oo 37.8
Total Short term debt® ..o e 982.5
Long Term Debt:

Long term debt, net of current portion ..o oo e 1,466.2
Total long term debt® .. e 1,466.2
Shareholders’ Funds:®

Cailed up shaire Capital.......o.ccoiiviiiiinie e e e 544.8

Share premium @CCOUME .....vue e e e e 633.8

Profit and 1088 ACCOUNE ..covieiiiiiiei i e e 866.9
Total shareholders’ fUNAS™ ........ocviiiiiiieiieie e e e e, 2,045.5
MINOFEY INEEIESES . ovei e e e, (1.2)
Total capitalisation................ccoooiiiiii e e e 3,510.5

Notes:
(8) As at 23 August, 1998, the total short term debt of the Group vas approximately £703 milicn and the total long term debt was

approximately £1,843 million.
(&) As at 31 March, 1998 the autherised share capital of the Company was £720 million nominal comprising 720 million ordinary

shares of £1 nominal each, The allotted, called up and fully paid share capital of the Company was £544,810,508 comprising
544,810,508 ordinary shares of £1 nominal each,

(e} As at 23 August, 1998, shareholders’ funds totalled approximately £2,213 million.

(d) Save as disclosed above, there has been no material change ih the consolidated capitalisation of the Group since 31 March,
1998.




NORWEB plc

NORWEB plc was registered in England and Wales on 1 April, 1989 with registered number 2366949 and
acquired by North West Water Group PLC in November 1995, The company consists of three operating
businesses: electricity distribution (Norweb Distribution), electricity and gas supply (ENERGi) and
telecommunications (Norweb Communications). A more detailed description of the business is set out
on pages 48 to 52 of the Offering Gircular.

Board of Directors
The directors of NORWEB plc and their functions within the company are as follows:

Name Function

Paul Appelbe Director

John Beckitt Managing Director
Martint Bradbury Finance Director
Jeremy Deering Director

Clive Elphick Director

Bob Ferguson Director

Derek Green Director

Howard Kirkham Director

Kevin Lee Director

None of the directors of NORWEB plc performs activities outside the Group which are significant with
respect to the Group.

The business address of each of the directors is the company’s registered office which is PO Box 14,
410 Birchwood Boulevard, Birchwood, Warrington WA3 7GA.

Capitalisation of NORWEB plc

The following table sets out the consolidated capitalisation of NORWEB plc and its subsidiary undertakings
at 31 March, 1998.

£m
Short Term Debt:

Short term debt (including oVErdratts) ......vveeeeeric e 447.7

Current portion of long term debl......oci e 0.0
Total SHOM 1EIM GEDT® Lottt it et e ettt e e rr bt e et a e s st e e st e s 447.7

==
Long Term Debt: :

Long term debt, net of cUment POrTION ... .. i 1904.7
Total Iong TErmM GBI ... iivieieecrie e 194.7
Shareholders’ Funds:®

Called UD Share GADITAL ... euvvree it irtr e e st s s st 78.4

SHArE PremiUm SCCOUNT .. .vieirieiee e e s erraesrre e rr e r e s rrr s st r e 4.4

NS 10 a N e e o= T B A 241.3

L  r T 0V = < T TSP PP PP PP PP LR P TP TRV RPEITRTLRLD 8.8

Profit AN 1058 AOCOUNT cenatiire e caen it ietias e aenae et e bt 184.5
Total Sharenolders’ FUNGAST ... .. oo iiieiiee st e e e s te e re e s e e e et 517.4
LY e e A ) = = = D AL LASEIITLILLE LR 4.4)
Total capitalisation..........cooo i 707.7

e —
Notes:

{a) As at 23 August, 1998, the total short term debt of NORWER plc and its subsidiary undertakings was approximately £451 million
and the total long term debt was approximately £185.2 million.

(b) As at 31 March, 1998, the authorised share capital of NORWEB plc was £125,000,001 nominal comprising 250 million ordinary
shares of 50p nominal each and one Special Rights Redeemabte Preference Share of £1. The allotted, called up and fully paid
share capital of NORWEB plc was £78,410,670.50 comprising 156,821,341 ordinary shares of 50p nominal each.

(¢} As at 23 August, 1998, shareholders’ funds totalled approximately £545 milliorn. -

{d) SBave as disclosed above, there has been no material change in the consolidated capitalisation of NORWEB plc and its subsidiary
undertakings since 31 March, 1998.




NORTH WEST WATER LIMITED

The Guarantor was incorporated for an unlimited durgtion in England and Wales on 1 April, 1989 with
registered number 2366678 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of United Utilities PLC. The Guarantor is a
company limited by shares and operates under the Gompanies Act 1985. A detailed description of the
business of the Guarantor is set out on pages 44 to 4B of the Offering Circular.

Board of Directors

The directors of the Guarantor and their functions within the Guarantor are as follows:

Name Function

Derek Green Chairman

Harry Croft Managing Director

Bob Armstrong Deputy Managing Director
Martin Bradbury Finance Director

Richard Bradbury Commercial Director

Dr Roger Ford Quality Director

Patrick McCloskey Corporate Services Difector
Bob Ferguson United Utilities PLC Finance Director
Clive Elphick Planning Director

Philida Entwistie Non-Executive Director
Deborah Morton Non-Executive Director

None of the directors of the Guarantor performs activi
respect to the Group.

ties outside the Group which are significant with

The business address of each of the directors is the Guarantor's registered office which is PO Box 14, 410
Birchwood Boulevard, Birchwood, Warrington WA3 7GA,

Capitalisation of North West Water Limited

The following table sets out the capitalisation of the Guarantor at 31 March, 1998.

£m
Short Term Debt:

Short term debt (inCluding OVEIArATLS) ... coee v et er et ee e e ieesass 525.2

Current portion of long term debt....co e 28.9
Total short term debt® . e, 554.1
Long Term Debt:

Long term debt, net of current portion ..o oo 853.0
Total long term debt® ... e 853.0
Shareholders’ Funds:®

Equity share Capital.... ..o e e e e 431.9

Share premium ACCOUNT ... ..ot e b e e 647.8

Profit and 1088 GCCOUNT ..o i e et e e eeerarertntenneen s 891.8

NON eqUItY SHAre CaPIEAI... ..o ettt ee e e e e reresenaeeeaasenrersrerans 56.8
Total shareholders’ FUNds!™ ..........oioevieeei e e oo 2,128.3
Total capitalisation................c..ooiiiiii e 2,981.3

Notes:

() Asat23 August, 1998, the total short term debt was approximat
£1,273 million.

ly £335 million and the total long term debt was approximately

() As at 31 March, 1998, the authorised share capital of the Guararjtor was £706,837,000 nominal comprising 650 million ordinary
shares of £1 nominal each and 56,837,000 preference shares of £1 nominal each. The allotted, called up and fully paid share
capital of the Guarantor was £488,767,000 comprising 431,980,000 ordinary shares of £1 nominal each and 56,837,000
preference shares of £1 nominal each.

(c) As at 23 August, 1998, shareholders funds totalled approximat

(d) Save as disclosed above, there has been no material change in

£2,277 million.
the capitalisation of the Guarantor since 31 March, 1998.




AUDITORS’ REPORT ON NORTH WEST WATER LIMITED

The financial information set out on pages 59 to 73 has been extracted, without material adjustments, from
the audited accounts of North West Water Limited in respect of the year ended 31 March, 1998. The report
set out below is the full text of the Guarantor's auditors’ report accompanying the Guarantor's financial
statements for the year ended 31 March, 1998. The page references below are to those of such accounts.

«Auditors’ Report to the Members of North West Water Limited

We have audited the financial statements on pages 7 to 22

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As described under “Directors’ responsibilities” on page 6 the company’s directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial staterments. Itis our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by
the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain alt the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statemenis.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the company as
at 31 March, 1998 and of the profit of the company for the year then ended and have been property
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
Manchester

10 July, 1998”




PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 1998

1998 1997

Note £m £m

TUINOVEE. ... veee i 1(b} 9141 872.7
Net operating CoStS......ovvvviiiiiiiiie e e, 3 (498.2) (459.4)
Customer rebates.........coviiiiiiiiiic e e, (18.3) (28.3)
Operating profit .................cooiivriviiieieveee e 397.6 385.0
Net interest payable ..o e, 7 (85.1) (68.4)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation.........|............ 312.5 316.6
Tax on profit on ordinary activities.......oo.ooveevieeiici dov e, 8 51.6) (7.0)
Profit for financial year ................coooooiici i o 260.9 309.6
DIVIABNGS .o eeie e ee e e 9 (298.4) (353.9)
Transfer from reserves.............cocooevvivicviiincoc eccnl 19 (37.5) (44.3)

All of the results derive from continuing operations.

The company has no recognised gains or losses other

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREI

than the profit for the year.

31 MARCH, 1998

Profit for the financial year.........cccoovinviiiiion e,
DIVIABNAS .. ovv v

Net movement in shareholders’ funds for the vear.......
Opening shareholders’ funds........c.ovveeeiiveiieeeeeeen,

Closing shareholders’ funds .................................

HOLDERS’ FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

1998 1997

£m £m

.............................. 260.9 309.6
.............................. {298.4) (353.9)
.............................. (37.5) (44.3)
.............................. 18.3 38.5
.............................. (19.2) (5.8)
.............................. 2,147.5 2,153.3
.............................. 2,128.3 2,147.5




BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 1998

Note
Fixed assets
Tangible ASSETS «.ovvviivveiie 10
(Yo T (Ao 8 |5 T PP PP PP PP 11
Current assets
L Tne 11 T PRSPPI
[D1=) o]0 ¢ I TUTTTTU PRSPPI PP 12
Cash at bank and in hand ...
Creditors
Amounts falling due within one year.........cceee i 13
Net current labilities ...
Total assets less current liabilities.................ci
Creditors:
Amounts falling due after more than one year...............coovvanen. 14
Provisions for liabilities and charges .....................coens 16
[P A L 1 = 1= T PP POP PP PP
Capital and reserves
Equity share capifal...........oooviiinci s 18
Share premium ACCOUNT ... et anr 18
Profit and 0S8 ACCOUNT.....iiie e 19
Equity shareholders’ funds ..............cccoi
Non-equity share capital....................c 18

Shareholders’ FuNAS ..ot e e

1998 1997
£m £m
3,983.7 3,494.0
0.3 0.5
3.984.0 3,494.5
1.4 1.0
279.5 269.9
—_ 8.9
280.9 279.8
(1,212.7) (849.7)
{931.8) (569.9)
3,052.2 2,824.6
(912.8) (749.1)
(11.1) {28.0)
2,128.3 2,147.5
431.9 431.9
647.8 647.8
991.8 1,029.3
2,071.5 2,108.0
56.8 38.5
2,128.3 2,147.5




CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 1998

Net cash inflow from operating activities .....

Returns on investments and servicing of
finance

Interest received ..o
Interest paid...c..coiiiii
Interest element of finance lease repayments......

Net cash outflow from returns on investment and
senvicing of fiNanNce ......cooei i

Taxation ...

Capital expenditure

Purchase of tangible fixed assets......coovcvveeiennns
Grants and contributions received ........oo...........
Disposal of tangible fixed assets........................

Net cash outflow for capital expenditure.............
Dividends paid ....................cooviiiii
Cash outflow before use of liquid resources
Financing

Issue of preference share capitat ...........ovevninie.
Increase in debt.. v

Net cash inflow from financing ..........................

{Decrease)/increase in cash..........................

Notes to the cash flow statement are detailed in note 2

4,

1998 1908 1997 1997
£m £m £m £m
567.4 438.4
9.9 17.6
(89.2) (71.3)
(10.2) ©9.8)
(89.5) (83.5)
- (1.2
{(665.7) (390.9)
4.1 4.0
2.1 191.0
(559.5) (195.9)
(288.6) (341.2)
(370.2) (163.4)
18.3 385
334.2 135.9
352.5 174.4
(17.7) 11.0




{b)

{d

(e)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting policies

Basis of preparation of accounts

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with applicable accounting standards and, except for the treatment of certain grants and contributions
(note {e) below), with the Companies Act 1985 (the “Act”).

Turnover

Turmover represents the income receivable in the ordinary course of business for services provided
and excludes VAT, :

Research and development
Expenditure on research and development is written off against profit in the year in which it is incurred.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets comprise infrastructure assets (mains, sewers, impounding and pumped raw
water storage reservoirs, dams, sludge pipelines and sea outfalls) and other assets (including
properties, overground plant and eguipment).

i Infrastructure assets
Infrastructure assets comprise a network of systermns. Expenditure on infrastructure assets
relating to increases in capacity or enhancements of the network is treated as additions, which
are included at cost after deducting related grants and contributions.

Expenditure on maintaining the operating capability of the network in accordance with defined
standards of service is charged as an operating cost. No depreciation is charged on infrastructure
assets because the network of systems is required to be maintained in perpetuity and therefore
has no finite economic life.

Charges far infrastructure renewals expenditure take account of planned expenditure on
maintaining the operating capability of infrastructure assets in accordance with the operational
policies and standards underlying the company's investment programme. The timing of the
investment programme and other operational considerations may result in uneven patterns of
infrastructure renewals expenditure. Charges to the profit and loss account are adjusted by way
of accruals or deferrals, as appropriate, to take account of any significant fluctuations between
actual and planned expenditure.

(i) Other assets
Additions are included at cost.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Other assets are depreciated evenly over their estimated
economic lives which are principally as follows:

18 11T = P U L Lt 30-60 years
OPErational SEUCTUNES ...oouuuiiiin s s et e e st 10-80 years
Fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment .. ... 3-40 years
= Fe oY=y SR PTO PRSI TOPPRP RSP PRSP 22-27 years

Capitalised computer software costs are depreciated over 3-10 years. Assets in the course of
construction with an estimated aconomic life of greater than 20 years are not depreciated until
the year following commissioning.

Grants and contributions

Capital contributions towards infrastructure assets are deducted from the costs of those assets. This
is not in accordance with Schedule 4 to the Companies Act 1985 under which the infrastructure
assets should be stated at their purchase price or producticn cost and the capital contributions
treated as deferred income and released to profit and loss account over the useful life of the
corresponding assets. The directors are of the opinion that, as infrastructure assets have no finite
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)

s)

()

]

)

(k)

economic lives (see note (d) above) and the capital

contributions would therefore remain in the balance

sheet in perpetuity, the treatment otherwise required by the Companies Act 1985 would not present a
true and fair view of the company’s effective invegtment in infrastructure assets.

Grants receivable in respect of other tangible fixgd assets are treated as deferred income, which is
credited to the profit and loss account over the estimated economic lives of the related assets.

Leased assets

Assets financed by leasing arrangements which
ownership to the lessee {finance leases) are capi

transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ised in the balance sheet and the corresponding

capital cost is shown as an obligation to the lessor| Leasing repayments comprise both a capital and a
finance elerment. The finance element is written off to the profit and loss account so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge|on the outstanding obligation. Such assets are
depreciated over the shorter of their estimated ugeful lives and the period of the lease.,

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit

Fixed asset investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cosf

Stores
Stores are stated at cost less any provision neces

Pensions

nd loss account as incurred.

less amounts written off for permanent diminution.

sary to recognise damage and obsolescence.

Most of the company’s employees belong to pension schemes which provide for defined benefits

based on final pensionable pay. Pension costs
remaining service lives of employees.

Details of pension arrangements and funding are

Deferred taxation

are charged against profits over the estimated

set out in note 20,

Provision is made for deferred taxation where an asset or a liability is considered likely to arise in the

foreseeable future.
Financial instruments

The notional interest on interest rate swaps and
exposures on the company’s net borrowings are i
borrowings. These financial instruments in the ab
market value, but, on realisation, gains and losses

Segmental information
The company operates in the United Kingdom in

forward rate agreements to manage interest rate
cluded with the interest flows of the underlying net
ove circumstances are not revalued to their open
are spread over the period of the hedged position.

one class of business.




3. Net operating costs

19908 1997
£m £m

Employee costs:
Wages and Salari@s ... ..o 93.9 81.3
Social SEEUMTY COSES ..vverr i 6.9 7.8
Pension cortributions (NOte 20) v e 8.8 10.1
109.4 99.2

Less recharges:
7o C= T o) o= o= S T P TP RPTTER (28.2) 23.7)
INFrasiruCtUre TEBNEWEIS ...ooe it ee e e s s aar e e sbs s a b (9.0) (6.1)

72.2 69.4

Depreciation:
OWNE FiXE ASOETS. e irinirretr e eeetien i s era e atreatis et isae i rnraa e rane s 66.8 52.3
Fixed assets held under finance I8aSES .. iiiiiiree e 55 6.7
72.3 59.0
INfraStrUCTURE TENEWELS 11 ee i iriiireeneasieeas e is s tsasanrranar s earonenebtaties 71.2 67.6
Other operating costs include:
Other OPErating COSES .. vvurire ettt s ab s 263.3 248.7
Raw materials and ConsUmMAables ..o 18.6 17.2
FXT e (110 £- 15 AAID L0 = = Lo | [P T OO PP G.1 0.1
Research and developmENnt ......ccovviivier e 2.1 2.4
Operating leases
— hire of plant and MAachiNarY ..ot 2.0 1.8
— land and BUIAINGS .. oovt e e 1.7 1.5
Other INCOME (NOTE 4) vrire e s e e e (5.3) 6.3)
282.5 263.4
Total net operating COStS ..o 498.2 458.4

Managed service fees and asset charges from group undertakings are contained within other operating
costs.

Fees payable to the auditor and its associates for non-audit services in 1998 were £40,000 (1997 —
£37,000)

4., Other income

1998 1997

£m £m

Profit on disposal of fixed asSets ..o 1.0 1.2
Net rents receivable 2.2 2.0




5. Directors

The aggregate emolumenits of directors in 1998 amoun
comprise salaries, fees, taxable benefits and the value
the highest paid director (H Croff) in 1998 amounted t

With the exception of P G S Entwistle and D E Morton w
pension arrangements, all directors are members of an
(UUPS), a defined benefits pension schame which prov
between 1/30th and 1/45th of pensionable remuneratig
an overall maximum of 20/30ths, The normal retiremen
50 with the agreement of the company.

As a consequence of changes made by the Finance Ag
from the UUPS for directors who have joined the comp

directors who joined the company before that date. In
established separate arrangements. Accordingly, on
undertaken to pay the difference between the pension
final salary and the maximum amount payable under

separate arrangement remains unfunded. This under]
benefits for the director than would have been payable H
fully within the UUPS on the same basis as for directo

The accrued pension at 31 March, 1998 for H Croft was

At 31 March, the directors and their immediate famil
beneficial interests, in the ordinary shares and options

PLC (details of the interests of directors of United Ultilitig

ed 10 £926,546 (1997 — £1,068,000). Emoluments
of short term incentive awards. The emoluments of
b £229,366 (D. Green, 1997 — £292,000).

ho, as non-executive directors, do not participate in
d contribute to the United Utilities Pension Scheme
des an entitlement on retirement at age 60 equal to
n for each complated year of service but subject to
age is 60 but early retirement is possible from age

t 1989, the company is unable o provide pensions
any since 1989 on the same basis as pensions for
ine with many other companies, the company has
the retirement of D. Green, the company has
entitlement based on his relevant proportion of the
the rules of the UUPS, At the present time, this
aking will not result in any greater or additional
ad it been possible for their pension to be provided
s who had joined the company prior to 1989.

£83,729 per annum (1997 — £72,013 per annum).

fes had the following interests, all of which were
to subscribe for ordinary shares in United Utilities
s PLC are dealt with in that company’s accounts).

1998 1997 or on appointment
Share optipns Share options

Executive Employee Executive Employee

Ordinary option  sharesave Crdinary option  sharesave

shares scheme scheme shares scheme scheme

R D Armstrong ......... 15,717 12,293 2,656 18,117 12,293 2,556
R G Bradbury........... — 27,333 — — 26,333 -
HRCroft.......oovenens 13,345 28,010 — 14,331 28,010 2,796
P E McCloskey......... — 32,227 3,586 — 31,477 3,586
M F Bradbury........... 14,034 17,637 4,005 10,010 22,926 4,005°
P G S Entwistle ........ 20 — — 90 — —
RRBRFord...ooveiinns — 8,871 3,058 -— 8,371 2,427
C H Elphick.............. 12,962 34,872 3,623 14,562 34,872 3,623

Details of the employee sharesave scheme and the ox

Utilities PLC are given in that company’s accounts.

Details of directors’ options granted for ordinary shares

Options

granted Exercise

during the price per

year share
R G Bradbury....c..oooe....0. 1,000 768.5p
P E McCloskey............... 750 768.5p
M F Bradbury................. 1,750 768.5p
RRFord......oovveeieiinens 500 768.5p
RRFord.....covavvennnnn... 632 617.0p

ecutive share option scheme operated by United

during the year are as follows:

First date Last date

Scheme exercisable exercisabile
Executive option 23 Dec 2000 23 Dec 2007
Executive option 23 Dec 2000 23 Dec 2007
Executive option 23 Dec 2000 23 Dec 2007
Executive option 23 Dec 2000 23 Dec 2007
Sharesave 1 Mar 2001 1 Sep 2001




Details of directors’ options exercised for ordinary shares during the year are as foilows:

Options Market price
exercised Exercise price when First date Last date
during the year per share Scheme exercised exercisable exercisable
M F Bradbury .. 775 479.8p Executive 835.5p 15 Dec, 1997 15 Dec, 2004
1,227 275.7p Executive 835.5p 8 Jan, 1997 8 Jan, 2002
1,162 394.2p Executive 835.5p 6.Jan, 1998 6 Jan, 2003
3,488 463.4p Executive 835.5p 6 Jan, 1998 8 Jan, 2003
387 566.9p Executive 835.5p 20 Jan, 1997 20 Jan, 2004
H R Croft........ 1,304 308.3p Sharesave 714.5p 1 Mar, 1985 30 Sep, 1997
1,492 Lapsed

The mid-market share price on 31 March, 1998 was 886.0p.

The range during the year was 621.5p {(low) to 886.0 (high).

6. Employees

1998 1987
Average number of persons emMplOYed ..o 4,106 4,140
7. Net interest payable
1998 1997
£m £m
Interest payable:
On bank loans, overdrafts and other 10ans ... 75.9 61.2
O FINANGCE [BESES - evvrenirnsineeaatreeraen s abirrerarsr et iaraatiart it aers 10.2 14.0
GrouUP UNAEIAKINGS ©uvvvriiiee it 89 11.0
Total INtErest PAYADIE ....vveee it s 95.0 86.2
Interest receivable:
GrOUP UNAEMAKINGS ©oavvrvreetirsirens e ssibes s (7.5) (17.1)
N T 2 TV TE T TR U VU PP PP R PP PP PP PRI RRLELY 2.4) 0.7
Net iNterest PayADIE .. .. 85.1 68.4
8. Taxation on profit on ordinary activities
1998 1997
£m £m
UK Corporation Tax at 31% (1997 — 33%) ..o oo 51.6 7.0
The full potential deferred tax liability is:
Accelerated tax allowances on buildings, plant
and eqguipment:
T e T e e N e = - P A 429.8 442.4
L T 1 TR PP P R P PP P EP TR T IPLEEN 216.3 221.1
Losses and other timing differenCes.....ooovoiinni (21.7) (48.5)

624.4 615.0

No deferred tax liability is provided in the company’s accounts. A deferred tax asset of £3.2 milion is
included within debtors amounts falling due after more than cne year representing advance corporation tax
recoverable against future mainstream corporation tax labilities.




9. Dividends

Interim dividend of 12.78 pence per share (1997 — 11
Final dividend of 26.26 pence per share recommendeq

(1997 — 23.97 pence)
Special dividend of 30.05 pence per share (1997 — 4
Adjustrment to 1996/97 final dividend payment

North West Water Limited's licence requires that its
Appointed Business to finance its functions. n accorda
North Weast Water Limited to United Utilities PLC incre!
increase results from:

® & base level of growth consistent with the manag

® a further level of growth to reward efficiency in ac
A special dividend of £129.8 million was paid to United
first instalment of the windfall tax. The previous year's
peiformance and in line with our increased benefit sha

These dividend payments are consistent with the con

1988 1997

£m £m

.66 pencel...cien...... 55.3 50.4
i}

............................... 1134 103.5

5.3 PENCE). .vvevirneennn. 129.8 200.0

............................... 0.1} —

298.4 353.9

dividend policy will not impair the ability of the
nce with this policy the total dividend payment from
ased by 6 per cent. in real terms in 1897/98. This
ement of the economic risk of the business.
cordance with the system of incentive regulation.
Utilities PLC on 31 March, 1998 in respect of the
special dividend was paid as a result of ongoing

ring with customers.

hpany’s strategy for sharing the benefits between

custorners and shareholders in advance of the Periodi¢ Review.
10. Tangible fixed assets
Fixtures,
Infra- fittings, Assets in
Land and structure  Operatipnal tools and Pre-1974 Course of
buildings assets structures equipment assets construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost:
At 1 April, 1997 ........ 179.8 1,592.9 1,414.3 207.7 177.4 424.0 3,996.1
AddItions ..o, 5.8 505 5.4 i2.8 — 302.5 424.0
Grants and
contributions ......... — 4.1} - — — — (4.1)
Inter-group transfer ... —_ — — 176.7 — 61.5 238.2
Transfers......coeoevenenn. 10.2 94.0 70.0 4.7 — (178.9) -
Disposals.......cocveveeee 2.6 — {D.7) (14.2) — — (17.5)
At 31 March, 1998 .. 193.2 1,733.3 1,636.0 387.7 177.4 609.1 4,636.7
Depreciation:
At 1 April, 1997 ........ 29.0 — 23[1.6 114.1 127.4 — 502.1
Charge for the year.., 5.8 — 44.2 16.5 5.8 — 723
Inter-group transfer ... — — — 95.0 — — 95.0
Disposals....cccccivevven. 2.3) - {D.6) (13.5) — — (16.4)
At 31 March, 1998 .. 32.5 — 275.2 2121 133.2 — 653.0
Net book value:
At 31 March, 1998 .. 160.7 1,733.3 1,260.8 175.6 442 609.1 3,883.7
At 31 March, 1997.... 150.8 1,592.9 1,18R.7 93.6 50.0 4240 3,494.0




Inter-group transfers include the transfer of assets from Vertex Data Science Limited under the terms of a
finance lease.

Grants and contributions received relating to infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of
fixed assets in order to show a true and fair view, As a conseguence, the net book value of fixed assets is
£77.4 million (1997 — £73.3 million) lower than it would have been had this treatment not been adopted.

Within tangible fixed assets are assets held under finance leases at the following armounts:

1998 1997
£m £m

Cost:
Operational SUCIUFES ..o e 250.8 250.8
Fixtures, fittings, tools and equUIPMENt ...ovu e 183.6 9.3
Assets in course of CONSIIUGTION ....viiv e e 61.& —
N I Y =T o) o DU OO TIPSO 495.9 260.1
Accumulated depreciation:
Operational StrUCTUFES .....oovveiiiieiiie e (57.7) {53.6)
Fixtures, fittings, t00ls and eqUIPIMENT ... .. (100.5} (8.0
R I i o TETT U T PSP PP PP PPN (158.2) (61.6)
Net book value:
Operational STIUGILIES ... iviieres e s 1931 197.2
Fixtures, fittings, tools and eqUIDMENT ... 83.1 1.3
Assets in courge of CONSIFUCHION .....coivi i 61.5 —
R R Y =Tt o« PUTT T PP PP PRPTOPPU P 3B37.7 198.5

The depreciation charge for the year for assets held under finance leases is £5.5 milion (1997 —
£6.7 million}.

An analysis of land and buildings between freehold and long and short leasehold is not readily available at
31 March, 1998. Pre-1974 assets comprise a pool of assets which was transferred to the company from
North West Water Authority, which it acquired in 1974 from its predecessors. No analysis by asset category
is available. The directors consider that the provision of the above information would incur expense out of
proportion to the benefit it would provide to shareholders.

1998 1997
£m £m

Capital commitments:
Contracted but not provided for

11. Fixed asset investments

Cost:
AL T AP TO07 et ettt et b e
RN =10 1= o TP TP PP PRI

AL BT MAICH, 108 un ettt e e e e e e




Details of associated undertakings, all of which are unlisted and registered in England and Wales, are:

Associated undertakings

Desgcription of holding

Drdinary shares of

£1 each 8%
ertible unsecured
loan stock 2014

Ordinary shares of 1

pence each 15%

unsecured loan notes

12. Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year:

Trade deblors. ..o e
Amounts owed by group undertakings...........coeece.
Other debiors. .o,
Prepayments and accrued iNCOme.....oovivveeieveieeeenans
Infrastructure renewals prepayment............cooveevvvnenen,

Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Cthar debtors.. i
Deferred tax

Total EbiOrS .. v e

Amounts owed by group undertakings represent 4
undertakings.

2006

13. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Bank overdrafts and temporary borrowings................,
Obligations under finance leases — external ...............
Obligations under finance leases — group undertaking
Trade creditors
Amounts owed to group undertakings.............ceeveeeensd
Dividends.......ocoiii s
Taxation and social security
Accruals and deferred INCOME.....cooveiiieeiiieieiiiniin.

Amounts owed to group undertakings totals £395.3 mi
owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings.

Proportion Nature of
held business
11.25% Water and
wastewater

26.25% research
1.23% Cash
collection

service

1998 1997

£m £m

108.4 4.4
35.5 481

24.4 5.0

78.4 79.2

5.5 21.7

253.2 248.4

3.1 6.2

3.2 15.3

20.0 —

26.3 21.5
279.5 269.9

mounts owed by parent and fellow subsidiary

1998 1997
£m £m
24.9 21.4
348.8 325.0
4.0 5.8
143.5 —
19.2 19.2
251.8 84.6
113.4 103.5
2.6 2.0
23.7 19.3
280.8 268.9
1,212.7 849.7

lion (1997 — £84.6 million} in respect of amounts




14. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Loans

Obligations under finance leases
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Other creditors
Deferred grants and contributions (note 15)

Amounts owed to group undertakings represents
undertakings.

15. Deferred grants and contributions

1998 1097

£m £m

651.4 4786.3

.................................. 201.6 204.8
.................................. 3.2 15.3
.................................. 5.8 7.0
.................................. 50.8 457
g12.8 749.1

amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary

£m

AL T ADTH, TOO7 1ot 45.7

RECEIVEA 1N TN YBAI ...ttt eeeeii e e s e oo e e b 7.0

Profit N [0SS BCCOUNE .. et ttetrreee ettt s e st e e e s r e a et e s e e bt st an s rau s r sttt bt (1.9)

AL 31 March, 108 ...ttt et e e 50.8
16. Provisions for liabilities and charges

Restructuring Other Total

£m £m £m

AL 1 APTL 1997 oo 19.8 8.2 28.0

(W= e T O PO PPE PP PP PPPPRPR 4.2) (5.7) (8.9

Profit and 0SS ACCOUNT. .. v ciiraiie e nanas (7.0) — (7.0)

At31March, 1998 .. ... e 8.6 2.5 119

17. Borrowings

Loans and Finance 1998 1997

overdrafts leases Total Total

£m £m £m £m

WIhIN ONE YEAT ...viiiieiiiein e 373.7 147.5 521.2 352.2

Between one and two years ..o 100.2 1.5 101.7 28.1

Between two and five years ... 92.2 0.4 92.6 167.0

After maore than five Years.....cooviivieeeieniiin 459.0 199.7 658.7 488.0

1,025.1 349.1 1,374.2 1,033.3

| oans repayable by instaiments partly after five years comprise bank and other loans repayable between

2005 and 2053.

Interest rates range from 6.55 per cent. to 14.83 per cent. on £977.6 million and are at floating rates on

£396.6 million.




18. Called up share capital and share premium

Authorised share capital
650,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each
56,837,000 preference shares of £1 each

Allotted and fully paid share capital
431,930,000 ordinary shares of £1 each
56,837,000 preference shares of £1 each

Share premium account

Ouring the year, 18,300,000 non-voting non-redeent
nominal value in order to reduce overall borrowings.
dividends paid by the company. Preference shareholde!
at any general meeting of the company. However, prefy
of shareholders on a winding up, liquidation or other r

19. Profit and loss account

20. Pensions

The company participates in two defined benefit final
Scheme (WMIS) and the Water Pension Scheme (WP
funds independent of Group finances.

accounts
1998 1997
£m £m
............................... 650.0 650.0
................................ £56.8 38.5
............................... 431.9 431.9
............................... £6.8 38.5
............................... 647.8 647.8

able preference shares were allotted for cash at
The preference shares have no entitlement to any
rs are not entitled to receive notice of, attend or vote
prence shareholders receive priority to other classes
eturn of capital to shareholders of the company.

salary schemes, the Water Mirror Image Pension
S). The assets of these schemes are held in trust

The employer’'s contributions and the pension cost u

der the accounting standard SSAP24 have been

assessed in accordance with the advice of a firm of actuaries, Wiliam M Mercer Limited, using the
projected unit method for the WPS and the attained age method for the WMIS. For this purpose, the main
actuarial assumptions adopted are based upon investment growth of 9 per cent. per annum, pay growth of

7 per cent. per annum and increases to pensions i
per annum.

payment and deferred pensions of 5 per cent.

The last actuarial valuation of the two schemes was ¢arried out as at 31 March, 1996. The combined
market value of the Group's share of the assets of these two schemes at the valuation date was £521.2

million. The combined actuarial value of the assets rep

benefits after allowing for expected future earnings incre

the surplus in the schemes is being spread over the fu

The company also operates a series of unfunded unap

unfunded unapproved retirement benefit schemes is

esented 107 per cent. of the value of the accrued
rases. In deriving the pension cost under SSAP24,
ture working lifetime of the existing members.

roved retirement benefit schemes. The cost of the
included in the total pension cost on a basis

consistent with S3AP24 and the assumptions used for|WPS.

The total pension cost for the year was £8.6 million (1997 — £10.1 million).

From 1 April 1998, United Utilities PLC introduced a 1
Scheme (UUPS). United Utilities’ share of WMIS and W

ew pension scheme, the United Utilities Pension
PS will be merged into the UUPS.

The 1997 Budget removed the ability of pension sci
dividends. This will not cause a substantial change in
account in the review of assumptions appropriate for th
uuPs,

remes to reclaim tax deducted from UK equity
he pension cost but the effect will be taken into
e actuarial valuation to be carried out in 1998 for




21. Operating leases
The company is committed to making the following payments during the year:

Land and Piant and Land and Plant and
buildings  machinery buildings  machinery

£m £m £m £m
1988 1998 1997 1997

L.eases which expire:
WItHN ONG YEAK .. iveuiivaieerrrenn e 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.5
Between two and five years ... 0.7 0.8 0.3 49.7
ARLEr fiVe YEBIS ... e 1.7 — 2.0 -

2.6 0.9 2.6 50.2

e —

22 Related party transactions

In accordance with the exemption set out in Financial Reporting Standard 8 (FRS8), the company has not
disclosed transactions with its ultimate holding company or any subsidiaries within the group. United
Utilities PLC is the company's ultimate controliing party as defined by FRSS.

23. Ultimate parent undertaking

The accounts of the company are consolidated in the Group accounts of the ultimate parent undertaking,
United Utilities PLC, a company registered in England and Wales.

Copies of the accounts of United Utilities PLC may be obtained from the Company Secretary, United
Utilities PLC, P.O. Box 14, Birchwood Boulevard, Warrington WA3 7WB.

24. Notes to the cash flow statement

1998 1997
For the year ended 31 March, 1898 £m £m
Recongciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating
activities
OPErating PFOfIL «.v.vverisievemmsser et s 397.6 385.0
DIEPIECIATION v eeetrireirtessreie e nstr e rs st b e 72.3 59.0
Profit on disposal of fangible fixed assels ... (1.0) (1.2)
GLOCKS ITCTEASE 1+ evrvnnnrersrnseeseme neiassrranstryssensestsnar e se st b s e s bn s e C.4) —
DEDLOIS IMCTCASE +evttereeeeetiiasertrareeartha et saasr e aa s s e s g s s s st (21.7) (38.8)
O i e (1ot R e 1 = 1= = N SARAARREE 120.6 34.4
Net cash inflow from operating activilies ... 567.4 438.4
1998 1997
For the year ended 31 March, 1997 £m £m
Reconcillation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
Increase/Decrease) in cash N the Year ... (17.7} 11.0
Cash inflow from increase in debt and lease financing ... (334.2) (135.9)
Movement in netdebtin the year ... (351.9) (124.9)
Net debt at 1 April, 1997 ... (1,065.2) (930.3)

Net debt at 31 March, 1998 (1,407.1) (1,055.2)




Analysis of cash flows for headings netted in the
cash flow statement

Financing

Issue of preference share capital .......oocvvveiiiiiiniiiinn.n,

Debt due within a year:

— repayment of short term external lcans ..o

— new/(repayment of) short term group loans ............

— new short term bank 1oans .....ooce v,

Debt due beyond a year:

— NEW [0ANS ... e e

— repayment of long-term external loans.........c........

Capital element of finance lease repayments...............

New finance leases — INter-groug .ocecvveevveeciiiencinennns

Net cash inflow from financing ..................c..........

Analysis of changes in net debt

LONG 1M OGRS .ot vereiiniereecaren e cnrenererenrire e as
FiNAnCe J8ASES....cvv i res e e ere e
Short term l0aNS ... e e
O ()

BOrrowings ... e
Cash in hand .....ccooviiiie e
Parent undertaking loan......coeviviiviiiiiici e

Netdebt... ...

73

1998 1998 1997 1997
£m £m £m £m
18.3 38.5
— (16.4)
2.1 i8.4
15.0 143.0
200.0 —
(21.4) —
{5.0) {9.1)
143.5 —
334.2 135.9
352.5 174.4
At
At 1 April, Non-cash 31 March,
1997 Cashflow movements 1998
£m £m £m £m
(497.7) (178.6) — (676.3)
(210.6) (138.5) - (348.1)
(325.0) (15.0} — {340.0)
- (8.8) — (8.8}
(1,033.3) (340.9) — (1,374.2)
8.9 8.9 - _
(30.8) {2.1) - (32.9)
(1,055.2) (351.9) —_ (1,407 1)




NORTH WEST WATER FINANCE PLC

North West Water Finance PLC was incorporated for an unlimited duration in England and Wales on
14 October, 1996 with registered number 3263102 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of North West
Water Limited. The purpose of the company is to raise finance for the activities of North West Water
Limited. North West Water Finance PLC is a company limited by shares and operates under the
Compartes Act 1985.

Board of Directors
The directors of North West Water Finance PLC and their functions within the company are as follows:

Name Function
Derek Green Director
Bob Ferguson Director
Martin Bradbury Director

None of the directors of North West Water Finance PLC performs activities outside the Group which are
significant with respect to the Group.

The business address of each of the directors is the company’s registered office which is PO Box 14, 410
Birchwood Boulevard, Birchwood, Warrington WAS 7GA.

Capitalisation of North West Water Finance PLC
The following table sets out the capitalisation of North West Water Finance PLC, at 31 March, 1998.

£
Short Term Debt:

Short term debt (inctuding overdrafts) . ... 0.0

Current portion of long term debt ... 0.0
Total Short 16 et .ot e e et e et 0.0
Long Term Debt:

Long term debt, net of current Portion ... i 0.0
Total 10ng 1erm debt® ... oot e 0.0
Shareholders’ Funds:®

Called up SNAre CapItAl......u . e 50,000

Profit AN [0SS BOCOUNTE .. ir s e ettt e e e e s s s e ar et t e e s ar s ar e e e b b 0.0
Total ShArEnOIdErS TUNGS . ottt ee it ettt et ir e e rr e e e et et sasa s r et trarees 50,000
Total capitalisation...............oooiii i 50,000
Notes:

(@) As at 23 August, 1998, the total short term debt was approximately £55 million and the total long term debt was approximately
£0 million.

(0) Asat 31 March, 1998, the authorised share capital of North West Water Finance PLC was £100,00C norminal comprising 100,0C0
ordinary shares of £1 nominal each. The allotted, called up and fully paid share capital of North West Water Finance PLC was
£50,000 comprising 50,000 ordinary shares of £1 nominal each.

(¢) Save as disclosed above, there has been no material change in the capitalisation of North West Water Finance PLC since
31 March, 1998.




ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON NORT,

The Directors

North West Water Finance PLC
P.O. Box 14

410 Birchwood Boulevard
Birchwood

Warrington WAS 7GA

13 October, 1998

Dear Sirs

North West Water Finance PLC
We report on the financial information set out in paragr

Basis of preparation
The financial information set out in paragraphs 1 and 2 i
Water Finance PLC (the “Company”) from incorporal
described in sub-paragraph 2.2, to which no adiustme

Responsihility
Such financial statements are the responsibility of the g

The directors of the Company are responsible for the ¢
1998 in which this report is included.

It is our responsibility to compile the financial information|
to form an opinion on the financial information and to rg

Basis of opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with the Stater
issued by the Auditing Practices Board. Our work incl
amounts and disclosures in the financial information. 1t al
and judgements made by those responsible for the pre
financial information and whether the accounting polic
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

b

H WEST WATER FINANCE PLC

aphs 1 and 2 below.

s based on the financial statements of North West
ion to 31 March, 1898, prepared on the basis
ts were considered necessary.

irectors of the Company.

bntents of the Offering Circular dated 13 October,

set out in our report from the financial statements,
eport cur opinion to you.

nents of Investment Circular Reporting Standards
1ded an assessment of evidence relevant to the

g0 included an assessment of significant estimates

baration of the financial statements underlying the
es are appropriate to the entity’s circumstances,

We plamned and performed our work so as to cbtai
considered necessary in order to provide us with suffici
financial information is free from material misstatemen
error.

Opinion

in our opinion the financial information gives, for the purg
the state of affairs of the Company at 31 March, 1998.

75

all the information and explanations which we

i
%'nt evidence to give reasonable assurance that the

whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or

oses of the Offering Circular, a true and fair view of




1. Balance sheet as at 31 March, 1998

1998
£
Current Assets
Amounts owed Dy parent COMPANY ....vi i e s 50,000
N oy o= <= S S PP PR 50,000
Capital and reserves
Equity share CApItal.......coiiiiii s 50,000
L A e aTe o = B (51 L= S PP PPPPFON 50,000

2. Notes
2.1 Incorporation of the Company

The Company was incorporated on 14 Qctober, 1996, The Company commenced business on
10 June, 1998, no statutory audited financial statements have been made up and no dividends have
been declared or paid since the date of incorporation.

2.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
applicable accounting standards.

2.3 Called up share capital
Authorised share capital 100,000 ordinary shares of £1 each

Allotted share capital 50,000 ordinary shares of £1 each

2.4 Directors emoluments
None of the directors received emoluments for their services.

2.5 Ultimate parent undertaking

The accourts of the Company are consolidated in the group accounts of the ultimate parent
undertaking, United Utilities PLC, a company registered in England and Wales.

Yours faithfully

KPMG Audit Plc
St. James’ Square
Manchester M2 8DS




TAXATION

The following is a summary of the Issuer’s unde rstanding of certain aspects of current law and
practice in the United Kingdom relating to the taxation of the Notes. Some parts of the summary
may not apply to certain classes of person (such|as dealers). Prospective Noteholders who may
be subject to tax in a jurisdiction other than thj, United Kingdom or who may be unsure as to
their particular tax position should seek their own professional advice.

Withholding tax

1. The Notes will constitute "quoted Eurobonds” within the meaning of section 124 of the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 (the “Act”) as long gs they continue to be in bearer form and listed on a
“recognised stock exchange” within the meaning of section 841 of the Act. The London Stock
Exchange is currently recognised for these purposes. Payments of interest on Notes which constitute
quoted Eurobonds (“Eurobond Notes”) may bg made without withholding on account of United
Kingdom income tax where:

(@ payment is made through a paying agent at| its office outside the United Kingdom: or

(b} the beneficial owner of the Notes and the interest thereon is not resident in the United Kingdom;
or

(c) the Notes are held in a “recognised clearing pystem” (and Euroclear and Cedel Bank are each a
recognised clearing system for this purpose)

and, in the case of (b) and {(c), certain other administrative conditions imposed by regulations made
under the Act have been satisfied.

In all other cases an amount must be withheld frotn payments of interest on the Notes on account of
income tax at the lower rate (currently 20 per cent.), subject to any direction to the contrary by the
Inland Revenue under an applicable double taxation treaty.

2.  Where a person in the United Kingdorn acting in the course of a trade or profession, other than by
means solely of clearing a cheque or arranging for the clearing of a cheque either:

(@} acts as custodian of a Eurobond Note and rdceives interest on the Eurobond Note, directs that
interest on the Eurobond Note be paid to anpther psrson or consents to such payment; or

(b} collects, receives or secures payment of interest on a Eurobond Note for a Noteholder or a
Couponholder whether by means of Coupons or otherwise,

that person (a “collecting agent”) will be entitled to withhold sums on account of income tax at the
lower rate unless:

) the Eurobond Note is held in a recognised cl 2aring system and the collecting agent either:
{A) pays or accounts for the interest directly|or indirectly to the recognised clearing system; or
{B) is acting as depositary for the recognisedl clearing systemn; or

(i) the person beneficially entitlied to the interest is not resident for tax purposes in the United
Kingdom and beneficially owns the Eurobond|Note; or

(i) the interest arises to trustees not resident for tax purposes in the United Kingdom of certain
discretionary or accumulation trusts (where, inter afia, none of the beneficiaries of the trust is
resident In the United Kingdom); or

(iv) the person beneficially entitled to the interest fis eligible for one of a number of specified reliefs
from tax in respect of the interest; or

(v} the interest falls to be treated as the income of, or of the government of, a sovereign power or of
an intermational organisation; or




(vi) the Eurobond Note and the interest are beneficially owned by a person falling into one of certain
specified categories, or one of certain other circumstances applies, in each case as prescribed by
regulations made under the Act; this would apply, for exampie, to Eurobond Notes held under a
personal eguity plan, in a pension funds poocling scheme or a superannuation fund.

In the case of each of the above exceptions (except ()(B), further administrative conditions imposed by
the regulations referred to above may have to be satisfied for the relevant exception to be available.

3. Where interest has been paid under deduction of United Kingdom income tax, Noteholders who are
not resident in the United Kingdom may be able to recover ali or part of the tax deducted under an
appropriate provigion in an applicable double taxation treaty.

4. Payments of interest on amounts of principal which are expressed and intended to be outstanding for
less than twelve months may in all circumstances be made without withholding or deduction for or on
account of United Kingdom income tax.

Tax by direct assessment

Interast on the Notes constitutes United Kingdom source income for tax purposes and, as such, may be
subject to income tax by direct assessment even where paid without withholding.

However, interest with a United Kingdom source will not be chargeable to United Kingdom tax or, if tax has
been withheld or deducted, to further United Kingdom tax in the hands of a Noteholder who is not resident
for tax purposes in the United Kingdom unless that Noteholder carries on a trade, profession or vocation in
the United Kingdom through a United Kingdom branch or agency in connection with which the interest is
received or to which the Notes are attributable. There are exemptions for interest received by certain
categories of agent (such as some brokers and investment managers).




SUBSCRIPTION

AND SALE

The Dealers have in a programme agreement (the “Priogramme Agreement”) dated 13 October, 1998,

agreed with the Issuers a basis upon which they or any
Notes. Any such agreement will extend to those matters
Conditions of the Notes”. In the Programme Agreement
for certain of their expenses in connection with the estal
under the Programme and to indemnify the Dealers agait
therewith.

Selling Restrictions
United States

The Notes have not been and will not be registered undg
within the United States or to, or for the account or ben
exempt from the registration requirements of the Secur

The Notes are subject to U.S. tax law requirements an
United States or its possessions or to a United States [
U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in this paragraph havg
Revenue Code of 1986 and regulations thereunder.

o

~3

In connection with any Notes which are offered or
exemption from the registration requirements of the §
Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further
required to represent and agree, that it will not offer, sell
at any time or (i) otherwise until 41 days after the compls
by the relevant Dealer or, in the case of an issue of Noteg
of all Notes of the Tranche of which such Notes are a pa
or benefit of, U.S. persons. Each Dealer has further agr
Programme will be required to agree, that it will send to
restricted period a confirmation or other notice setting g
within the United States or to, or for the account or be

Until 40 days after the commencement of the offering of]
within the United States by any dealer {whether or

registration requirements of the Securities Act if such o
with an available exemption from registration under the

Each issuance of Indexed Notes or Dual Currency Not
restrictions as the relevant Issuer and the relevant D
purchase of such Notes, which additional selling rest
Supplement.

United Kingdom

Each Dealer has represented and agreed and each furth
required to represent and agree that:
() in refation to Notes which have a maturity of g
London Stock Exchange, it has not offered or
in the United Kingdom prior to admission of su
Financial Services Act 1986 (the “FSA”) exceg
in acquiring, holding, managing or disposin
purposes of their businesses or otherwise in ¢
result in an offer to the public in the United K
Securities Regulations 1995 or the FSA;

in relation to Notes which have a maturity of g
the Londen Stock Exchange, it has not offereg
months from the issue date of such Notes, wi
United Kingdom except to persons whose or

(i)
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of them may from time to time agree to purchase
stated under “Form of the Notes” and “Terms and
the Issuers have agreed to reimburse the Dealers
lishment of the Programme and the issue of Notes
st certain liabilities incurred by them in connecticn

r the Securities Act and may not be offered or sold
efit of, U.S. persons except in certain transactions
ties Act.

i may not be offered, sold or delivered within the
erson, except in certain transactions permitted by
= the meanings given to them by the U.8. internal

old outside the United States in reliance on an
ecurities Act provided under Regulation S, each
Dealer appointed under the Programme will be
or deliver such Notes (i) as part of their distribution
tion of the distribution, as determined and certified
on a syndicated basis, the relevant lead manager,
rt, within the United States or to, or for the account
eed, and each further Dealer appeointed under the
each dealer to which it sells any Notes during the
rth the restrictions cn offers and sales of the Notes
nefit of, U.S. persons.

any Series of Notes, an offer or sale of such Notes
not participating in the offering) may violate the
ffer or sale is made otherwise than in accordance
Securities Act.

es shall be subject to such additional U.S. selling
caler may agree as a term of the issuance and
fictions shall be set out in the applicable Pricing

ner Dealer appointed under the Programme will be

ne year or more and which are to be listed on the
sold and will not offer or sell any Notes to persons
th Notes to listing in accordance with Part IV of the
t to persons whose ordinary activities involve them
g of investments (as principal or agent) for the
ircumstances which have not resulted and will not
ngdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of

ne year or more and which are not to be listed on
1 or sold and, prior to the expiry of the period of six
| not offer or sell any such Notes to persons in the
dinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding,




managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses
or otherwise in circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public
in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995;

(i) & has only issued or passed on and will only issue or pass on in the United Kingdom any
document received by it in connection with the issue of any Notes, other than, in relation to any
Notes to be listed on the London Stock Exchange, any document which consists of or any part of
listing particulars, supplementary listing particulars or any other document required or permitted
to be published by listing rules under Part IV of the FSA, to a person who is of a kind described in
Article 11(3) of the Financial Services Act 1986 (Investment Advertisements) (Exemptions) Order
1996 (as amended) or is a person to whom such document may otherwise lawfully be issued or
passed on; and

{iv) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSA with respect to anything
done by it in relation to any Notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

Japan

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan (the
“Securities and Exchange Law”} and each Dealer has agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the
Programme will be required to agree that it will not offer or sell any Notes, directly or indirectly, in Japan or
to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan (which term as used herein means any person resident in
Japan, including any corporation or other entity organised under the laws of Japan), or to others for re-
offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to a resident of Japan except in compliance with the
Securities and Exchange Law and any other applicable laws and regulations of Japan.

Germany

In connection with the initial placement of any Notes in Germany, each Dealer has agreed and each further
Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree that it will offer and sell Notes (i) unless
otherwise provided in the relevant subscription agreement or the applicable Pricing Supplement in the case
of an issue made on a syndicated basis, only for an aggregate purchase price per purchaser of at least DM
80,000 {or the foreign currency equivalent) or such other amount as may be stipulated from time to time by
applicable German law or {ii) as may otherwise be permitted in accordance with applicable German law.

General

Each Dealer has agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the Programime will be required to agree
that it will (to the best of its knowledge and belief) comply with alt applicable securities laws and regulations
in force in any jurisdiction in which it purchases, offers, sells or delivers Notes or possesses or distributes
this Offering Circular and will obtain any consent, approval or permission required by it for the purchase,
offer, sale or delivery by it of Notes under the laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction to which it is
subject or in which it makes such purchases, offers, sales or deliveries and neither the relevant ssuer, the
Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) nor any of the other Dealers shall have any responsibility
therefor.

Neither the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where the relevant Issuer is NWW) nor any of the Dealers
represents that Notes may at any time lawfully be sold in compliance with any applicable registration or
other requirements in any jurisdiction, or pursuant to any exemption available thereunder, or agsumes any
responsibility for facilitating such sale.

With regard to each Tranche, the relevant Dealer will be required to comply with such other restrictions as
the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer shall agree and as shall be set out in the applicable Pricing
Supplement.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Authorisation
The establishment of the Programme and the issue o

U]

[ the Notes have been duly authorised by:

a resolution of the Board of Directors of U
reselution of the Financing Committee of Un

nited Utilities PLC, dated 26 May, 1998 and by a
ited Utilities PLC, dated 5 October, 1998;

a resolution of the Board of Directors of NOR
of the Financing Committee of NORWEB pld

(i) WEB ple, dated 24 June, 1998 and by a resolution

. dated 5 October, 1998; and
a resolution of the Board of Directors of NW!

(il

The granting of the Guarantee has been duly authorise
17 June, 1998 and by a resolution of the Financing Cq

W, dated 5 October, 1008.

d by the Board of Directors of the Guarantor dated
mmittee of the Guarantor, dated 5 October, 1998.

Listing of Notes on the London Stock Exchange

The listing of Notes on the London Stock Exchange v
amount {excluding accrued interest). It is expected tha

vill be expressed as a percentage of their nominal
each Tranche of Notes which is to be admitted to

the Official List of the London Stock Exchange will be ad
to the issue of a Global Note or Notes initially represer
- Programme in respect of Notes is expected to be grar

Documents Available

mitted separately as and when issued, subject only
iting the Notes of such Tranche. The listing of the
ted on or before 14 Qctober, 1998.

So long as Notes are capable of being issued under

will, when published, be available from the registered o
specified office of the Paying Agent for the time being

®
(ii

the consolidated statutory annual audited

e Programme, copies of the following documents
ice of each Issuer and the Guarantor and from the
n London:

the Memorandum and Articles of Association|of each of the issuers and the Guarantor;

inancial staternents of United Utilities PLC and

NORWEB plc, the non-consolidated statut
Guarantor in respect of the financial years eng
non-consolidated statutory annual financial st

ory annual audited financial statements of the
ded 31 March, 1997 and 31 March, 1998 and the
atements of NWW in respect of the financial year

ended 31 March, 1998:

(i) the most recently published audited annual fi
Guarantor and the most recently published un
of the Issuers and the Guarantor:

{iv) the Programme Agreement, the Agency Agreg
Notes, the Notes in definitive form, the Receip

v
(vi}

a copy of this Offering Circular;

all reports, letters and other documents, balang
any part part of which is extracted or referred
{(vi) any future offering circulars, prospectuses, inf
Pricing Supplements (save that a Pricing Sup
available for inspection by a holder of such

satisfactory to the Paying Agent as to its holdi

and any other documents incorporated herein

ncial statements of each of the Issuers and the

al
’Eudited interim financial statements (if any) of each

ment, the Trust Deed and the forms of the Global
ts, the Coupons and the Talons;

e shests, valuations and statements by any expert
to in this Offering Circular;

pimation memoranda and supplements including
blement relating to an unlisted Note will only be
Note and such holder must produce evidence
g of Notes and identity) to this Offering Circular
or therein by reference: and

{viii) in the case of each issue of listed Notes Subsg

subscription agreement (or equivalent docume

tribed pursuant to a subscription agreement, the
nt).

Clearing Systems

The Notes have been accepted for clearance throug
Common Gede and ISIN for each Tranche of Notes allocal
in the applicable Pricing Supplement. The relevant 1S

N Euroclear and Cedel Bank. The appropriate
ted by Eurcclear and Cedel Bank will be specified
N and common code will be specified in the




applicable Pricing Supplement. If the Notes are to clear through an additional or alternative clearing system
the appropriate information will be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Significant or Material Change

Save as disclosed in this Offering Circular, there has been no significant change in the financial or trading
position of each of the Issuers or the Guarantor since 31 March, 1998 and there has been no material
adverse change in the financial position or prospects of each of the Issuers or the Guarantor since
31 March, 1998.

Litigation

Save as disclosed on page 54 of this Offering Circular none of the Issuers or the Guarantor is involved in any
legal or arbitration proceedings {including any proceedings which are pending or threatened of which any of
the lssuers or the Guarantor is aware) which may have or have had in the 12 months preceding the date of
this document a significant effect in the financial position of each of the lssuers or the Guarantor.

Auditors

The auditors of each of the Issuers and the Guarantor are KPMG Audit Plc, chartered accountants and
registered auditor. KPMG Audit Plc has audited the accounts of United Utilities PLC, NORWEB plc and
North West Water Limited, without qualification, in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
in the United Kingdom for each of the three years ended 31 March, 1998, North West Water Finance PLC

has not yet made up statutory audited financial statements. )

KPMG Audit Plc has given and not withdrawn its consent to the issue of this document with the inclusion of
references to its reports in the form and context in which they appear and has authotised the contents of
that part of the Listing Particulars for the purposes of section 152(1)e) of the Financial Services Act 1986.

ECU

Under Articie 108g of the Treaty, the currency composition of the ECU may not be changed. The Treaty
contemplates that European economic and monetary union will occur in three stages, the second of which
began on 1 January, 1994 with the entry into force of the Treaty. The Treaty provides that the third stage of
European economic and monetary union will start on 1 January, 1999 and on that date the value of the
ECU as against the currencies of the member states participating in the third stage will be irrevocably fixed
and the ECU will become a currency in its own right. On 17 June, 1997, the Council of the European Union
adopted Council Regulation (EC) No 1103/97, which recites that the name of that currency will be the euro
and that, in accordance with the Treaty, references to the ECU will be replaced by references to the euro at
the rate of one euro for one ECU. From the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary
union, all payments in respect of Notes denominated or payable in ECU will be payable in euro at the rate of
one euro for one ECU.

Banking Act 1987 (Exempt Transactions) Regulations 1997

Notes (including Notes denominated in sterling} in respect of which the issue proceeds are to be
accepted by the relevant lssuer in the United Kingdom and which are issued pursuant to an
exempt transaction under regulation 13(1) or (3) of the Banking Act 1987 (Exempt Transactions)
Regulations 1997 (the “Regulations™) will constitute commercial paper, shorter term debt
securities or longer term debt securities ({in each case as defined in the Regulations), as
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, in each case issued in accordance with
regulations made under section 4 of the Banking Act 1987. None of the Issuers is an authorised
institution or a European authorised institution {as such terms are defined in the Regulations) and (in the
case of Notes issued by NWW) repayment of the principal and payment of any interest or premium in
connection with such Notes will be guaranteed by the Guarantor, which is not an authorised institution or a
European authorised institution.

In relation to any Notes which are issued pursuant to an exempt transaction under regulation 13(3} of the
Regulations where such Notes would fall within regulation 13{4)(a) of the Regulations, each of the Issuers
confirms that:

{(a) as at the date hereof, it has complied with its obligations under the relevant rules (as defined in the
Regulations) in relation to the adgmission to and continuing listing of the Programme ang of any
previous issues made under it and listed on the same exchange as the Programme;
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(b) it will have complied with its obligations under the relevant rules in relation to the admission to listing of
such Notes by the time when such Notes are so admitted; and

(c} as at the date hereof, it has not, since the last publigation, if any, in compliance with the relevant rules
of information about the Programme, any previods issues made under it and listed on the sarme
exchange as the Programme, or any Notes falling within regulation 13(4)(a) of the Regulations, having
made all reasonable enquiries, become aware |of any change in circumstances which could
reasonably be regarded as significantly and adversely affecting its ability to meet its obligations as
issuer in respect of such Notes as they fall due,
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ISSUERS

United Utilities PLC NORWEB plc North West Water Finance PLC
Birchwood Point Business Park P.O. Box 14 P.O. Box 14
Birchwood Boulevard 410 Birchwood Boulevard 410 Birchwood Boulevard
Birchwood Birchwood Birchwood
Warrington WA3 7WEB Warrington WA3 7GA Warrington WA3 7GA
GUARANTOR
North West Water Limited
P.O. Box 14
410 Birchwood Boulevard
Birchwood

Warrington WA3 7GA

TRUSTEE

The Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c.
Princes House
95 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7LY

PRINCIPAL PAYING AGENT
Citibank, N.A.

5 Carmelite Street
London EC4Y OPA

PAYING AGENTS

Bangqgue Paribas Luxembourg Citibank, N.A.
10A Boulevard Royal Boulevard General Jacques, 263g
L-2449 Luxembourg B-10150 Brussels
Belgium
LEGAL ADVISERS

To the Issuers and the Guarantor
Slaughter and May
35 Basinghalt Street
London EC2V 5DB

To the Dealers and the Trustee
Allen & Overy
Cne New Change
London EC4M 9QQ

AUDITORS
To the Issuers and the Guaranior
KPMG Audit Plc

St. James' Square
Manchester M2 6DS
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DEALEF

ABN AMRO Bank N.V.
199 Bishopsgate
London EC2M 3XW

Credit Suisse First Boston (Europe) Limited
One Cabot Square
London E14 4QJ

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.
60 Victoria Embankment
London EC4Y 0JP

RS

Tokyo-Mitsubishi International plc
G Broadgate
London EC2M 2AA

Deutsche Bank AG London
6 Bishopsgate
London EGC2N 4DA

UBS AG
acting through its division Warburg Dillon Read
1 Finsbury Avenue
London EC2M 2PP

LONDON LISTING AGENT

Deutsche Bank #
6 Bishops
London EC2
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